CITY OF DEER PARK

MARCH 20, 2018 - 6:00 PM
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP - FINAL

Sherry Garrison, Council Position 1
Thane Harrison, Council Position 2
Tommy Ginn, Council Position 3

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
710 E SAN AUGUSTINE
DEER PARK, TX 77536

Bill Patterson, Council Position 4
Ron Martin, Council Position 5
Rae A. Sinor, Council Position 6

James Stokes, City Manager o Shannon Bennett, TRMC, City Secretary

Jerry Mouton Jr. , Mayor

Gary Jackson, Assistant City Manager Jim Fox, City Attorney

CALL TO ORDER

1.

3.

Executive Session - By authority of Article 6252-17 (Section 3-e,f, and g) EXS 18-002
V.A.T.S., and the Open Meetings Act, the Council may adjourn to an
Executive Session related to following item(s):

a. Consultation with City Attorney - (551.071) Potential Litigation.

Recommended Action: No action will occur. Discussion only in Executive Session.

Department: City Manager's Office

Presentation of the FY 2016-2017 Annual Audit. PRE 18-006

Recommended Action: Discussion only. Action will be taken during the regular meeting.

Department: Finance
Attachments: CAFR - Final 2017

Management Letter - 2017

Required Auditor Disclosure Letter - 2017

Discussion of issues relating to City Wide Christmas Decorations Program. DIS 18-032

Recommended Action: Discussion only

Attachments: christmas council

The Mission of the City of Deer Park is to deliver exemplary municipal services that provide the
community a high quality of life consistent with our history, culture and unique character.
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City Council Workshop - FINAL MARCH 20, 2018

4. Discussion of issues relating to purchase of playground equipment for DIS 18-033
Brookhollow, Brownwind, Park Green and Parkside Place parks from
Kompan Inc through cooperative agreement with U.S. Communities
Contract #2017001135.

Recommended Action: Discussion only in workshop.

Attachments:  Playground renovations 2018

SP56809 Kompan Sales Proposal Park Green

SP56830 Kompan Sales Proposal Brownwind (002)

SP56878 Kompan Sales Proposal Parkside Place

SP56879 Kompan Sales Proposal Brookhollow

5. Discussion of issues relating to the update of the City’s Classification DIS 18-030
Scales.
Recommended Action: Discussion only in workshop. An item to consider an ordinance to amend

the classification scales is on the March 20, 2018 regular meeting agenda.
Attachments: city engineer job desc

Reference Assistant--Job Desc

Reference Librarian--Part Time 2018

PT PR-Marketing Assistant - Job Description

2017 18 Classification Scales rev March 2018 cty engr_pt ref librarian PR mkt

Ordinance

6. Discussion of issues relating to an update regarding the Pratt Truss Bridge DIS 18-035
structure at the Battleground Golf Course.

Recommended Action: Discussion only.

Attachments:  Memorandum of Agreement - Pratt Truss Bridge

Agreement for Acquisiton of Historic Bridge

RPS Pratt Truss Bridge Cost Estimates

Pratt Truss Bridge Historical Marker File

Pratt Truss Bridge Letter to THC March 2018

ADJOURN

The Mission of the City of Deer Park is to deliver exemplary municipal services that provide the
community a high quality of life consistent with our history, culture and unique character.
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City Council Workshop - FINAL MARCH 20, 2018

Shannon Bennett, TRMC
City Secretary

Posted on Bulletin Board
March 16, 2018

City Hall is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or
interpretive services must be made 72 hours prior to any meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's office at
281.478.7248 for further information.

The Mission of the City of Deer Park is to deliver exemplary municipal services that provide the
community a high quality of life consistent with our history, culture and unique character.
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City of Deer Park DEER PARK, T 77536

it Legislation Details (With Text)
File #: EXS 18-002  Version: 1 Name:
Type: Executive Session Status: Agenda Ready
File created: 3/6/2018 In control: City Council Workshop
On agenda: 3/20/2018 Final action:
Title: Executive Session - By authority of Article 6252-17 (Section 3-e,f, and g) V.A.T.S., and the Open

Meetings Act, the Council may adjourn to an Executive Session related to following item(s):

a. Consultation with City Attorney - (551.071) Potential Litigation.
Sponsors: City Manager's Office

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:
Date Ver. Action By Action Result
3/20/2018 1 City Council Workshop

Executive Session - By authority of Article 6252-17 (Section 3-e,f, and g) V.A.T.S., and the Open
Meetings Act, the Council may adjourn to an Executive Session related to following item(s):

a. Consultation with City Attorney - (551.071) Potential Litigation.

Summary:

The City Council will adjourn into Executive Session to discuss with the City Attorney potential
litigation.

Fiscal/Budgetary Impact:

n/a

No action will occur. Discussion only in Executive Session.
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City of Deer Park DEER PARK, T 77536

o Legislation Details (With Text)
File #: PRE 18-006  Version: 1 Name:
Type: Presentation Status: Agenda Ready
File created: 2/21/2018 In control: City Council Workshop
On agenda: 3/20/2018 Final action:
Title: Presentation of the FY 2016-2017 Annual Audit.
Sponsors: Finance
Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: CAFR - Final 2017
Management Letter - 2017
Required Auditor Disclosure Letter - 2017

Date Ver. Action By Action Result

3/20/2018 1 City Council Workshop

Presentation of the FY 2016-2017 Annual Audit.

Summary: Pursuant to state statute and City ordinance, the City shall have its records and accounts
audited annually and shall prepare an annual financial statement and report. The audit shall be
performed by a certified public accounting (CPA) firm, licensed to practice in the State of Texas. The
annual financial statement and report, including the auditor’s opinion, shall be part of an official
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which shall be filed within 180 days after the last
day of the City’s fiscal year.

For Fiscal Year 2016-2017 (October 1, 2016 - September 30, 2017), the CAFR must be filed by
March 31, 2018. The audit firm of Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP performed the annual audit for the
City. The auditors will review the results of the annual audit with the Finance Committee prior to the
workshop. They will be at the workshop meeting to present their findings to the City Council.

Fiscal/Budgetary Impact:
N/A.

Discussion only. Action will be taken during the regular meeting.
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DONNA TODD
Director of Finance

710°E, San Augusting = P. 0. Box 700 « Deer Park, Texas 77680  (281) 4787225 » Fax: (261) 476-4029
E-Mail diodd@deerparidx.org

March 12, 2018

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the
City of Deer Park, Texas:

Texas law and the City charter require that the City of Deer Park (the “City”) publishes a complete set of financial
statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Pursuant to that requirement, I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. This report is published to provide the citizens, City Council,
City management and staff, bondholders, and other interested parties detailed information concerning the
financial condition of the City. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework designed to protect the
City’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the
City’s financial statements. I believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects and that it is
reported in a manner that fairly presents the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by
the financial activity of the various funds and account groups. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain the maximum understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

The Report

In compliance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, this CAFR
includes a Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) which provides a narrative introduction, overview,
and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements. The MD&A is located immediately following the
Independent Auditors’ Report. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it.

City Profile

The City of Deer Park, incorporated in 1948, is located in the center of the highly industrialized ship channel area
just east of Houston. The City currently occupies a land area of 15 square miles and serves a population of
approximately 34,845. The City is empowered to levy an ad valorem tax on both real and personal property
located within its boundaries. Further, the City is empowered to extend its corporate limits by annexation. The
City receives annual “in-lieu-of-tax” payments from industries located within its extraterritorial jurisdiction. This
“industrial district” includes the operations of 24 companies that contract with the City. The current contract,
which was modified and renewed effective January 1, 2015, has a 12-year term and will expire on December 31,
2026.

“QUALITY FIRST TIME EVERY TIME?”



The City operates under a home rule, council-manager form of government. Policy-making and legislative
authority are vested in a City Council consisting of the mayor and six other members. The City Council is
responsible for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City Manager and
City Attorney. City Council members are elected on a non-partisan basis and serve two-year staggered terms.
The Mayor and three City Council members are elected in odd numbered years and the three remaining Council
members are elected in even numbered years. The City Manager is responsible for the execution of City policies
and ordinances, oversight of the daily operations of the City, and appointment of department heads.

The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the construction and maintenance
of streets and other infrastructure; sanitation, water and sewer services; library services; recreational and cultural
opportunities; and general administrative services. In fiscal year 2012 following a special election for each, the
City added two component units to be funded by sales and use taxes: the Crime Control and Prevention District
and the Fire Control, Prevention, and Emergency Medical Services District. Each district was approved for a
period of five years. In May 2016, voters authorized continuation of both the Crime Control and Prevention
District and the Fire Control, Prevention, and Emergency Medical Services District for a period of 10 years,
including the continuation of the dedicated sales and use tax for each.

Annual Budget

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. All departments of the
City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Manager by May of each year. The City
Manager uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget, which is presented to the City
Council for review at least 45 days prior to the last regular meeting in September. The appropriated budget is
prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., police), and appropriations are approved at
the departmental level. Department heads may make appropriation transfers within a department with approval of
the City Manager. Appropriation transfers outside of the department require approval of the City Council. The
budget report includes a comparison of the actual results to the budget for each individual governmental fund for
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is considered from the broader
perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

Local economy. The City lies adjacent to the Port of Houston, which has evolved to become the largest U.S. port.
The region immediately surrounding the City is home to flourishing chemicals, plastics, and fuels industries. The
world’s growing populations and rising standards of living in developing nations have increased the demand for
more energy and products derived from these the City area companies. The year 2017 showed that the City
continues to be a thriving community, welcoming 218 enterprising home-based businesses and 71 new storefront
businesses, which brought approximately 1,000 new employees to the City.

The following are just a few examples of companies choosing the City for their corporate expansion projects in
2017:

USA DeBusk relocated its corporate headquarters to the City, bringing 350 employees from various locations
throughout the surrounding Houston region. Other companies, such as Dow Chemical and Brown & Root,
relocated their regional offices to new, consolidated locations in Deer Park.

Pipefitters Local 211 constructed the Kenneth H. Edwards Apprenticeship School Annex building in the City, and
this impressive new annex building is now being used to train pipe tradesmen in the art of pipe fabrication,
installation, and servicing.

The Lubrizol Corporation broke ground on a new polyisobutylene (PIB) unit in conjunction with Daelim
Industrial. The new unit will be located adjacent to their existing Deer Park facility.



Accounting and budgetary controls. The City’s accounting records for general governmental operations are
maintained on a modified accrual basis, with revenues recorded when available and measurable, and expenditures
recorded when the liability is incurred. Proprietary operations are maintained on a full accrual basis.

During the course of the fiscal year, each department head monitors expenditure controls with overall review
exercised by the Director of Finance and the City Manager. Monthly expenditure reports provide information to
department heads for decision making and, if necessary, timely corrective action to ensure the integrity of the
adopted budget. Changes to approved expenditures are incorporated into the current year budget throughout the
year in the form of budget amendments approved by City Council.

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control system designed to
ensure that the City’s assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data
is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed
the benefits likely to be derived and that the valuation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by
management. Internal controls are subject to periodic evaluation by management and independent auditors. I
believe the City’s accounting controls provide reasonable assurance that employees in the normal course of
business will detect and/or prevent errors or irregularities that could be material to the financial statements.

Long-term financial planning. The City continues to evaluate opportunities to improve operational efficiency
and generate cost savings. The City maintains a Capital Improvement Plan for drainage projects and
infrastructure needs throughout the City.

In order to remain financially strong and provide a framework for prudent financial management, the following
financial controls are monitored annually:

e A multi-year financial forecast is updated projecting revenues and expenditures for all
operating funds.

e Rates, fees, and charges for services are reviewed and adjusted as necessary to respond to
changing financial circumstances.

e Insurance coverage is examined to ensure that policy limits are adequate and in compliance
with revenue bond covenants.

e Bonds are issued as part of a planned debt issuance program to finance long-term capital
projects.

Independent Audit

The City Charter requires an annual audit of all accounts of the City by an independent certified public
accountant. The independent auditors’ report prepared Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. This was the 30%
consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This CAFR must
satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.



A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. I believe the current CAFR continues to meet
the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and will be submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this CAFR would not have been possible without the capable and dedicated services of the
entire staff of the finance department and the cooperation of all other City departments. I would like to express
my appreciation to all members of the finance department and all other City staff who assisted and contributed to
the preparation of this CAFR. Credit must also be given to the Mayor, City Council, City Manager, and Assistant
City Manager for their continued interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the
City in a responsible and professional manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Donna Todd

Donna Todd
Director of Finance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
City Council Members of the
City of Deer Park, Texas:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Deer Park, Texas (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. '

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors® judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

13
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2017, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, the schedule of changes in net pension liability and
related ratios, the schedule of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, schedules of
contributions, and the schedule of funding progress, identified as Required Supplementary Information on the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the Required
Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining statements and schedules,
and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic
financial statements.

The combining statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining statements and schedules are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

@ELT @ARRIS (@éc HACEK, LLLP

Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas
March 12, 2018
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

The purpose of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to give the readers an objective and easily
readable analysis of the financial activities of the City of Deer Park, Texas (the “City”) for the year ending
September 30, 2017. The analysis is based on currently known facts, decisions, or economic conditions. It
presents short and long-term analysis of the City’s activities, compares current year results with those of the prior
year, and discusses the positive and negative aspects of that comparison. Please read the MD&A in conjunction
with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the City’s financial statements, which follow this section.

THE STRUCTURE OF OUR ANNUAL REPORT

Components of the Financial Section

Management’s Basic Financial Required
Discussion and Statements Supplementary
Analysis Information

Independent Government-Wide Fund Financial Component Unit No.tes to. the
Auditors’ Report Financial Statements Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary Detail

The City’s basic financial statements include (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) individual fund
financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also includes supplementary
information intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information for the City as a whole. These statements include
transactions and balances relating to all assets, including infrastructure capital assets. These statements are
designed to provide information about cost of services, operating results, and financial position of the City as an
economic entity. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which appear first in the City’s
financial statements, report information on the City’s activities that enable the reader to understand the financial
condition of the City. These statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into
account even if cash has not yet changed hands.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating. Other nonfinancial factors, such as the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s
infrastructure, need to be considered in order to assess the overall health of the City.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most
recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows — the accrual method rather than modified accrual that is
used in the fund level statements.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities divide the City’s financials into two classes of
activities:

1. Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here including general
government, public safety, public works, parks and recreation, and community development.
Interest payments on the City’s tax-supported debt are also reported here. Sales tax, property tax,
franchise taxes, municipal court fines, and permit fees finance most of these activities.

2. Business-Type Activities — Services involving a fee for those services are reported here. These
services include the City’s water and sewer services, as well as storm water utility services.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government),
but also three legally separate discretely presented component units, the Crime Control and Prevention District;
the Fire Control, Prevention, and Emergency Services District; and the Deer Park Community Development
Corporation, for which the City is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is
reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found after the MD&A.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Funds may be considered as operating companies of the parent corporation, which is the City. They are usually
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal reporting requirements. The three categories of City funds are

governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 17 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general fund, debt service fund, capital improvement fund, and capital improvement bond fund
(CIBF) 2016 fund, which are considered to be major funds for reporting purposes.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, debt service fund, hotel/motel occupancy tax
fund, grants fund, police forfeiture fund, and the municipal court fund. Budgetary comparison schedules have
been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. ’

Proprietary Funds

The City maintains one type of proprietary fund, enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its water distribution, wastewater collection/treatment, and storm water utility
operations. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sewer fund
and the storm water utility fund. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found in the basic
financial statements of this report.

Fiduciarv Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds are not reported in the government-wide financial statements because resources of those funds are not
available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds. The City maintains two fiduciary funds, the senior citizens trust fund and the local emergency
planning committee fund (an agency fund). The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of
net position and statement of changes in net position.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes are the last section of the basic
financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to basic financial statements, MD&A, and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
Required Supplementary Information (RSI). The RSI includes a budgetary comparison schedule for the general
fund, the schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, the schedule of the City’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability, schedules of contributions, and the schedule of funding progress for other
postemployment benefits for healthcare. RSI can be found after the notes to the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position. For the
City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceed liabilities and deferred inflows by $113,508,812 as of
September 30, 2017. This compares with $104,086,474 from the prior fiscal year. The largest portion of the
City’s net position, 64.74 percent, reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment,
improvements, construction in progress, and infrastructure), less any outstanding debt used to acquire those
assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Statement of Net Position:

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position:

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Current and other assets $ 76,580,173 § 76,665,581 § 28975855 § 25416941 $§ 105,556,028 $ 102,082,522
Capital assets, net 73,786,526 64,369,843 39,229,593 36,696,587 113,016,119 101,066,430
Total Assets 150,366,699 141,035,424 68,205,448 62,113,528 218,572,147 203,148,952
Deferred charge on refunding 378,009 445,411 72,083 85,954 450,092 531,365
Deferred outflows - pensions 6,756,891 8,278,139 932,213 1,154,087 7,689,104 9,432,226
Total Deferred Outflows
of Resources 7,134,900 8,723,550 1,004,296 1,240,041 8,139,196 9,963,591
Long-term liabilities 65,173,107 66,442,916 39,081,430 34,199,885 104,254,537 100,642,801
Other liabilities 4,204,958 3,420,421 4,421,786 4,478,882 8,626,744 7,899,303
Total Liabilities 69,378,065 69,863,337 43,503,216 38,678,767 112,881,281 108,542,104
Deferred inflows - pensions 282,354 430,519 38,896 53,446 321,250 483,965
Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources 282,354 430,519 38,896 53,446 321,250 483,965
Net Position:

Net investment in
capital assets 56,664,574 47,111,755 16,822,172 15,837,484 73,486,746 62,949,239
Restricted 6,658,676 6,544,124 146,542 147,229 6,805,218 6,691,353
Unrestricted 24,517,930 25,809,239 8,698,918 8,636,643 33,216,848 34,445,882
Total Net Position §$ 87,841,180 § 79,465,118 § 25,667,632 § 24,621,356 § 113,508,812 § 104,086,474

A portion of the City’s net position, $6,805,218 or 6.00 percent, represents resources that are subject to external
restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $33,216,848 or 29.26
percent, may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City’s total net position increased by $9,422,338 during the current fiscal year, an increase of 9.05 percent in
comparison to the prior year net position. Compared to the prior year, total assets increased $15,423,195 largely
due to the current year operating surplus, the issuance of two new bonds in the current year, and an increase in
capital assets largely attributable to construction projects. Deferred outflows of resources decreased $1,824,395
compared to the prior year due to decreases in the net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan assets and changes in actuarial assumptions. Long-term liabilities increased $3,611,736
compared to the prior year due to the issuance of two new bonds, three new capital leases, and increases in the net
pension liabilities and net OPEB obligations as calculated by the respective actuaries. Other liabilities increased
§727,441 due largely to an increase in payables related to various construction projects. Deferred inflows of
resources decreased $162,715 due to a decrease in the difference between expected and actual experience related
to one of the City’s pension plans.

20



CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Statement of Activities:

The following table provides a summary of the City’s changes in net position:

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 6,482,291 §$ 6,270,570 § 11,112,634 § 10,578,868 $ 17,594,925 § 16,849,438
Operating grants and contributions 2,349,238 144,965 - - 2,349,238 144,965
Capital grants and contributions 986,324 658,600 - - 986,324 658,600
* General revenues:

Property taxes 17,845,389 16,338,414 - - 17,845,389 16,338,414
Industrial taxes 11,255,235 13,058,596 - - 11,255,235 13,058,596
Other taxes 9,143,009 9,345,753 - - 9,143,009 9,345,753
Investment earnings 601,325 202,351 150,971 69,166 752,296 271,517
Other 306,592 276,011 - - 306,592 276,011
Gain on sale of capital assets 42,405 102,690 - - 42,405 102,690
Total Revenues 49,011,808 46,397,950 11,263,605 10,648,034 60,275,413 57,045,984

Expenses
General government 8,221,386 7,716,429 - - 8,221,386 7,716,429
Public safety 13,054,883 12,732,761 - - 13,054,883 12,732,761
Public works 8,112,235 8,328,808 - - 8,112,235 8,328,808
Parks and recreation 351,435 371,619 - - 351,435 371,619
Community development 9,973,129 9,942,091 - - 9,973,129 9,942,091
Interest on long-term debt 1,020,878 1,183,483 - - 1,020,878 1,183,483
Water and sewer - - 10,006,970 9,240,162 10,006,970 9,240,162
Storm water utility - - 112,159 647,044 112,159 647,044
Total Expenses 40,733,946 40,275,191 10,119,129 9,887,206 50,853,075 50,162,397

Increase in Net Position

Before Transfers 8,277,362 6,122,759 1,144,476 760,328 9,422,338 6,883,587
Transfers in (out) 98,200 94,480 (98,200) (94,480) - -
Change in Net Position 8,376,062 6,217,239 1,046,276 666,348 9,422,338 6,883,587
Beginning net position 79,465,118 73,247,879 24,621,356 23,955,008 104,086,474 97,202,887

Ending Net Position $ 87,841,180 $ 79,465,118 § 25667,632 $ 24,621,356 $ 113,508,812 $ 104,086,474
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Graphic presentations of selected data from the summary tables follow to assist in the analysis of the City’s
activities. '

Governmental Revenues
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

For the year ended September 30, 2017, revenues from governmental activities totaled $49,011,808, an increase
of $2,613,858 compared to the prior year. This increase is primarily due to an increase in charges for services
related to increases in ambulance service calls, Deer Park ISD officer program services, and in theatre ticket sales.
Operating grants and contributions increased due to debt service contributions from the Deer Park Community
Development Corporation. Capital grants and contributions increased due to Deer Park Community Development
Corporation contributions towards capital projects and due to current year LEPC grant activity. Property taxes
increased compared to the prior year due to an increase in the assessed values of properties and an increase in the
property tax rate. Investment earnings also increased compared to the prior year. These increases in revenue
were partially offset by decreases in industrial district tax revenues from a decrease in the assessed values of
properties, and decreases in revenues for franchise, sales, and hotel occupancy taxes.

For the year ended September 30, 2017, expenses for governmental activities totaled $40,733,946, an increase of
$458,755. This increase is mainly due to increases in personnel related costs and insurance premiums.

Total revenues for business-type activities increased by a total of $615,571 compared to the prior year. This was
due to an increase in water and sewer rates coupled with an increase in customer consumption. Total expenses for
business-type activities increased by $231,923. This increase is primarily due to an increase in expenses related
to a sludge removal project, professional services, and utilities.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to demonstrate and ensure compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the year.

The City’s governmental funds reflect a combined fund balance of $71,485,057. Of this, $111,479 is
nonspendable, $26,850,130 is restricted, $10,455,593 is assigned, $3,000,000 is committed, and $31,067,855 is
unassigned.

There was a decrease in the combined fund balance of $815,385 compared to the prior year. Compared to the
prior year change in fund balance, the current year change in fund balance decreased $14,364,688. This is largely
attributable to an increase in capital outlay and prior year bond issuances.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance
of the general fund was $31,067,855, while total fund balance reached $36,520,799. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 87.28 percent of total general fund expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 102.59 percent of the total general fund expenditures. The general fund demonstrated an
overall decrease in fund balance of $1,984,055. Revenues increased $87,974 compared to the prior year due to
increases in property tax revenues and charges for services for the reasons previously stated. These increases
were partially offset by decreases in revenues for industrial district taxes, sales tax, and permits issued.
Expenditures increased $1,919,232 compared to the prior year due to an increase in personnel costs and capital
expenditures.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $4,634,050, all of which is restricted for the payment of debt
service. The City experienced a net increase in revenues of $806,932, due to property tax collections in excess of
debt service payments, before a transfer in of $90,958.

The capital improvement bond fund (CIBF) 2016 fund had a decrease in fund balance of $354,822 due to capital
expenditures in excess of new bond proceeds and intergovernmental revenues.

The capital improvement fund had an increase in fund balance of $3,385,264 due to a transfer in from the general
fund for current and future projects in excess of current year capital expenditures.

Proprietary Funds — The City’s proprietary funds financial statements provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City passed a balanced budget planning for no changes to fund balance in the general fund. However, the net
change in fund balance decreased by $1,984,055, resulting in a negative variance of $1,629,997.

Actual general fund revenues were greater than the amended budgeted revenues by $1,730,643 during the fiscal
year. The largest positive variances were from intergovernmental, charges for services, and investment earnings.

Actual expenditures were less than budgeted amounts in total by $2,905,536 for the fiscal year. The largest
positive variances were in general government, recreation, street maintenance, fleet maintenance, and police.

CAPITAL ASSETS

At the end of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental and business-type activities had invested $113,016,119 in a
variety of capital assets and infrastructure (net of accumulated depreciation). This represents a net increase of
$11,949,689.

Major capital asset events during the year included the following:

e City Hall Expansion project current year additions of $3,397,901

e Firearms Range project current year additions of $2,018,221

e Concession Stand/Storage ASC project current year additions of $208,306
e Dow Park Pavilion project current year additions of $953,862

e Maxwell Center/Parking project current year additions of $254,302

e Deer Park Baseball project current year additions of $2,357,825

e Animal Shelter project current year additions of $440,330

e Street Replacement Project current year additions of $495,892

e SSO project current year additions of $288,614

e Water Treatment Plant Building current year additions of $234,001

e Water/Sewer Maintenance Building Project current year additions of $601,241

e Purchase of 13 City vehicles for $877,499
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2017
e Completion of the Waterline Improvements — Hillshire project for $700,256
e Completion of the Water Storage Tank Improvement — Coy Street project for $444,602
e Completion of the Sanitary Sewer Overflow Rehabilitation project for $719,133
e Completion of the Roof Replacement Theatre/Courts project for $601,142
e Completion of the City Hall Parking Lot project for $319,082
e Completion of the Storm Sewer Rehabilitation project for $511,107
e Completion of the Drainage Improvements Golf Course project for $461,685
e Completion of the Cottonwood Park project for $274,754

More detailed information about the City’s capital assets is presented in note III.C. to the financial statements.
LONG-TERM DEBT

At the end of the current year, the City had total bonds and certificates of obligation outstanding of $73,219,998.
Of this amount, $17,004,998 was general obligation debt, $250,000 was revenue bond debt, and certificates of
obligation accounted for $55,965,000.

During the year, the City had a net increase in bonds and certificates of obligation of $2,804,997 as the result of
two new bond issuances. The City also recognized three new capital leases totaling $471,411.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to ten percent of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City is $249,397,828, which is well above the City’s
total general obligation debt outstanding.

More detailed information about the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in note IILD. to the financial
statements.

Current underlying ratings on debt issues are as follows:

Moody's Standard
Investors and
Service Poor's
General Obligation Bonds Aa2 AAA
Certificates of Obligation N/A AAA

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The City budgeted for an increase in property tax revenues of $737,436, which is a 4.57 percent increase from last
year’s budget. This increase is the result of new properties being added to the tax roll and increases in property
values.

For the 2018 fiscal year budget, the total tax rate of $0.720 per $100 of assessed value is the same as the prior
year rate. Compared to the prior year budget, the City budgeted for an increase in total general fund
revenues/expenditures and other resources of approximately $3,978,979, which represents a 10.33 percent
increase.
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City Council approved a current year budget decrease of revenues/expenses of $1,231,138 compared to the prior
year budget for the water and sewer fund.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning this

report or requests for additional financial information should be directed to the City of Deer Park, Director of
Finance, 710 E. San Augustine, Deer Park, Texas 77536.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2017

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net of allowances
Internal balances
Due from component units
Due from primary government
Inventories
Prepaid items
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred outflows of resources - TMRS
Deferred outflows of resources - TESRS
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Due to component units
Due to primary government
Other payables
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability - TMRS
Net pension liability - TESRS

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources - TMRS
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Enabling legislation:
Hotel/motel occupancy tax
Police forfeiture
Municipal court
Special projects - restricted contributions
Capital projects
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Primary Government

Component
Units

Governmental  Business-Type Crime Control
Activities Activities Total District

$ 73,665,770 $ 26,891,781 $ 100,557,551 $ 1,353,274
- 1,028,609 1,028,609 -

2,842,130 993,054 3,835,184 270,129
(62,411) 62,411 - -
23,205 - 23,205 -

- - - 203

109,128 - 109,128 11,771
2,351 - 2,351 -
32,910,522 10,353,813 43,264,335 2,512,207
40,876,004 28,875,780 69,751,784 608,347
150,366,699 68,205,448 218,572,147 4,755,931
378,009 72,083 450,092 -
6,534,467 932,213 7,466,680 90,108
222,424 - 222,424 -
7,134,900 1,004,296 8,139,196 90,108
2,261,483 1,164,824 3,426,307 180,535
1,133,313 166,784 1,300,097 99,648
13,930 774,359 788,289 -

203 - 203 -

- - - 338

656,348 65,160 722,008 -
42,814 4,243 47,057 -
96,367 - 96,367 -
5,851,310 2,246,416 8,097,726 -
46,420,746 37,341,676 83,762,422 -
12,274,158 1,739,754 14,013,912 171,985
626,893 - 626,893 -
69,378,065 43,503,216 112,881,281 452,506
282,354 38,896 321,250 4,524
282,354 38,896 321,250 4,524
56,664,574 16,822,172 73,486,746 3,120,554
4,634,050 146,542 4,780,592 -
1,006,732 - 1,006,732 -
28,693 - 28,693 -
242,479 - 242,479 -
651,516 - 651,516 1,268,455
95,206 - 95,206 -
24,517,930 8,698,918 33,216,848 -
$ 87,841,180 $ 25,667,632 § 113,508,812 $ 4,389,009
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Component Units

Deer Park

Community

Fire Control Development

District Corporation
$ 1,761,838  $ 2,710,883
270,277 530,990
5,190 -
1,208,165 -
3,245,470 3,241,873
94,355 -
94,355 -
11,568 -
30,732 -
22,867 -
164,374 -
229,541 -
1,637 -
1,637 -
1,213,355 -
1,895,292 3,241,873
$ 3,108,647 § 3,241,873
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government $ 8,221,386  § 290,859 $ -3 -
Public safety 13,054,883 3,304,936 - 34,087
Public works 8,112,235 1,329,797 - 109,063
Parks and recreation 351,435 71,678 - -
Community development 9,973,129 1,485,021 2,349,238 843,174
Interest on long-term debt 1,020,878 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 40,733,946 6,482,291 2,349,238 986,324
Business-Type Activities
Water and sewer 10,006,970 10,810,651 - -
Storm water utility 112,159 301,983 - -
Total Business-Type Activities 10,119,129 11,112,634 - -
Total Primary Government $ 50,853,075 $ 17,594925 $ 2,349,238 § 986,324
Component Units
Crime Control District $ 812,326  $ -3 - $ -
Fire Control District 1,305,669 - - -
Deer Park Community Development
Corporation 3,009,583 - - -
Total Component Units § 5,127,578  $ - $ - 3 -

See Notes to Financial Statements.

General Revenues:

Property taxes

Industrial district taxes

Franchise taxes

Sales and use taxes

Hotel occupancy taxes

Investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Transfers

Beginning net position
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Net Revenue (Expense) and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government Component Units

Deer Park
Community
Governmental Business-Type Crime Control Fire Control Development
Activities Activities Total District District Corporation
(7,930,527) $ - 8§ (7.930,527) $ - - -
(9,715,860) - (9,715,860) - - -
(6,673,375) - (6,673,375) - - -
(279,757) - (279,757) - - -
(5,295,696) - (5,295,696) - - -
(1,020,878) - (1,020,878) - - -
(30,916,093) - (30,916,093) - - -
- 803,681 803,681 - - -
- 189,824 189,824 - - -
- 993,505 993,505 - - -
(30,916,093) 993,505 (29,922,588) - - -
- - - (812,326) - -
- - - - (1,305,669) -
- - - - - (3,009,583)
- - - (812,326) (1,305,669) (3,009,583)
17,845,389 - 17,845,389 - - -
11,255,235 - 11,255,235 - - -
2,095,518 - 2,095,518 - - -
6,425,345 - 6,425,345 1,607,891 1,639,119 3,207,725
622,146 - 622,146 - - -
601,325 150,971 752,296 1,594 165 1,041
306,592 - 306,592 40,111 1,436 -
42,405 - 42,405 (16,276) - -
98,200 (98,200) - - - -
39,292,155 52,771 39,344,926 1,633,320 1,640,720 3,208,766
8,376,062 1,046,276 9,422,338 820,994 335,051 199,183
79,465,118 24,621,356 104,086,474 3,568,015 2,773,596 3,042,690
87,841,180 § 25,667,632 § 113,508,812 § 4,389,009 3,108,647 3,241,873
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2017
Debt Capital
General Service CIBF 2016 Improvement
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 37,651,048 § 4,654,123 § 8,664,966 $ 8,755,557
Receivables, net 2,473,328 75,415 - -
Due from other funds - 17,913 - -
Due from component units 23,205 - - -
Inventories 109,128 - - -
Prepaid items 2,351 - - -
Total Assets $ 40,259,060 § 4,747,451 $ 8,664,966 § 8755557
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,146,590 $ 2,791 % 183,726  $ 478,381
Accrued liabilities 1,129,981 - - -
Due to other funds - 35,195 - -
Due to component units 36 - - -
Customer deposits 13,930 - - -
Other payables 493,800 - - 163,048
Unearned revenue 96,367 - - -
Total Liabilities 2,880,704 37,986 183,726 641,429
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - court fines and warrants 214,191 - - -
Unavailable revenue - ambulance 447,436 - - -
Unavailable revenue - industrial district taxes 78 - - -
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 195,852 75,415 - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 857,557 75,415 - -
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Inventories 109,128 - - -
Prepaid items 2,351 - - -
Restricted for:
Debt service - 4,634,050 - -
Enabling legislation - - - -
Special projects - - - -
Capital projects - - 8,481,240 -
Assigned:
Disaster response/repair 816,000 - - -
Park maintenance 223,365 - - -
Patrick's Bayou 1,300,000 - - -
Special events 2,100 - - -
Capital projects - - - 8,114,128
Committed:
City Hall renovations 2,500,000 - - -
Furnishing new City Hall 500,000 - - -
Unassigned 31,067,855 - - -
Total Fund Balances 36,520,799 4,634,050 8,481,240 8,114,128

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances § 40,259,060 $§ 4,747,451 $ 8,664,966 $ 8,755,557

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Nenmajor -
Governmental

Total
Governmental
Funds

§ 13,940,076
293,387
616,372

$ 73,665,770
2,842,130
634,285

23,205

109,128

2,351

$ 14,849,835

$ 77,276,869

$ 449,995
3,332

661,501

167

$ 2,261,483
1,133,313
696,696

203

13,930

656,848

96,367

1,114,995

4,858,840

214,191
447,436

78
271,267

932,972

1,277,904
651,516
11,805,420

109,128
2,351

4,634,050
1,277,904
651,516
20,286,660

816,000
223,365
1,300,000
2,100
8,114,128

2,500,000
500,000
31,067,855

13,734,840

71,485,057

$ 14,849,835

$ 77,276,869
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2017

Total fund balances for governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position

are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, net depreciable

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures

and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Long-term liabilities and deferred outflows and deferred inflows related to
pensions are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are

not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest

Deferred charge on refunding

Net pension liability - TMRS

Net pension liability - TESRS

Deferred outflows - pensions (TMRS)

Deferred outflows - pensions (TESRS)
Deferred inflows - pensions (TMRS)
Noncurrent liabilities due in one year
Noncurrent liabilities due in more than one year

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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32,910,522
40,876,004

(42,814)
378,009
(12,274,158)
(626,893)
6,534,467
222,424
(282,354)
(5,851,310)
(46,420,746)

$ 71,485,057
73,786,526
932,972
(58,363,375)

$ 87,841,180




CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Revenues

Property taxes
Industrial district taxes
Sales taxes

Franchise taxes
Hotel/motel occupancy taxes
Fees and fines
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Community development
Public works
Parks and recreation
Public safety

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in

Transfers (out)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Insurance proceeds

Debt issued

Capital leases

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Beginning fund balances
Ending Fund Balances

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Debt Capital
General Service CIBF 2016 Improvement
12,965,747 4,936,202 - -
11,276,238 - - -
6,425,345 - - -
2,095,518 - - -
1,658,342 - - .
451,948 - - -
261,442 2,154,196 793,174 -
4,011,339 - - -
426,869 13,401 68,377 953
53,733 - - -
39,626,521 7,103,799 861,551 953
7,661,831 - - -
7,970,793 - - -
6,159,421 - - 177,167
55,861 - - -
11,107,305 - - -
2,275,771 - 3,916,373 4,227,670
346,305 5,206,315 - -
19,990 1,090,552 - -
35,597,277 6,296,867 3,916,373 4,404,837
4,029,244 806,932 (3,054,822) (4,403,884)
1,244,048 90,958 - 7,789,148
(7,806,402) - - -
42,405 - - -
35,239 - - -
- - 2,700,000 -
471,411 - - -
(6,013,299) 90,958 2,700,000 7,789,148
(1,984,055) 897,890 (354,822) 3,385,264
38,504,854 3,736,160 8,836,062 4,728,864
36,520,799 4,634,050 8,481,240 8,114,128
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Total

Nonmajor Governmental
Governmental Funds

-3 17,901,949

- 11,276,238

- 6,425,345

- 2,095,518

622,146 622,146
241,887 1,900,229

- 451,948

92,663 3,301,475
99,363 4,110,702
91,725 601,325
217,620 271,353
1,365,404 48,958,228
125,827 7,787,658
540,274 8,511,067

- 6,336,588

- 55,861

166,492 11,273,797
2,072,921 12,492,735
- 5,552,620

- 1,110,542
2,905,514 53,120,868
(1,540,110) (4,162,640)
17,254 9,141,408
(1,236,806) (9,043,208)
- 42,405

- 35,239

- 2,700,000

- 471,411
(1,219,552) 3,347,255
(2,759,662) (815,385)
16,494,502 72,300,442

13,734,840  $ 71,485,057
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (815,385)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.
Capital asset expenditures 12,984,907
Depreciation expense (3,568,224)
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and certificates of obligation) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance
costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued; whereas, these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.
Principal payments 5,552,620
Amortization of deferred loss on refunding (67,402)
Amortization of premiums on bonds 153,475
Amortization of deferred outflows - pensions (TMRS) (1,549,489)
Amortization of deferred outflows - pensions (TESRS) 28,241
Amortization of deferred inflows - pensions (TMRS) 102,533
Amortization of deferred inflows - pensions (TESRS) 45,632
Compensated absences (60,866)
Bonds issued (2,700,000)
Capital lease activity (471,411)
Closure costs (910)
Net pension liability - TMRS (258,037)
Net pension liability - TESRS (112,652)
Net OPEB obligation (832,410)
Accrued interest 3,591
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. (58,151)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2017
Business-Type Activities
Water and Storm Water
Sewer Utility Total
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 26,545,437 346,344 § 26,891,781
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,028,609 - 1,028,609
Accounts receivable, net 967,523 25,531 993,054
Due from other funds 62,411 - 62,411
Total Current Assets 28,603,980 371,875 28,975,855
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land 591,397 - 591,397
Buildings 3,861,540 - 3,861,540
Utility system 55,746,369 - 55,746,369
Machinery and equipment 4,593,290 - 4,593,290
Construction in progress 9,762,416 - 9,762,416
Less: accumulated depreciation (35,325,419) - (35,325,419)
Total Noncurrent Assets 39,229,593 - 39,229,593
Total Assets 67,833,573 371,875 68,205,448
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources - pensions 904,412 27,801 932,213
Deferred charge on refunding 72,083 - 72,083
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 976,495 27,801 1,004,296
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,164,757 67 1,164,824
Accrued liabilities 166,784 - 166,784
Accrued interest payable - 4,243 4,243
Customer deposits 774,359 - 774,359
Other payables 65,160 - 65,160
Compensated absences 130,891 1,238 132,129
Bonds payable - current 1,953,519 - 1,953,519
Capital leases payable - 160,768 160,768
Total Current Liabilities 4,255,470 166,316 4,421,786
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability - TMRS 1,694,592 45,162 1,739,754
Compensated absences 14,544 137 14,681
Bonds payable, net of deferred charges 37,126,274 - 37,126,274
Capital leases payable - 200,721 200,721
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 38,835,410 246,020 39,081,430
Total Liabilities 43,090,880 412,336 43,503,216
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions 38,693 203 38,896
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 38,693 203 38,896
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 16,822,172 - 16,822,172
Restricted for:
Debt service 146,542 - 146,542
Unrestricted 8,711,781 (12,863) 8,698,918
Total Net Position 25,680,495 (12,863) $ 25,667,632

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel services

Contractual services
Repairs and maintenance
Other supplies and expenses
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment earnings
Interest and fiscal agent fees

Total Nonoperating (Expenses)-

Income Before Transfers
Transfers (out)
Total Transfers
Change in Net Position
Beginning net position
Ending Net Position

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Business-Type Activities

Water and Storm Water
Sewer Utility Total
$ 10,810,651 $ 301,983 $ 11,112,634
10,810,651 301,983 11,1 12,634
3,255,592 103,091 3,358,683
1,197,701 1,140 1,198,841
868,948 - 868,948
1,609,047 166 1,609,213
1,845,135 - 1,845,135
8,776,423 104,397 8,880,820
2,034,228 197,586 2,23 1;814
150,971 - 150,971
(1,230,547) (7,762) (1,238,309)
(1,079,576) (7,762) (1,087,338)
954,652 189,824 1,144,476
(98,200) - (98,200)
(98,200) - (98,200)
856,452 189,824 1,046,276
24,824,043 (202,687) 24,621,356
$ 25,680,495 $ (12,863) $ 25,667,632




CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Page 1 of 2)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments to employees for services

Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfer to other funds

Net Cash (Used) by
Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from debt issuance
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest and fiscal agent fees paid
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Earnings on investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Beginning cash and cash equivalents
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Business-Type Activities

Water and Storm Water
Sewer Utility Total

$ 10,684,885 $ 300,129 10,985,014
(4,296,016) (2,478) (4,298,494)
(2,993,165) (96,578) (3,089,743)

3,395,704 201,073 3,596,777
(98,200) - (98,200)
(98,200) - (98,200)
(4,378,141) - (4,378,141)

7,234,649 - 7,234,649
(1,573,688) (172,893) (1,746,581)
(1,337,090) (7,762) (1,344,852)
(54,270) (180,655) (234,925)
150,971 - 150,971 -

150,971 - 150,971

3,394,205 20,418 3,414,623

24,179,841 325,926 24,505,767

$ 27,574,046 $ 346,344 27,920,390

$ 26545437 § 346,344 26,891,781

1,028,609 - 1,028,609

$ 27,574,046 $ 346,344 27,920,390




CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Page 2 of 2)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Business-Type Activities
Water and Storm Water
Sewer Utility Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income $ 2,034,228  § 197,586  §$ 2,231,814
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,845,135 - 1,845,135
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts receivable (142,437) (1,854) (144,291)
Deferred outflows of resources 228,699 7,046 235,745
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts payable (632,958) (1,646) (634,604)
Accrued liabilities 24,556 - 24,556
Accrued interest payable - 474 474
Other payables (11,918) - (11,918)
Compensated absences payable 12,375 (1,246) 11,129
Net pension liability 35,432 1,184 36,616
Deferred inflows of resources (14,079) 471) (14,550)
Customer deposits 16,671 - 16,671
Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities $ 3,395,704  § 201,073  $ 3,596,777

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
September 30, 2017
Senior
Citizens
Trust LEPC
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 113,104  $ 146,688
Total Assets §$ 113,104 $ 146,688
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 8 11,381
Due to others - 135,307
Total Liabilities $ - 3 146,688
Net Position
Restricted - $ 113,104 §$ -
Total Net Position $ 113,104  § -

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Additions
Investment earnings

Beginning net position

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Total Additions

Change in Net Position

47

Ending Net Position

Senior
Citizens
Trust
$ 775
775
775
112,329
$ 113,104
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

The City of Deer Park, Texas (the “City”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas in
1948 and adopted a home-rule charter in December 1960. The charter provides for a “mayor council-
manager” form of government with the elective body empowered to enact local legislation, adopt
budgets, and determine policies. A mayor and six council members are elected to “at large” positions
for two-year terms. The City Manager is appointed by the elective body and is responsible for the
administrative affairs of the City.

The City provides for the following services: police, fire and emergency medical, water and sewer,
street maintenance, sanitation, planning, parks and recreation, library, and general and
administrative.

The City is an independent political subdivision of the State of Texas governed by an elected six-
member council and a mayor and is considered a primary government. As required by generally
accepted accounting principles, these basic financial statements present the activities of the City
(primary government) and its component units. Component units are legally separate organizations
for which the City is financially accountable or other organizations whose nature and significant
relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority
of the component unit’s board, and (i) either the City’s ability to impose its will on the organization
or (ii) there is potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial
burden on the City. '

The basic financial statements contain discretely presented component units. Each discretely
presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.

Considerations regarding the potential for inclusion of other entities, organizations, or functions in
the City’s financial reporting entity are based on criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting
principles. The elements considered in determining that the City’s financial reporting entity status is
that of a primary government are that it has a separately elected governing body, it is legally
separate, and it is fiscally independent of other state and local governments. Additionally,
prescribed criteria under generally accepted accounting principles include considerations pertaining
to organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and considerations
pertaining to organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Deer Park Crime Control and Prevention District

The Deer Park Crime Control and Prevention District (CCPD) is reported in the basic financial
statements as a discretely presented component unit, which emphasizes that the CCPD is legally
separate from the City. The authority for the CCPD is provided by Texas Local Government
Code, Chapter 363. It was established to enhance public safety throughout the City and is funded
by a dedicated one-fourth of one percent sales and use tax approved by the voters in May 2011
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

and effective on October 1, 2011 for a period of five years from the date it began to levy taxes. In
May 2016, the voters approved the continuation of the CCPD for a period of 10 years. In the
event of dissolution, the net position of the CCPD shall be conveyed to the City.

The CCPD is governed by a seven-member board of directors appointed by the City Council. The
City has the ability to impose its will on the CCPD because it may remove appointed members at
will, and it must approve the CCPD budget and any necessary budget amendments. Separate
financial statements are not available for the CCPD.

Deer Park Fire Control, Prevention, and Emergency Medical Services District

The Deer Park Fire Control, Prevention, and Emergency Medical Services District (FCPEMSD)
is reported in the basic financial statements as a discretely presented component unit, which
emphasizes that the FCPEMSD is legally separate from the City. The authority for the
FCPEMSD is provided by Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 344. It was established to
enhance fire control and prevention and emergency medical services programs in the City and is
funded by a dedicated one-fourth of one percent sales and use tax approved by the voters in May
2011 and effective on October 1, 2011 for a period of five years from the date it began to levy
taxes. In May 2016, the voters approved the continuation of the FCPEMSD for a period of 10
years. In the event of dissolution, the net position of the FCPEMSD shall be conveyed to the
City.

The FCPEMSD is governed by a seven-member board of directors appointed by the City Council.
The City has the ability to impose its will on the FCPEMSD because it may remove appointed
members at will, and it must approve the FCPEMSD budget and any necessary budget
amendments. Separate financial statements are not available for the FCPEMSD.

Deer Park Community Development Corporation

The Deer Park Community Development Corporation (the “Corporation™) is reported in the basic
financial statements as a discretely presented component unit, which emphasizes that the
Corporation is legally separate from the City. The Corporation was established by a dedicated
one-half of one percent sales and use tax approved by the voters in May 2015 for economic
development purposes. The authority for the Corporation is' provided by Texas Local
Government Code, Chapter 505, Type B Corporations. The Corporation was formed for the
purpose of financing various public park projects as authorized by Chapter 505 and the election.
The dedicated one-half of one percent sales and use tax became effective on October 1, 2015 and
the first sales tax receipts for the Corporation were received in December 2015.

The Corporation is governed by a seven-member board of directors appointed by the City
Council. The City has the ability to impose its will on the Corporation because it may remove
appointed members at will, and it must approve the Corporation budget and any necessary budget
amendments. Separate financial statements are not available for the Corporation.

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its

component units. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for support. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable.

C. Basis of Presentation — Government-Wide Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.
The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds, while business-
type activities incorporate data from the City’s enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are
provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where the amounts
are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the
City’s water and wastewater functions and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

D. Basis of Presentation — Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The City reports the following governmental funds:

The general fund is used to account for all financial transactions not properly includable in other
funds. The principal sources of revenues include local property taxes, sales and franchise taxes,
licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, and charges for services. Expenditures include
general government, public safety, public works, parks and recreation, and community
development. The general fund is always considered a major fund for reporting purposes.

The debt service fund is used to account for the payment of interest and principal on all general
obligation bonds and other long-term debt of the City. The primary source of revenue for debt
service is local property taxes. The debt service fund is considered a major fund for reporting

purposes.

The special revenue funds are used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes. The special revenue funds
are considered nonmajor funds for reporting purposes.

The capital projects funds are used to account for the expenditures of resources accumulated
from the sale of long-term debt and related interest earnings for capital improvement projects.
The capital improvement fund and the CIBF 2016 fund are considered major funds for reporting
purposes. The remaining capital project funds are considered nonmajor funds for reporting
purposes.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

The City reports the following enterprise funds:

The enterprise funds are used to account for the operations that provide water and wastewater
collection, wastewater treatment operations, and storm water utility operations. The services are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the
governing body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis will be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. The water and sewer fund is considered a major fund for reporting purposes. The storm
water utility fund is considered a nonmajor fund for reporting purposes, but the City has elected
to present it as major.

Additionally, the City reports the following fiduciary fund types:

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for disbursements made from investment
earnings from an initial $100,000 corpus established as a trust fund to benefit citizens age 55 and
older. All disbursements of the senior citizens trust fund must be approved by the City of Deer
Park Senior Citizen’s Foundation Trust Committee. Activities are not budgeted and are
controlled on an event-by-event basis.

The agency fund is used to account for proceeds received for community awareness and
emergency response programs on behalf of the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC).
The City maintains the LEPC fund in a custodial capacity.

During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances
to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances
between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated
so that only the net amounts are included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.
Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds)
are eliminated so that only the net amounts are included as internal balances in the business-type
activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In
fund financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While
reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental
activities are eliminated so that only the net amounts are included as transfers in the governmental
activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities are
eliminated so that only the net amounts are included as transfers in the business-type activities
column.

. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus
and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as

current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of
transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

The government-wide, proprietary, and private-purpose trust fund financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the
accrual basis of accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term
debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met,
including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the
availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). Expenditure-driven grants
are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other
eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the
availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
balances in statewide investment pools (TexPool and TexSTAR). For the purpose of the statement
of cash flows, the proprietary fund types consider temporary investments with a maturity date of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

The City maintains a pooled cash account. Each fund whose monies are deposited in the pooled
cash account has equity therein, and interest earned on the investment of these monies is allocated
based upon relative equity at the previous month end. Amounts on deposit in interest bearing
accounts and other investments are displayed on the combined balance sheet as “cash and equity in
pooled cash.”

2. Investments
Investments are stated at fair value, except for investment pools, which are stated at either amortized

costs or net asset value. Investment income from the pools are allocate back to the respective funds
based on each fund’s equity in the pool.
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The City has adopted a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds as defined in
the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code In summary, the City is
authorized to invest in the following:

Direct obligations of the U.S. government
Direct obligations of the State of Texas
Statewide investment pools

Certificates of deposit that meet certain criteria

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental
fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed
rather than when purchased.

4. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of bonds, as well as other resources set aside for specific purposes, are classified as
restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants or
contractual agreements. Restricted assets of the enterprise fund are restricted by bond covenants for
repayment of debt and to finance construction projects.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 34, infrastructure has been capitalized retroactively. Capital assets are defined by the
City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Major
outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Interest costs incurred in connection with construction of enterprise fund capital assets are
capitalized when the effects of capitalization materially impact the financial statements.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful years:

Estimated
Asset Description Useful Life
Infrastructure 20 to 40 years
Buildings and Improvements 10 to 40 years
Vehicles and Equipment 5 to 20 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 to 10 years
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6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has five items
that qualify for reporting in this category on the government-wide Statement of Net Position. A
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and
its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the
refunded or refunding debt. Deferred outflows have been recognized for the net difference between
the projected and actual investment earnings on the pension plan assets. This amount is deferred and
amortized over a period of five years. Another deferred outflow is recognized for the differences
between the actuarial expectations and the actual economic experience related to the City’s defined
benefit pension plan. This amount is deferred and amortized over the average of the expected service
lives of pension plan members. A deferred charge has been recognized for the changes in actuarial
assumptions. This amount is deferred and amortized over the average of the expected service lives
of pension plan members. Another deferred charge has been recognized for employer pension plan
contributions that were made subsequent to the measurement date through the end of the City’s fiscal
year. This amount is deferred and recognized as a reduction to the net pension liability during the
measurement period in which the contributions were made.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item that
qualifies for reporting in this category in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. Deferred
inflows of resources are recognized as a result of differences between the actuarial expectations and
the actual economic experience related to the City’s defined benefit pension plan. This amount is
deferred and amortized over the average of the expected service lives of pension plan members. At
the fund level, the City has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis
of accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenues from court fines and warrants, ambulance fees, and property taxes. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as inflows of resources in the period that the amount becomes
available.

7. Compensated Absences

Employees earn vacation based on years of service with the City within certain limits. Only
accumulated vacation and earned compensatory time are paid upon termination of employment.
Vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. A liability for these amounts is
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations and retirements.

8. Long-Term Obligations
In government-wide financial statement and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,

long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position.
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Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

The property tax rate is allocated each year between the general and debt service funds. The full
amount estimated to be required for debt service on general obligation debt is provided by the tax
along with the interest earned in the debt service fund. Although a portion of the general obligation
debt was directly related to the purchase of water and sewer infrastructure, the debt service
expenditures are included in the governmental fund financial statements as they are expected to be
paid from debt service tax revenues instead of water system revenues.

Assets acquired under the terms of a capital lease are recorded as liabilities and capitalized in the
government-wide financial statements at the present value of net minimum lease payments at
inception of the lease. In the year of acquisition, capital lease transactions are recorded as other
financing sources and as capital outlay expenditures in the applicable fund. Lease payments
representing both principal and interest are recorded as expenditures in the general fund upon
payment with an appropriate reduction of principal recorded in the government-wide financial
statements.

9. Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as
restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted net position to have been
depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

10. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which
the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted fund balance
to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further,
when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed
fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is
applied last.

11. Fund Balance Policies

Fund balances of governmental funds are reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The City itself can establish
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limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an
assignment (assigned fund balance).

Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact are classified as nonspendable fund balance. Amounts
that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions are classified as restricted.

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority. The
City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City that can, by adoption of a
resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation
imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another
resolution) to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The City Council may also assign
fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue
and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments
generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be
taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is
essential to either remove or revise a commitment.

In accordance with the City’s fund balance policy, City Council, by resolution, has authorized the
City Manager as the official authorized to assign fund balance to a specific purpose. Assignments of
fund balance by the City Manager do not require formal action by the City Council.

The City has established a target level of unassigned fund balance to alleviate revenue shortfalls
and/or unanticipated expenditures to ensure the orderly and continued provision of services. The
City shall strive to maintain an unassigned fund balance in the general fund equal to at least 25
percent of normal recurring operating costs, based on the current year’s budgeted operating
expenditures. Should unassigned fund balance fall below the goal or have a deficiency, the City will
seek to reduce expenditures prior to increasing revenues to replenish fund balance within a
reasonable timeframe.

12. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

13. Pensions

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
mflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and the Texas Emergency Services
Retirement System (TESRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s and TESRS’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS and TESRS. For this

57



CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

purpose, plan contributions' are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the
employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

G. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

1. Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those
dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues.

2. Property Taxes

All taxes due to the City on real or personal property are payable at the Office of the City Tax
Assessor-Collector and may be paid at any time after the tax rolls for the year have been completed
and approved, which is October 1, or as soon thereafter as practicable. Taxes are due upon receipt
and all taxes not paid prior to February 1 are deemed delinquent and are subject to such penalty and
interest established by State law.

3. Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The enterprise funds
also recognize as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the system. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles except the
capital projects funds, which adopt project length budgets. The original budget is adopted by the City
Council prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. The legal level of budgetary control, as defined by the
charter, is the department level. The City Manager may transfer appropriations within a department without
seeking the approval of City Council. The City Council may transfer any unencumbered funds from one
department to another. Appropriations lapse at the end of the year, excluding capital project budgets.
Supplemental budget appropriations were made for the year ended September 30, 2017.
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III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and Investments

As of September 30, 2017, the City had the following investments:

Weighted Average
Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years)
TexSTAR $ 24,247,224 - 0.10
TexPool 30,438,493 0.10
Certificates of deposit 23,146,992 0.50
Total Fair Value § 77,832,709
Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.22

Interest rate risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations and invest operating funds primarily in short-term securities.

Credit risk. The City’s investment policy limits investments in public fund investment pools rated as
to investment quality not less than ‘AAA’ or ‘“AAAm’, or at an equivalent rating by at least one
nationally recognized rating service. As of September 30, 2017, the City’s investments in TexPool
and TexSTAR were rated ‘AAAm’ by Standard & Poor’s.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s investment policy requires funds on
deposit at the depository bank to be collateralized by securities. As of September 30, 2017, market
values of pledged securities were $17,089,283 and bank balances were $11,359,356.

As of September 30, 2017, the discretely presented component units’ bank balances of $5,776,039
were collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or covered by FDIC
insurance.

Custodial credit risk — investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s investment policy requires that it
will seek to safekeep securities at financial institutions, avoiding physical possession. Further, all
trades, where applicable, are executed by delivery versus payment to ensure that securities are
deposited in the City’s safekeeping account prior to the release of funds.
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TexPool

TexPool was established as a trust company with the Treasurer of the State of Texas as trustee,
segregated from all other trustees, investments, and activities of the trust company. The State
Comptroller of Public Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over TexPool. Oversight includes
the ability to significantly influence operations, designation of management, and accountability for
fiscal matters. Additionally, the State Comptroller has established an advisory board composed of
both participants in TexPool and other persons who do not have a business relationship with
TexPool. The advisory board members review the investment policy and management fee structure.
Finally, Standard & Poor’s rates TexPool ‘AAAm’. As a requirement to maintain the rating, weekly
portfolio information must be submitted to Standard & Poor’s, as well as to the office of the
Comptroller of Public Accounts for review.

TexPool is an external investment pool measured at amortized cost. The fair value of the position in
TexPool is the same as the net asset value of TexPool shares. In order to meet the criteria to be
recorded at amortized cost, the investment pool must transact at a stable net asset value per share and
maintain certain maturity, quality, liquidity, and diversification requirements within TexPool.
TexPool transacts at a net asset value of $1.00 per share, has weighted average maturities of 60 days
or less, and weighted average lives of 120 days or less. Investments held are highly rated by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, have no more than five percent of portfolio
with one issuer (excluding U.S. government securities), and can meet reasonably foreseeable
redemptions. TexPool has a redemption notice period of one day and may redeem daily. TexPool’s
authority may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of trading
on major securities markets, general banking moratorium, or national state of emergency that affects
TexPool’s liquidity. The City has no unfunded commitments related to TexPool.

TexSTAR

The Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Fund (TexSTAR) is a local government investment pool
organized under the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government
Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code. TexSTAR was
created in April 2002 by contract among its participating governmental units and is governed by a
board of directors. JPMorgan Fleming Asset Management (USA), Inc. and First Southwest Asset
Management, Inc. act as co-administrators, providing investment management services, participant
services, and marketing. JPMorgan Chase Bank and/or its subsidiary, J.P. Morgan Investor
Services, Inc., provide custodial, transfer agency, fund accounting, and depository services.

TexSTAR is measured at amortized cost. The fair value of the position in TexSTAR is the same as
the net asset value of TexSTAR shares. TexSTAR'’s strategy is to seek preservation of principal,
liquidity, and current income through investment in a diversified portfolio of short-term marketable
securities. TexSTAR has a redemption notice period of one day and may redeem daily. TexSTAR’s
authorities may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of
trading on major securities markets, general banking moratorium, or national or state emergency that
affects TexSTAR’s liquidity. The City has no unfunded commitments related to TexSTAR.
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B. Receivables

'Amounts recorded as receivable as of September 30, 2017 for the City’s individual major and nonmajor
funds, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Nonmajor Water and Storm Water
General Debt Service Governmental Sewer Utility
Taxes $ 2,073,522 301,659 § - S -5 -
Accounts 1,231,646 - 293,387 1,399,559 37,229
Ambulance 2,594,710 - - - -
Less allowance (3,426,550) (226,244) - (432,036) (11,698)
Total §$§ 2,473,328 75,415  § 293387 § 967,523  § 25,531

C. Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for governmental activities for the year end:

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases (Decreases) Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 22,791,056  $ - 8 - $ 22,791,056
Construction in progress 1,808,145 9,442,619 (1,131,298) 10,119,466
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 24,599,201 9,442 619 (1,131,298) 32,910,522
Other capital assets:
Buildings 23,207,533 601,142 - 23,808,675
Improvements 62,157,531 2,620,785 - 64,778,316
Machinery and equipment 18,654,105 1,451,659 (250,709) 19,855,055
Total other capital assets 104,019,169 4,673,586 (250,709) 108,442,046
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (11,127,307) (583,688) - (11,710,995)
Improvements (39,978,843) (1,612,122) - (41,590,965)
Machinery and equipment (13,142,377) (1,372,414) 250,709 (14,264,082)
Total accumulated depreciation (64,248,527) (3,568,224) 250,709 (67,566,042)
Other capital assets, net 39,770,642 1,105,362 - 40,876,004
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net 64,369,843 $§ 10,547,981 $ (1,131,298) 73,786,526
Less associated debt (37,691,415)
Plus deferred charge on refunding 378,009
Plus unspent bond proceeds 20,191,454
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 56,664,574
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Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government
Public safety

Public works

Parks and recreation
Community development

Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense

Construction in progress and remaining commitments under
governmental fund projects at year end are as follows:

$ 348,561
517,694
1,524,110
306,278
871,581

$ 3,568,224

related construction contracts for

Authorized Contract Remaining

Project Description Contract Expenditures Contract
Concession Stand/Storage - ASC $ 249,827  $ 208,306 $ 41,521
Restroom Facility - Bayou Bend 93,570 75,937 17,633
Dow Park Pavilion and Improvements 698,222 277,701 420,521
Maxwell Center/Parking 1,787,000 271,169 1,515,831
Girls Softball Renovation 2,919,425 191,272 2,728,153
Deer Park Baseball 3,009,000 2,803,198 205,802
Soccer Field 3,659,688 281,496 3,378,192
Community Center & Gym 26,000 11,439 14,561
Animal Shelter 2,398,668 448,012 1,950,656
HCFCD B112 Ditch 76,163 20,025 56,138
City Hall Expansion 6,577,966 3,740,128 2,837,838
Wetlands Project 688,809 141,590 547,219
Erin Glenn Storm Sewer Upsizing 242,561 237,826 4,735
Street Replacement Project 5,728,015 495,892 5,232,123

Total § 28154914 § 9,203,991 § 18,950,923
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The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for business-type activities for the year end:

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements ,
Machinery and equipment
Total other capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Primary Government

Beginning (Decreases)/ Ending
Balance Increases Reclassifications Balance
591,397 § - 3 - 8 591,397
8,068,300 3,652,525 (1,958,409) 9,762,416
8,659,697 3,652,525 (1,958,409) 10,353,813
3,861,540 - - 3,861,540
53,164,672 2,581,697 - 55,746,369
4,490,962 102,328 - 4,593,290
61,517,174 2,684,025 - 64,201,199
(1,096,791) (96,087) - (1,192,878)
(29,378,548) (1,462,841) - (30,841,389)
(3,004,945) (286,207) - (3,291,152)
(33,480,284) (1,845,135) - (35,325,419)
28,036,890 838,890 - 28,875,780
36,696,587 $ 4491415 §  (1,958,409) 39,229,593
Less associated debt (39,441,282)
Plus-deferred charge on refunding 72,083
Plus unspent bond proceeds 16,961,778
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 16,822,172

Depreciation was charged to business-type functions as follows:

Water and sewer

Total Business-Type Activities Depreciation Expense

1,845,135

1,845,135

Construction in progress and remaining commitments under related construction contracts for business-
type activities projects at year end are as follows:

Authorized Contract Remaining

Project Description Contract Expenditures Contract
Discharge Header - South Plant $ 97,490 11,865 $ 85,625
Waste Water Treatment Plant - Lagoon Project 486,000 750 485,250
10" Force Main HCFCD 24,700 21,907 2,793
Backwash System Improvements 14,500 7,803 6,697
Water Treatment Plant - Pax System 148,595 29,496 119,099

Total $§ 771,285  § 71,821 8§ 699,464
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The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the component units for the year end:

Component Units

Beginning (Decreases)/ Ending
Balance Increases Reclassifications Balance
Discretely presented component units:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 493986 § 2,023,411  § - 3 2,517,397
Total capital assets not being depreciated 493,986 2,023,411 - 2,517,397
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building 87,641 - - 87,641
Improvements 115,182 - - 115,182
Machinery and equipment 3,062,726 574,420 (106,816) 3,530,330
Total capital assets, being depreciated 3,265,549 574,420 (106,816) 3,733,153
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building (4,382) (2,191) - (6,573)
Improvements (26,126) (8,380) - (34,5006)
Machinery and equipment (1,513,249) (452,851) 90,538 (1,875,562)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,543,757) (463,422) 90,538 (1,916,641)
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 1,721,792 110,998 (16,278) 1,816,512
Discretely Presented Component
Units Capital Assets, Net § 2,215,778  § 2,134,409 $ (16,278) 4,333,909
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 4,333,909

Depreciation was charged to component units as follows:

Crime control district $ 267,730
Fire control district 195,692
Total Component Units Depreciation Expense  $ 463,422

Construction in progress and remaining commitments under related construction contracts for

component unit projects at year end are as follows:

Authorized Contract Remaining
Project Description Contract Expenditures Contract
Firearms Range $ 2,048,939 1,788,782  § 260,157
Fire Station 3 - EMS Annex/Addition 29,810 5,190 24,620

Total $ 2,078,749 § 1,793972 §

284,777
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The following is a summary of changes in the City’s total governmental long-term liabilities for the

year end:
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
v Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds $ 15,345,013 $ - $ 2086315 § 13,258,698 * $§ 1,278,024
Certificates of obligation 22,720,000 2,700,000 3,120,000 22,300,000 * 3,025,000
Capital leases 743,670 471,411 346,305 868,776 * 365,311
Premium on bond issuance 1,417,416 - 153,475 1,263,941 * 153,475
Compensated absences 1,083,023 1,242,145 1,181,279 1,143,889 1,029,500
Net pension liability - TMRS 12,016,121 4,541,972 4,283,935 12,274,158 -
Net pension liability - TESRS 514,241 112,652 - 626,893 -
Net OPEB obligation 12,552,898 1,440,807 608,397 13,385,308 -
Closure costs 50,534 910 - 51,444 -
Total Governmental Activities $§ 66,442916 $ 10,509,897 § 11,779,706 $ 65,173,107 $ 5,851,310
Long-term debt due in more than one year § 59,321,797
*Debt associated with governmental activities capital assets $ 37,691,415
Business-Type Activities:
General obligation bonds $  4,334988 $ - 3 588,688 § 3,746,300 ** $ 521,976
Certificates of obligation 27,515,000 6,885,000 735,000 33,665,000 ** 1,075,000
Revenue bonds 500,000 - 250,000 250,000 ** 250,000
Capital leases 534,382 - 172,893 361,489 ** 160,768
Premium on bond issuance 1,175,387 349,649 106,543 1,418,493 ** 106,543
Net pension liability 1,703,138 644,533 607,917 1,739,754 -
Compensated absences 135,681 154,973 143,844 146,810 132,129
Total Business-Type Activities $ 35898576 $ 8,034,155 § 2,604,885 $§ 41,327,846 $ 2,246,416
Long-term debt due in more than one year $ 39,081,430
**Debt associated with business-type activities capital assets $§ 39,441,282
Discretely Presented Component Units:
Net pension liability 3$ 327,959 $ 147,858  § 139,458 § 336,359 3 -
Total Discretely Presented
Component Units $ 327959 § 147,858  $ 139,458  $ 336,359 $ -

Long-term liabilities of the City’s governmental activities are not due and payable in the current
period and, accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities in the governmental funds. For the
governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund. For
governmental activities, the liability for the net pension obligation and net other post-employment

benefits obligation is

fully liquidated by the general fund.
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Governmental activities long-term debt at year end was comprised of the following debt issues:

Interest
Description Rates Balance
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds
2007 General Obligation Bonds . 3.80% $ 320,000
2010 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 4.00-4.50% 1,215,796
2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 2.00-3.00% 3,845,000
2014 General Obligation Bonds 3.00-4.00% 885,000
2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 3.00-4.00% 732,902
2016 Limited Tax Refunding Bonds 2.25-4.00% 6,260,000
Total General Obligation Bonds 13,258,698
Certificates of Obligation
2007 Certificates of Obligation 4.25% 105,000
2010 Certificates of Obligation 4.00-5.00% 6,070,000
2015 Certificates of Obligation 2.00-4.00% 5,995,000
2016 Certificates of Obligation 1.59% 7,430,000
2017 Certificates of Obligation 1.89% 2,700,000
Total Certificates of Obligation 22,300,000
Total Bonds and Certificates of Obligations 35,558,698
Capital Leases
100' Pierce Velocity Platform 3.64% 55,995
2013 Freightliner Trash Truck 1.38% 18,663
2014 Freightliner Tractor Truck 1.59% 11,706
2016 Freightliner Trash Truck 1.55% 95,244
2016 Golf Cars and Beverage Vehicle 3.15% 271,854
2017 Freightliner Trash Truck 1.84% 151,836
2018 Freightliner 108SD 1.83% 177,848
2018 Freightliner Bus 1.69% 85,630
’ Total Capital Leases 868,776

Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt $ 36,427,474
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Business-type activities long-term debt at year end was comprised of the following debt issues:

Interest
Description Rates Balance
Business-Type Activities
General Obligation Bonds
2010 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 4.00-4.50% $ 804,201
2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 2.50-3.00% - 1,760,000
2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 3.00-4.00% 1,182,099
Total General Obligation Bonds 3,746,300
Certificates of Obligation
2011 Certificates of Obligation 2.50-4.00% 2,900,000
2012 Certificates of Obligation 2.00-3.00% 4,450,000
2013 Certificates of Obligation 2.50-3.35% 6,765,000
2014 Certificates of Obligation 3.00-4.00% 6,025,000
2015-A Certificates of Obligation 2.00-3.50% 6,810,000
2016-A Certificates of Obligation 2.00-4.00% 6,715,000
Total Certificates of Obligation 33,665,000
Revenue Bonds
2002 Waterworks and Sewer System 3.40% 250,000
Total Revenue Bonds 250,000
Capital Leases
2014 Freightliner Street Sweeper 1.42% 74,142
Gradall XL.5100 Excavator 1.81% 287,347
Total Capital Leases 361,489
Total Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt $ 38,022,789

The City is not obligated in any manner for special assessment debt.

Annual debt service requirements for governmental activities are as follows:

Year Governmental Activities

Ending General Obligation Bonds Certificates of Obligation

Sep 30 Principal "~ Interest Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 1,278,024 $ 397,424 § 3,025,000 S 583,105 $ 5,283,553

2019 1,512,962 353,133 2,190,000 524,863 4,580,958

2020 1,564,953 303,642 2,245,000 466,072 4,579,667

2021 1,539,671 254,861 2,305,000 403,254 4,502,786

2022 1,483,025 205,597 2,360,000 343,462 4,392,084
2023-2027 5,450,063 463,300 8,625,000 865,627 15,403,990
2028-2032 295,000 57,500 1,550,000 119,000 2,021,500
2033-2034 135,000 5,500 - 140,500

Total § 13,258,698 $§ 2,040,957 § 22,300,000 §

3,305,383 § 40,905,038
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The annual debt service requirements for business-type activities are as follows:

Year Business-Type Activities
Ending General Obligation Bonds Certificates of Obligation Revenue Bonds
Sep 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 521,976 $ 111,931 $§ 1,075,000 $ 1,062,065 $ 250,000 $ 4250 $§ 3,025222
2019 667,038 92,367 1,140,000 1,035,665 - - 2,935,070
2020 660,047 69,983 1,200,000 1,005,828 - - 2,935,858
2021 590,329 48,839 1,405,000 969,603 - - 3,013,771
2022 426,975 32,803 1,475,000 928,328 - - 2,863,106
2023-2027 879,935 27,088 9,970,000 3,847,010 - - 14,724,033
2028-2032 - - 12,250,000 1,982,745 - - 14,232,745
2033-2036 - - 5,150,000 253,931 - - 5,403,931
Total § 3,746,300 § 383,011 § 33,665,000 $§ 11,085,175 § 250,000 § 4,250 § 49,133,736

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the City for which its full
faith and credit are pledged. Repayment of general obligation bonds for governmental activities is
from taxes levied on all taxable property located within the City, while business-type activities will
be paid with utility rate revenues. A number of limitations and restrictions are contained in the
various bond ordinances. The City has complied with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Certificates of Obligations

The City has issued tax and revenue certificates of obligation to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. Certificates of obligation are direct obligations of the City for
which its full faith and credit are pledged. Repayment of certificates for governmental activities is
from taxes levied on all taxable property located within the City, while business-type activities will
be paid with utility rate revenues. A number of limitations and restrictions are contained in the
various bond ordinances. The City has complied with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Revenue Bonds

The City also issues bonds where the City pledges net revenues derived from the City’s waterworks
and sanitary sewer system to pay for debt service. Revenue bonds were issued to finance
construction and improvements to the waterworks and sanitary sewer system. A number of
limitations and restrictions are contained in the various bond ordinances. The City has complied
with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Capital [eases

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of equipment,
principally consisting of vehicles and equipment. These leases qualify as capital leases for
accounting purposes (titles transfer at the end of the lease terms) and, therefore, have been recorded
at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception. Capital
leases bear interest rates ranging from 1.38 percent to 3.64 percent and have maturity dates ranging
from 2018 to 2021.
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Annual requirements to satisfy these obligations are as follows:

Year Governmental Activities
Ending Capital Leases
Sep 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 365311 § 15,668 $ 380,979
2019 259,294 9,179 268,473
2020 244,171 3,510 247,681
Total § 868,776  § 28,357  § 897,133
Year Business-Type Activities
Ending Capital Leases
Sep 30 Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 160,768  § 4962 % 165,730
2019 88,204 2,899 91,103
2020 89,811 1,292 91,103
2021 22,706 68 22,774
Total $ 361,489 8§ 9,221 $ 370,710

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Assets:
Machinery and equipment $ 2,861,472
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,036,570)
Total § 1,824,902
Federal Arbitrage

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions consisting of complex
regulations with respect to issuance of tax-exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage
regulations deal with the investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the
interest yield paid to bondholders. Generally, all interest paid to bondholders can be retroactively
rendered taxable if applicable rebates are not reported and paid to the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) at least every five years for applicable bond issues. Accordingly, there is the risk that if such
calculations are not performed, or are not performed correctly, a substantial liability to the City

could result. The City periodically engages an arbitrage consultant to perform the calculations in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the IRS.

E. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Interfund loans between the primary government funds during the year were as follows:

Due To Due From Amounts
Debt service Nonmajor governmental $ 17,913
Water and sewer Debt service 35,195
Water and sewer Nonmajor governmental 27,216
Nonmajor governmental Nonmajor governmental 616,372
$ 696,696
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Amounts recorded as “due to/due from” are considered to be temporary loans and will be repaid
during the following year.

Transfers between the primary government funds during the year were as follows:

Transfer In ' Transfer Out Amounts
General Water and sewer $ 98,200
General Nonmajor governmental 1,145,848
Debt service Nonmajor governmental 90,958
Capital improvements General 7,789,148
Nonmajor governmental General 17,254
$ 9,141,408

Amounts transferred between funds relate to the following activities:

e Transfers to the debt service fund were made to transfer interest earned from bond funds for
the repayment of debt service and debt service related expenditures in accordance with
applicable ordinances and federal regulations.

e The general fund transferred $7,789,148 to the capital improvement fund to fund current and
future capital improvement projects.

e Transfers to the general fund were made by the water and sewer fund and the nonmajor
governmental funds to reimburse the general fund for the respective funds’ portion of
expenditures paid by the general fund.

e Transfers to the nonmajor governmental funds were made by the general fund for public
safety expenditures.

F. Fund Equity

As of September 30, 2017, $1,277,904 of the City’s total fund balance is restricted by enabling
legislation.

Deficit Net Position

The storm water utility fund has a deficit net position balance of $12,863 at September 30, 2017.
G. Restatement of Net Position

The City has restated governmental activities beginning net position for the recognition of a prior
year capital lease and related capital assets as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Beginning net position as reported $ 79,444,961
Capital lease payable (333,612)
Capital lease assets 353,769

Beginning net position - restated $ 79,465,118
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City participates along with 2,617
other entities in the Texas Municipal League’s Intergovernmental Risk Pools (the “Pool”). The Pool
purchases commercial insurance at group rates for participants in the Pool. The City has no
additional risk or responsibility to the Pool, outside of the payment of insurance premiums. The City
has not significantly reduced insurance coverage or had settlements which exceeded coverage
amounts for the past three years.

Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from granting agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amounts of expenditures
that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in several lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of the City’s management that resolution of these matters will not
have a material adverse effect of the financial condition of the City.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement
trends, including frequency and amount of payouts, and other economic and social factors. No claim
liabilities are reported at year end.

Pension Plans

1. Texas Municipal Retirement System

Plan Description

The City participates as one of 872 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an
agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle
G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the “TMRS Act”) as an agent multiple-employer retirement
system for municipal employees. in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general
administration and management of TMRS with a six-member Board of Trustees (the “Board™).
Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not
fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan
under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.
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Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest,
and the City-financed monetary credits, with interest, were used to purchase an annuity. Members
may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment options. Members may also
choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a partial lump sum distribution in an amount equal to
12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75 percent of the member’s deposits and
interest.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in
the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

2017 2016
Employee deposit rate 7.00% 7.00%
Matching ratio (City to employee) 2to 1 2to 1
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service requirement eligibility
(expressed as age/yrs of service) 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20
Updated service credit 100% Repeating, 100% Repeating,
Transfers Transfers
Annuity increase (to retirees) 50% of CPI 50% of CPI

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At the December 31, 2016 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 201
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving, benefits 120
Active employees 299
Total 620

Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either five percent, six percent, or seven percent
of employee gross earnings, and the City-matching percentages are either 100 percent, 150 percent,
or 200 percent, both as adopted by the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing
TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age
Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount
necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City were required to contribute seven percent of their annual gross earnings
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City were 14.36 percent and 13.82 percent in
calendar years 2017 and 2016, respectively. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2017 were $2,650,445, which were equal to the required contributions.
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Net Pension Liability

The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2016 and the Total
Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The TPL in the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees,
and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables
with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109 percent and female rates multiplied
by 103 percent. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for
future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined
Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109
percent and female rates multiplied by 103 percent with a three-year set-forward for both males and
females. In addition, a three percent minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for
younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by
scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the three percent floor.

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period December 31, 2010
through December 31, 2014. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were
updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated
December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, along
with a change to the EAN actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed annually. Plan assets
are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation, as well as the
production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. In determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under
the various alternative asset allocation portfolios, the actuary focused on the area between (1)
arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the geometric
mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive).
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The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return (Arithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.55%
International Equity 17.5% 6.35%

Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.00%

Non-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 4.15%

Real Return 10.0% 4.15%

Real Estate 10.0% 4.75%

Absolute Return 10.0% 4.00%

Private Equity ' 5.0% 7.75%
Total 100.0%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 6.75 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the
rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL.

Changes in the NPL
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
A B) A)-®
Changes for the year:
Service cost $ 3,179,205 $ -3 3,179,205
Interest 7,931,982 - 7,931,982
Difference between expected and actual experience (18,490) - (18,490)
Contributions - employer ) - 2,519,299 (2,519,299)
Contributions - employee - 1,276,057 (1,276,057)
Net investment income - 7,078,549 (7,078,549)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (5,758,334) (5,758,334) -
Administrative expense - (79,953) 79,953
Other changes - (4,308) 4,308
Net Changes 5,334,363 5,031,310 303,053
Balance at December 31, 2015 118,800,412 104,753,194 14,047,218

Balance at December 31,2016 $ 124,134,775 § 109,784,504 § 14,350,271
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Sensitivity of the NPL to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the NPL of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75 percent, as
well as what the City’s NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate = Discount Rate
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
City's Net Pension Liability $ 31,524,256  $ 14,350,271  $ 276,764

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-
issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the City recognized net pension expense of
$4,648,417.

At September 30, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic experience $ 66,837 $ 327,411
Changes in actuarial assumptions 664,536 -
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 4,876,353 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,043,417 -
Total § 7,651,143  $ 327,411

$2,043,417 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018.

75



CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Pension
September 30 Expense
2018 $ 1,799,867
2019 1,799,867
2020 1,632,587
2021 49,169
2022 (1,175)

Total $ 5,280,315

2. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System

Plan Description

The City participates in a cost-sharing multiple employer pension plan that has a special funding
situation. The plan is administered by the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS)
and established and administered by the State of Texas (the “State”) to provide pension benefits for
emergency services personnel who serve without significant monetary remuneration. At August 31,
2016, there were 199 contributing fire and/or emergency services department members participating
in TESRS. Eligible participants include volunteer emergency services personnel who are members in
good standing of a member department.

On August 31, 2016, the pension system membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 3,167
Terminated members entitled to, but not yet receiving, benefits 2,200

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about TESRS’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued CAFR
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. TESRS issues a publicly
available annual financial report, which includes financial statements, notes, and required
supplementary information, and can be obtained at www.tesrs.org. The separately issued actuarial
valuations that may be of interest are also available at the same link.

Benefits Provided

Senate Bill 411, 65th Legislature, Regular Session (1977), created TESRS and established the
applicable benefit provisions. The 79th Legislature, Regular Session (2005), re-codified the
provisions and gave the TESRS Board of Trustees (the “Board”) authority to establish vesting
requirements, contribution levels, benefit formulas, and eligibility requirements by Board rule. The
benefit provisions include retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. Members are
50 percent vested after the tenth year of service, with the vesting percentage increasing ten percent
for each of the next five years of service so that a member becomes 100 percent vested with 15 years
of service.
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Upon reaching age 55, each vested member may retire and receive a monthly pension equal to his
vested percentage multiplied by six times the governing body’s average monthly contribution over
the member’s years of qualified service. For years of service in excess of 15 years, this monthly
benefit is increased at the rate of 6.2 percent compounded annually. There is no provision for
automatic postretirement benefit increases.

On and off-duty death benefits and on-duty disability benefits are dependent on whether or not the
member was engaged in the performance of duties at the time of death or disability. Death benefits
include a lump sum amount or continuing monthly payments to a member’s surviving spouse and
dependent children.

Funding Policy

Contributions are made by governing bodies for the participating departments. No contributions are
required from the individuals who are members of TESRS, nor are they allowed. The governing
bodies of each participating department are required to make contributions for each month a member
performs emergency services for a department (this minimum contribution is $36 per member and
the department may make a higher monthly contribution for its members). This is referred to as a
Part One contribution, which is the legacy portion of the TESRS contribution that directly impacts
future retiree annuities.

The State is required to contribute an amount necessary to make TESRS “actuarially sound” each
year, which may not exceed one-third of the total of all contributions made by participating
governing bodies in a particular year.

The Board rule defining contributions was amended effective July 27, 2014 to add the potential for
actuarially determined Part Two contributions that would be required only if the expected future
annual contributions from the State are not enough with the Part One contributions to provide an
adequate contribution arrangement as determined by the most recent actuarial valuation. This Part
Two portion, which is actuarially determined as a percentage of the Part One portion (not to exceed
15 percent), is to be actuarially adjusted near the end of each even-numbered calendar year based on
the most recent actuarial valuation. Based on the actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2016, the Part
Two contributions were established by the Board to be two percent of the Part One contributions
beginning September 1, 2017.

Additional contributions may be made by governing bodies within two years of joining TESRS to
grant up to ten years of credit for service per member. Prior service purchased must have occurred
before the department began participation in TESRS.

A small subset of participating departments has a different contribution arrangement that is being
phased out over time. In this arrangement, contributions made in addition to the monthly
contributions for active members are made by local governing bodies on a pay-as-you-go basis for
members who were pensioners when their respective departments merged into TESRS. There is no
actuarial impact associated with this arrangement as the pay-as-you-go contributions made by these
governing bodies are always equal to benefit payments paid by TESRS.

Contributions

The contribution requirement per active emergency services personnel member per month is not
actuarially determined. Rather, the minimum contribution provisions were set by Board rule, and
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there is no maximum contribution rate. For the fiscal year ending August 31, 2016, total

_contributions (dues, prior service, and interest on prior service financing) of $98,600 were paid by
the City. The State appropriated $1,583,825 for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2016 to TESRS as
a whole.

Actuarial Assumptions

The TPL in the August 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial valuation date 8/31/2016
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level dollar, open
Remaining amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method Market value smoothed by
a 5-year deferred

recognition method with an

80%/120% corridor on
market value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return* 7.75%
Projected salary increases N/A
*Includes inflation at 3.00%
Cost of living adjustments None

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Lives Mortality Tables for males and
for females projected to 2024 by scale AA. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected future net real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These components are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
(currently 4.97%) and by adding expected inflation (3.00%). In addition, the final 7.75 percent
assumption reflected a reduction of 0.22 percent for adverse deviation. The target allocation and
expected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following
table:

Long-Term
Target Expected Net Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Equities
Large cap domestic 32.0% 5.72%
Small cap domestic 10.0% 5.96%
Developed international 21.0% 6.21%
Emerging markets 6.0% 7.18%
Master limited partnership 5.0% 7.61%
Fixed income
Domestic 21.0% 1.61%
International 5.0% 1.81%
Total 100.0%
Weighted average 4.97%
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.75 percent. No projection of cash flows was used
to determine the discount rate because the August 31, 2016 actuarial valuation showed that expected
contributions would pay the normal cost and amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) in 30 years using the conservative level dollar amortization method. Because of the 30-year
amortization period with the conservative amortization method and with a lower value of assets,
TESRS’s fiduciary net position is expected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return

on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the TPL.

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the NPL of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as
well as what the City’s NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (6.75%) or one percentage point higher (8.75%) than the current rate:

. 1% Decrease

in Discount 1% Increase in
Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%)
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 1,061,340 $ 626,893 $ 350,085

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

At August 31, 2016, the City reported a liability of $626,893 for its proportionate share of TESRS’s
NPL. The amount recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the NPL, the related State
support, and the total portion of the NPL that was associated with the City were as follows:

City's proportionate share of the collective NPL $ 626,893
*State's proportionate share that is associated with the City 216,723
Total §$ 843,616

*Calculated using the City’s proportionate share of contributions multiplied by the State’s share of
the collective NPL.

The TPL used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2016.
GASB Statement No. 68 requires the NPL to be measured as of a date no earlier than the end of the
employer’s prior fiscal year. TESRS did not roll forward (nor did they provide the necessary
information for the participants to roll forward) the NPL to be measured as of a date no earlier than
the end of the City’s prior fiscal year. While the City acknowledges that the measurement date does
not fall within this 12-month period, the City elected to honor the conservatism principle and report
the NPL measured as of August 31, 2016. The City used the assumption that any differences in the
NPL measured as of August 31, 2016 versus September 30, 2016 would be immaterial. The
employer’s proportion of the NPL was based on the employer’s contributions to TESRS relative to
the contributions of all employers to TESRS for the period September 1, 2015 through August 31,
2016.
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At August 31, 2016, the employer’s proportion of the collective NPL was 2.152 percent, which was
an increase of 0.225 percent from its proportion measured as of August 31, 2015.

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the TPL during
the measurement period.

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the TPL during the
measurement period.

For the year ended August 31, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $128,179. The City
recognized on-behalf revenues of $34,087 calculated by taking the State’s total contributions to
TESRS multiplied by the City’s proportionate share.

At August 31, 2016, the City reported its proportionate share of the TESRS’s deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings $ 118,704  § -
Changes in assumptions 13,350 -
Differences between expected and actual experience 970 -
Contributions paid to TESRS subsequent to the measurement date 89,400 -

Total §$ 222424 § )

The net amounts of the employer’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Pension
September 30 Expense
2018 $ 34,797
2019 34,797
2020 55,079
2021 8,351
Total § 133,024

Other Post Employment Benefits

1. Healthcare Plan

Plan Description

The City provides medical benefits (the “Plan”) to eligible retirees through a single-employer
defined benefit plan. The City pays a portion of the current monthly contribution rate for individual
medical benefits for retirees meeting certain eligibility requirements. All active employees who
retire directly from the City and meet the eligibility criteria may participate. There is no City subsidy
for dependent coverage and the cost of elected dependent coverage is paid entirely by the retiree.
Medical benefits continue after age 65 with the medical coverage offered as a supplement to
Medicare benefits. Dental and life insurance benefits are also made available to retirees, but these
benefits are not subsidized by the City and are not included in this valuation.
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The City’s annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The City’s
annual OPEB cost for the current year and the related information is listed below:

Annual required contribution $ 1,650,529
Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation 502,116
Amortization of prior year net OPEB obligation (711,838)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,440,807
Contributions made (608,397)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 832,410
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year 12,552,898
Net OPEB obligation-end of year $ 13,385,308

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for the prior three years (four percent discount rate and level percentage of pay
amortization) are as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Employer APC Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Cost (APC) Contribution Contributed Obligation
2015 3 1,961,395  $ 430,602 21.95% $ 11,510,879
2016 3 1,505,502 $ 463,483 30.79% $ 12,552,898
2017 $ 1,440,807 $ 608,397 42.23% $ 13,385,308

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of October 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was zero percent funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $17,097,368 and the actuarial value of assets was $0,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $17,097,368. The annual covered
payroll as of September 30, 2017 was $18,290,865 and the UAAL as a percentage of this number
was 93.47 percent.

The projection of future payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the ARC of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The projected unit credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the ARC for the City’s Plan.
Using the Plan benefits, the present health premiums and set of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated
future payments are projected. The projected unit credit method then provides for a systematic
funding for these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefits
being earned by covered members, as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued liability.

Projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
Plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are

“designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Projected unit credit

Amortization Method Level dollar

Amortization Period 30 year, open amortization

Asset Valuation Method Market value

Investment Rate of Return 1.00%

Inflation Rate 3.00%

Projected Salary Increases N/A

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Level trend rate of 5.50%.
Contributions were trended

at 2.50%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits.

2. TMRS Supplemental Death Benefits Plan

Plan Description

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life
insurance plan operated by the TMRS known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF).
The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and
retired employees. The City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the
SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following
January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings for the 12-month
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an
“other post employment benefit,” or OPEB. For the year ended September 30, 2017, the City
offered the supplemental death benefit to both active and retired employees.
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Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The
funding policy for the SDBF program is to ensure that adequate resources are available to meet all
death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance
during employees’ entire careers.

The City’s contribution rates to the TMRS SDBF, for the retiree portion, for the years ended
September 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015 are shown below. Annual SDBF costs were $7,449, $7,530,
and $6,980 for 2017, 2016, and 2014, respectively.

2017 2016 2015
Annual Req. Contrib. (Rate) 0.04% 0.04% 0.04%
Actual Contribution Made 0.04% 0.04% 0.04%
Percentage of ARC Contrib. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

3. Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan”) created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to
defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. The Plan’s trust
arrangements are established to protect deferred compensation amounts of employees under the Plan
from any other use than intended under the Plan (eventual payment to employees deferring the
compensation) in accordance with federal tax laws. Amounts of compensation deferred by
employees under Plan provisions are disbursed monthly by the City to a third-party administrator.
The third-party administrator handles all funds in the Plan and makes investment decisions and
disburses funds to employees in accordance with Plan provisions.

Industrial District Contracts

A significant portion of the City’s revenue is derived from separate contractual agreements (the
“Contracts”) with 27 separate industrial companies (the “Companies™) that lie within the City’s
extraterritorial jurisdiction (known as the “Industrial District”). In 2007, the City and the Companies
located in the Industrial District agreed to new Contracts extending to December 31, 2014, The City
completed negotiations on new Contracts with the Companies located in the Industrial District, with
a new expiration date of December 31, 2026. These Contracts call for each Company to annually
render to the City a written description of its land, improvements, and tangible personal property as
of the immediately preceding January 1 (based on the opinion of the legal counsel for the Harris
County Appraisal District that the value of land and improvements that were not physically located
within the corporate area of the City could not be included in the City’s tax roll). The Companies
have agreed to pay an amount “in lieu” of taxes in the unannexed area of an amount equal to the sum
of 63 percent of the amount of ad valorem taxes that would be payable to the City if all of the
Company’s land and improvements that existed on each January 1 had been within the corporate
limits of the City. Under the new Contract, the Companies have agreed to pay an amount “in lieu”
of taxes in the unannexed area of an amount equal to the sum of 63 percent of the amount of ad
valorem taxes that would be payable to the City if all of the Company’s land and improvements that
existed on January 1, 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018 had been within the corporate limits of the City;

&3



CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

64 percent of the amount of ad valorem taxes that would be payable to the City if all of the
Company’s land and improvements that existed on January 1, 2019, 2020, 2021, and 2022 had been
within the corporate limits of the City; and 65 percent of the amount of ad valorem taxes that would
be payable to the City if all of the Company’s land and improvements which existed on January 1,
2023, 2024, 2025, and 2026 had been within the corporate limits of the City. Payments in lieu of
taxes on new construction will be based on percentages of new value as described in the Contract as
ten percent the first year, 20 percent the second year, 30 percent the third year, 40 percent the fourth
year, 50 percent the fifth year, and 100 percent after the fifth year of operations. For new
construction in excess of $100,000,000, the new Contracts allow for each Company to negotiate
these payment percentages. If those particular negotiations are not completed by January 1, the
stated Contract rates will apply to the new construction value. During the fiscal year, the City
received revenues of $11,276,238 related to these contracts.

Operating Leases

Effective May 29, 2013, the City entered into a lease agreement (the “Agreement™) with a tenant to
operate the City’s municipal golf course. The Agreement extends through May 31, 2023. The term
of the Agreement may be extended for four, five-year extensions upon the mutual agreement of the
City and the tenant. As part of the Agreement, the City receives monthly rent payments based upon
an annual minimum rent amount plus a percentage of gross revenues. However, in September 2016,
an amendment to the Agreement temporarily reduced the monthly rent payment and temporarily
eliminated the percentage rent payment.

Transfer Station Closure Cost

The City operates a municipal solid waste transfer station (the “Transfer Station”), which is currently
permitted for 200 tons per day of municipal solid waste transfer. Transfer stations are facilities
where municipal solid waste is unloaded from collection vehicles and held until the waste is
reloaded onto larger transport vehicles for shipment to landfills or other treatment/disposal facilities.

As of September 30, 2017, the total estimated closure costs for the City’s Transfer Station are
$51,444. The reported liability represents 100 percent of the closure costs for the Transfer Station.
The liability is based on an engineering study performed in March 2002 that estimated the total
closure costs. The estimated closure costs are adjusted annually using the Implicit Price Deflator for
Gross National Product published by the United States Department of Commerce. The actual cost
may differ from the estimate due to inflation, changes in technology, or regulatory changes.

Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement

Chapter 380, Miscellaneous Provisions Relating to Municipal Planning and Development, of the
Texas Local Government Code provides the authority to the governing body of a municipality to
establish and provide for the administration of one or more programs, including programs to
promote state or local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity in
the municipality. The City has entered into a Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement (the
“Agreement”) with one developer (the “Developer”). The term of this Agreement is for a period of
16 years. This Developer agreed to make real property improvements as part of a retail development
(the “Project”) including the construction of water and sanitary sewer facilities and traffic and
roadway improvements to support the Project. The Developer also agreed to employ and maintain a
minimum number of full-time equivalent employment positions working at the retail development
site. Between the years ending 2019 through 2022, the City has agreed to reimburse the Developer
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$1,000 for each job created/retained up to a maximum of $465,000 over the four-year period. The
City also agreed to pay the Developer a percentage of sales and use tax collected on the property,
which ranges from 100 percent of the collections in calendar year 2017 to 50 percent of the
collections in calendar year 2031. Lastly, the City agreed to pay the Developer 100 percent of the
property tax increment revenues for tax years 2016 through 2025. The aggregate total of all grant
program payments made by the City to the Developer shall not exceed $4,175,750.

Subsequent Events

In December 2017, the City Council approved the issuance of Certificates of Obligation, Series
2017-A (the “Certificates”) in the amount of $5,150,000. Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates
will be used for the repair and renovation of, the construction of improvements to, and the equipment
of the water and sewer system. The Certificates will mature on March 15, 2037. The interest rates
will range from 2.00 percent to 3.00 percent.

The City also entered into a capital lease in December 2017 in the amount of $1,163,743 for the

purchase of one 2018 Pierce Velocity 107 fire truck. The interest rate is 2.00 percent and the lease
matures on December 1, 2025.

85



(This page intentionally left blank.)
86



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

87



CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND (Page 1 of 2)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Property taxes $ 13,210,640 § 13,210,640 $ 12,965,747 $ (244,893)
Industrial district taxes 11,528,238 11,528,238 11,276,238 (252,000)
Sales taxes 5,800,000 5,800,000 6,425,345 625,345
Franchise taxes 2,050,000 2,050,000 2,095,518 45,518
Fees and fines 1,548,200 1,548,200 1,658,342 ' 110,142
Licenses and permits 504,900 504,900 451,948 (52,952)
Intergovernmental 55,000 55,000 - 261,442 206,442
Charges for services 3,112,400 3,112,400 4,011,339 898,939
Investment earnings 80,000 80,000 426,869 346,869
Miscellaneous 6,500 6,500 53,733 47,233
Total Revenues 37,895,878 37,895,878 39,626,521 1,730,643
Expenditures
Current:
General Government:
Mayor and council 63,350 63,350 50,281 13,069
City manager 910,202 910,202 870,980 39,222
Boards and commissions 15,408 15,408 12,347 3,061
Municipal court : 419,506 419,506 397,552 21,954
General government 3,839,059 3,839,059 2,816,754 1,022,305
Legal services 152,000 152,000 717,267 74,733
Human resources 343,225 343,225 322,705 20,520
Information technology services 1,279,536 1,352,036 1,309,903 42,133
Finance 663,161 663,161 646,882 16,279
City secretary 453,700 453,700 385,551 68,149
Warehouse 76,355 76,355 49,006 27,349
Disaster declarations - - 722,603 (722,603) *
Total General Government 8,215,502 8,288,002 7,661,831 626,171
Community Development:
Planning and development 1,868,379 1,868,379 1,742,776 125,603
Beautification 25,000 25,000 - 25,000
Park maintenance 1,918,568 1,918,568 1,810,534 108,034
Recreation 1,559,153 1,559,153 1,348,217 210,936
Athletics and aquatics 868,318 868,318 832,943 35,375
Senior services 562,589 562,589 557,348 5,241
After-school program 361,645 361,645 305,098 56,547
Drama 452,606 547,320 427,636 119,684
Library 1,083,121 1,083,121 946,241 136,880
Total Community Development 8,699,379 8,794,093 7,970,793 823,300
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Variance with

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative)
Public Works:
Building maintenance $ 647,571 $ 647,571 $ 602,426 $ 45,145
Sanitation 3,619,939 3,619,939 3,541,019 78,920
Street maintenance 1,325,059 1,325,059 1,090,596 234,463
Fleet maintenance 931,682 931,682 673,570 258,112
Humane division 258,733 258,733 251,810 6,923
Total Public Works 6,782,984 6,782,984 6,159,421 623,563
Public Safety:
Police 9,415,980 9,415,980 8,957,799 458,181
Emergency management 416,259 416,259 395,884 20,375
Fire department 554,528 554,528 462,648 91,880
Ambulance 1,176,424 1,176,424 1,148,443 27,981
Fire marshal 151,668 151,668 142,531 9,137
Total Public Safety 11,714,859 11,714,859 11,107,305 607,554
Parks and Recreation:
Golf course lease 120,000 163,713 127,539 36,174
Total Parks and Recreation 120,000 163,713 127,539 36,174
Debt service: »
Principal 215,594 274,627 274,627 -
Interest and other charges 19,990 19,990 19,990 -
Total Debt Service 235,584 294,617 294,617 -
Capital outlay 2,104,616 2,464,545 2,275,771 188,774
Toetal Expenditures 37,872,924 38,502,813 35,597,277 2,905,536
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 22,954 (606,935) 4,029,244 4,636,179
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 688,194 8,032,025 1,244,048 (6,787,977)
Transfers (out) (721,148) (7,789,148) (7,806,402) (17,254) *x*
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 10,000 10,000 42,405 32,405
Insurance proceeds - - 35,239 35,239
Capital lease proceeds - - 471,411 471,411
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (22,954) 252,877 (6,013,299) (6,266,176)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ - 3 (354,058) (1,984,055) $ (1,629,997)
Beginning fund balance 38,504,854
Ending Fund Balance $ 36,520,799

Notes to Required Supplementary Information:
1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
2. *Disaster declarations is a sub-fund of the general fund and the City does not adopt a budget for this sub-fund.
3. **Transfers (out) did not exceed appropriations at the legal level of control as transfers (out) accounts are
budgeted by department but presented separately for reporting purposes.
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Measurement Year®

2014 2015 2016
Total Pension Liability

Service cost $ 2,681,792 $ 3,011,767 $ 3,179,205
Interest (on the total pension liability) 7,460,704 7,763,831 7,931,982
Difference between expected and actual experience (718,727) 108,094 (18,490)
Change of assumptions - 1,074,743 -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (5,388,710) (5,128,029) (5,758,334)

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 4,035,059 6,830,406 5,334,363
Beginning total pension liability 107,934,947 111,970,006 118,800,412

Ending Total Pension Liability $ 111,970,006 $ 118,800,412 $ 124,134,775

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer $ 2,442,022 $ 2,545558 $ 2,519,299
Contributions - employee 1,172,340 1,233,609 1,276,057
Net investment income 5,837,195 156,470 7,078,549
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (5,388,710) (5,128,029) (5,758,334)
Administrative expense (60,949) (95,310) (79,953)
Other (5,011) (4,708) (4,308)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 3,996,887 (1,292,410) 5,031,310
Beginning plan fiduciary net position 102,048,717 106,045,604 104,753,194

Ending Plan Fiduciary Net Position $ 106,045,604 $ 104,753,194 $ 109,784,504

Net Pension Liability §$§ 5,924,402 $§ 14,047218 $ 14,350,271

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of

Total Pension Liability 94.71% 88.18% 88.44%
Covered Employee Payroll $ 16,747,712 § 17,622,979 $§ 18,229,388
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 35.37% 79.71% 78.72%

* Only three years of information is currently available. The City will build this schedule over the next seven-year period.
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Measurement Year*

2014 2015 2016
City's proportion of the net pension liability 2.115% 1.927% 2.152%
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 384,385 § 514,241  § 626,893
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 129,211 178,251 216,723

Total § 513,596  § 692,492 § 843,616

Number of active members** 80 76 82
City's net pension liability per active member $ 4805 $ 6,766  $ 7,645

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability 83.50% 76.90% 76.30%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information:

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Changes in benefit terms

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during
the measurement period.

Changes in assumptions

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total pension
liability during the measurement period.

* Only three year's worth of information is currently available. The City will build this schedule over the
next seven-year period.

** There is no compensation for active members. Number of active members is used instead.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TMRS)

Actuarially determined contribution

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Fiscal Year*
2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 2407731 § 2,527,680 $ 2,632,998 § 2,650,445

Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution
Contributions deficiency (excess)
Covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered
employee payroll

2,407,731 2,527,680 2,632,998 2,650,445
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 -
$ 16455020 § 17,449,288 § 18,824,716 $§ 18,622,310

14.63% 14.49% 13.99% 14.23%

*Only four years of information is currently available. The City will build this schedule over the next six-year period.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information:

1. Valuation Date:

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and become effective in January, 13 months later.

2. Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Inflation

Salary increases

Investment rate of return

Retirement age

Mortality

3. Other Information:

Entry age normal

Level percentage of payroll, closed

29 years

10 year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor
2.5%

3.50% to 10.50% including inflation

6.75%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of benefits. Last updated
for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2010-2014.

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully
generational basis with scale BB.

There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

TEXAS EMERGENCY SERVICES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TESRS)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Fiscal Year*

2014 2015 2016 2017
Contractually required contribution $ 96,300 § 91,000 $ 98,600 $ 89,400
Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution 96,300 91,000 98,600 89,400
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -3 - 3 - 3 -
Number of active members** 80 76 82 75
Contributions per active member $ 1,204 $ 1,197 § 1,202  § 1,192

*Only four years of information is currently available. The City will build this schedule over the next six-year period.

**There is no compensation for active members. Number of active members is used instead.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Actnarial
Accrued
Liability UAAL as a
Actuarial (AAL) - Unfunded Annual Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a)/c]
10/01/14 $ $23,180,676 $23,180,676 0.0% $17,110,560 135.48%
10/01/15 $ $17,996,698 $ 17,996,698 0.0% $18,463,403 97.47%
10/01/16 $ $17,097,368 $17,097,368 0.0% $ 18,290,865 93.47%
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Property taxes $ 4,411,733 $ 4,411,733 $ 4,936,202 $ 524,469
Intergovernmental 2,217,196 2,217,196 2,154,196 (63,000)
Investment earnings 5,500 5,500 13,401 7,901
Total Revenues 6,634,429 6,634,429 7,103,799 469,370
Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal 5,210,040 5,210,040 5,206,315 3,725
Interest and other charges 1,479,174 1,479,174 1,090,552 388,622
Total Expenditures 6,689,214 6,689,214 6,296,867 392,347
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (54,785) (54,785) 806,932 861,717
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 30,000 30,000 90,958 60,958
Total Other Financing Sources 30,000 30,000 90,958 60,958
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (24,785) $ (24,785) 897,890 922,675
Beginning fund balance 3,736,160
Ending Fund Balance $ 4,634,050

Notes to Supplementary Information:

1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2017

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax Fund
This fund is used to account for proceeds from hotel/motel occupancy taxes received during the year.
Expenditures from this fund are restricted to tourism activities. An appropriations style budget is adopted for this
fund on an annual basis.

Grants Fund
This fund is used to account for the receipt of grant funds from the State or Federal Government. The use of these
funds is governed by the terms of the grant.

Police Forfeiture Fund
This fund is used to account for the receipt and expenditure of revenues derived from crime seizures that are to be
used for law enforcement purposes.

Municipal Court Fund
This fund is used to account for specific revenues derived from fees generated by Municipal Court.

FEMA Hurricane Ike Fund
This fund is used to account for Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) relief funds received by the
City under a federal award. Expenditures of this fund relate to housing efforts as a result of Hurricane Ike.
Expenditures are controlled by federal regulations. No appropriations style budget is adopted for this fund.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditures for capital outlays including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets.

Capital Projects Fund
This fund is used to account for the receipt of special assessments and the expenditures of such funds to build the
new police station.

1997 Streets Fund
This fund is used to account for the receipt of special assessments and the expenditures of such funds to improve
Battleground Road.

Streets Fund

This fund is used to account for the receipt of special assessments and the expenditures of such funds to improve
East Boulevard and East X Street.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

General Obligations Series 2005 Fund
This fund is used to account for the receipt of bond proceeds and the expenditure of such proceeds to construct
and/or improve various public buildings, purchase of land for parks and recreation facilities, street improvement
projects, and sidewalk construction.

Capital Improvements Bond Fund 2007
This fund is used to account for the receipt of bond proceeds and the expenditure of such proceeds for
improvements to City parks, the drainage system, and the expansions of City Hall and the library.

Capital Improvements Bond Fund 2010
This fund is used to account for the receipt of bond proceeds and the expenditure of such proceeds to construct
drainage improvements.

Capital Improvements Bond Fund 2014
This fund is used to account for the receipt of bond proceeds and the expenditure of such proceeds for the
acquisition and construction of additions and improvements to the City’s parks and recreational facilities.

Capital Improvements Bond Fund 2015
This fund is used to account for the receipt of bond proceeds and the expenditure of such proceeds for the
acquisition and construction of additions and improvements to the City’s streets, sidewalks, and related drainage
facilities.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Page 1 of 2)
September 30, 2017

Special Revenue Funds

Hotel/Motel Police Municipal
Occupancy Tax Grants Forfeiture Court
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 892,960 $ 1,361,238  § 28,693 § © 147,224
Accounts receivable 168,587 22,215 - 102,585
Due from other funds - - - -
Total Assets $ 1,061,547  $ 1,383,453 $ 28,693 § 249,809
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 54,648 $ 115,565  $ - 3 3,998
Accrued liabilities - - - 3,332
Due to other funds - 616,372 - -
Due to component units 167 - - -
Total Liabilities 54,815 731,937 - 7,330
Fund balances:
Restricted
Enabling legislation 1,006,732 - 28,693 242,479
Special projects - 651,516 - -
Capital projects - - - -
Total Fund Balances 1,006,732 651,516 28,693 242,479
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances § 1,061,547 $ 1,383,453  § 28,693 § 249,809
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Special

Revenue
Funds Capital Projects Funds
General
FEMA Capital 1997 Obligation
Hurricane Ike Projects Streets Streets Series 2005 CIBF 2007
$ - 26,975 % 95,207 $ 321,268  $ 1,839,403
- 26975 § 95,207 $ 321,268  $ 1,839,403
$ - - 8 - 8 - 120,227
- - - - 120,227
- 26,975 95,207 321,268 1,719,176
- 26,975 95,207 321,268 1,719,176
$ - 26,975  § 95,207 $ 321,268  $ 1,839,403
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Page 2 of 2)
September 30, 2017

Total
Nonmajor
Capital Projects Funds Governmental
CIBF 2010 CIBF 2014 CIBF 2015 Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,968,580  § 45,129 § 7,213,399 $ 13,940,076
Accounts receivable - - - 293,387
Due from other funds 616,372 - - 616,372
Total Assets § 2,584,952 § 45,129  § 7,213,399  § 14,849,835
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 8 - 8 155,557  $ 449,995
Accrued liabilities - - - 3,332
Due to other funds - 45,129 - 661,501
Due to component units - - - 167
Total Liabilities - 45,129 155,557 1,114,995
Fund balances:
Restricted
Enabling legislation - - - 1,277,904
Special projects - - - 651,516
Capital projects 2,584,952 - 7,057,842 11,805,420
Total Fund Balances 2,584,952 - 7,057,842 13,734,840
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2,584,952 $ 45,129 3 7,213,399 $ 14,849,835
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

Revenues
Hotel/motel taxes
Fees and fines
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Expenditures
Current:

General government

Community development

Public safety
Capital outlay

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Page 1 of 2)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Beginning fund balances

Ending Fund Balances

Special Revenue Funds

Hotel/Motel Police Municipal
Occupancy Tax Grants Forfeiture Court

$ 622,146 _ -8 ]
- - - 241,887

- 92,663 - -

- - - 99,363

; - 248 -

- 215,498 2,122 -

622,146 308,161 2,370 341,250

- 57,967 - 67,860

431,287 108,987 - -

- 34,586 18,862 113,044

96,596 - - -

527,883 201,540 18,862 180,904

94,263 106,621 (16,492) 160,346

- - 17,254 -
(171,273) - : (158,169)
(171,273) - 17,254 (158,169)
(77,010) 106,621 762 2,177
1,083,742 544,895 27,931 240,302

$ 1,006,732 651,516 28,693 $ 242,479
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Special

Revenue
Funds Capital Projects Funds
General
FEMA Capital 1997 Obligation
Hurricane Ike Projects Streets Streets Series 2005 CIBF 2007

$ - - -8 -8 -8 -
- 248 187 520 4,360 17,244
- 248 187 520 4,360 17,244
- - - - 318,913 1,013,522
- - - - 318,913 1,013,522
- 248 187 520 (314,553) (996,278)
(816,407) (248) (187) - (4,360) (17,244)
(816,407) (248) (187) - (4,360) (17,244)
(816,407) - - 520 (318,913) (1,013,522)
816,407 - 26,975 94,687 640,181 2,732,698
$ - - 26,975 $ 95207 $ 321,268  $ 1,719,176
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Page 2 of 2)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Total
Nonmajor
Capital Projects Funds Governmental
CIBF 2010 CIBF 2014 CIBF 2015 Funds
Revenues
Hotel/motel taxes $ -3 - 3 - 3 622,146
Fees and fines - - - 241,887
Intergovernmental - - - 92,663
Charges for services - - - 99,363
Investment earnings 11,690 4,672 52,556 91,725
Miscellaneous - - - 217,620
Total Revenues 11,690 4,672 52,556 1,365,404
Expenditures
Current:
General government - - - 125,827
Comnunity development - - - 540,274
Public safety - - - 166,492
Capital outlay ' 203,560 - 440,330 2,072,921
Total Expenditures 203,560 - 440,330 2,905,514
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (191,870) 4,672 (387,774) (1,540,110)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - - - 17,254
Transfers (out) (11,690) (4,672) (52,556) (1,236,806)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (11,690) (4,672) (52,556) (1,219,552)
Net Change in Fund Balances (203,560) - (440,330) (2,759,662)
Beginning fund balances 2,788,512 - 7,498,172 16,494,502
Ending Fund Balances $ 2,584952 § - 3 7,057,842 § 13,734,840
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Revenues
Hotel/motel occupancy taxes

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Community development
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing (Uses)
Transfers (out)

Total Other Financing (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning fund balance
Ending Fund Balance

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Community development
Public works

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning fund balance

Ending Fund Balance

Notes to Supplementary Information:

1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative)
684,564  § 684,564  $ 622,146  $ (62,418)
684,564 684,564 622,146 (62,418)
563,190 713,190 431,287 281,903
96,596 96,596 96,596 -
659,786 809,786 527,883 281,903
24,778 (125,222) 94,263 219,485
(168,500) (168,500) (171,273) (2,773) *
(168,500) (168,500) (171,273) (2,773)
(143,722) (293,722) (77,010) 216,712
1,083,742
$ 1,006,732
Grants
Variance with
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actnal Positive
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative)
535,500 § 535,500 $ 92,663 $ (442,837)
- - 215,498 215,498
535,500 535,500 308,161 (227,339)
57,967 57,967 57,967 -
442,947 442,947 108,987 333,960
34,586 34,586 34,586 -
535,500 535,500 201,540 333,960
- 3 - 106,621  $ 106,621
544,895
$ 651,516

2. *Transfers (out) did not exceed appropriations at the legal level of control as transfers (out)
accounts are budgeted by department but presented separately for reporting purposes.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Revenues
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning fund balance

Ending Fund Balance

Revenues
Fees and fines
Charges for services

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Public safety

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing (Uses)
Transfers (out)

Total Other Financing (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Beginning fund balance
Ending Fund Balance

Notes to Supplementary Information:

1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Police Forfeiture

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative)
$ - 8 - 3 248 248
1,000 1,000 2,122 1,122
1,000 1,000 2,370 1,370
11,950 29,179 18,862 10,317
11,950 29,179 18,862 10,317
10,950 28,179 17,254 (10,925)
10,950 28,179 17,254 (10,925)
$ - 3 - 762 762
27,931
$ 28,693
Municipal Court
Variance with
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts Amounts (Negative)
$ 201,500 $ 201,500 3 241,887 40,387
120,000 120,000 99,363 (20,637)
321,500 321,500 341,250 19,750
62,584 68,898 67,860 1,038
142,105 142,105 113,044 29,061
204,689 211,003 180,904 30,099
116,811 110,497 160,346 49,849
(158,169) (158,169) (158,169) -
(158,169) (158,169) (158,169) -
$ (41,358) § (47,672) 2,177 49,849
240,302
$ 242,479

111



(This page intentionally left blank.)
112



CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

LEPC
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 133,864 § 106,086 $ 93,262  $ 146,688
Total Assets § 133,864  § 106,086  $ 93,262 $ 146,688
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 6,980 $ 72,751  $ 68,350 $ 11,381
Due to others 126,884 109,555 101,132 135,307
Total Liabilities $ 133,864  $ 182,306 $ 169,482  $ 146,688

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
Required Supplementary Information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 116

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 126

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local
revenue source, property tax.

Debt Capacity 136

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's
current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 146

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 149

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the
activities it performs.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Governmental Activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Governmental Activities Net Position

Business-Type Activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Business-Type Activities Net Position

Primary Government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Primary Government Net Position

Notes:

* During the year ended September 30, 2013, the City restated the financial statements to recognize a fund as part
of an enterprise fund (previously recognized as a capital projects fund). The City also restated the financial
statements to recognize certain capital assets and bonds within an enterprise fund (previously recognized under

governmental activities).

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011
28,350,164 32,072,611 29,888,865 30,587,182

3,460,684 4,788,311 4,491,224 4,102,964
13,373,367 15,775,137 12,191,299 11,159,636
45,184,215 52,636,059 46,571,388 45,849,782
11,928,085 12,218,032 12,218,032 15,512,082

3,027,361 2,778,534 5,684,466 5,293,599
14,955,446 14,996,566 17,902,498 20,805,681
40,278,249 44,290,643 42,106,897 46,099,264

3,460,684 4,788,311 4,491,224 4,102,964
16,400,728 18,553,671 17,875,765 16,453,235
60,139,661 67,632,625 64,473,886 66,655,463
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017

29,597,630 $§ 35765964 § 41,639,757 $§ 44,597,669 $ 47,111,755 $ 56,664,574
4,574,770 7,982,104 5,508,456 5,487,510 6,544,124 6,658,676
13,180,581 17,087,208 19,126,447 23,162,700 25,809,239 24,517,930

47,352,981 $§ 60,835276 § 66,274,660 $ 73247879 $§ 79,465,118 $§ 87,841,180

20,056,649 $ 16,499,908 $§ 16,377,808 $ 15978461 $§ 15837484 $ 16,822,172
- 984,962 152,344 147,896 147,229 146,542
5,869,151 5,186,325 6,877,343 7,828,651 8,636,643 8,698,918

25,925,800 $ 22,671,195 $§ 23407495 § 23955008 $ 24,621,356  $ 25,667,632

49,654,279 $ 52,265,872 $ 58,017,565 $§ 60,576,130 $ 62,949,239 $ 73,486,746
4,574,770 8,967,066 5,660,800 5,635,406 6,691,353 6,805,218
19,049,732 22,273,533 26,003,790 30,991,351 34,445,882 33,216,848

73,278,781 § 83,506,471 $§ 89,682,155 § 97,202,887 § 104,086,474 $ 113,508,812
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Last Ten Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year :
2008 2009 2010 2011

Expenses

Governmental activities
General government $ 9,470,146 $ 10,966,814 $§ 14,132,823 $ 13,666,778
Public safety 7,921,413 10,285,816 9,585,147 8,927,783
Public works 5,332,621 5,925,540 6,030,222 5,592,366
Parks and recreation 2,092,772 2,690,654 2,158,444 2,154,431
Community development 6,486,732 6,921,903 6,578,378 6,443,264
Interest on long-term debt 1,482,204 1,390,366 1,437,830 1,606,938
Total Governmental Activities Expenses 32,785,888 38,181,093 39,922,844 38,391,560

Business-type activities
Water and sewer 7,168,771 8,061,221 7,690,164 7,822,999
Storm water utility - - - -
Total Business-Type Activities Expenses 7,168,771 8,061,221 7,690,164 7,822,999

Total Expenses $ 39,954,659 $ 46242314 $ 47,613,008 $ 46,214,559

Program Revenues
Governmental activities
Charges for services:

General government $ 941,187 $ 677,102 $ 40,164 $ 50,603
Public safety 1,485,861 1,972,693 1,738,943 1,967,043
Public works 340,962 378,650 401,748 502,163
Parks and recreation 1,901,120 2,268,422 1,487,907 1,601,366
Community development ’ - - 1,202,284 1,498,581
Operating grants and contributions 732,275 2,884,838 161,293 398,737
Capital grants and contributions - - - 56,237
Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 5,401,405 8,181,705 5,032,339 6,074,730

Business-type activities

Charges for services:
Water and sewer 7,497,682 8,084,177 8,041,795 10,942,116
Storm water utility - - - -
Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 7,497,682 8,084,177 8,041,795 10,942,116
Total Program Revenues $ 12,899,087 § 16,265,882 § 13,074,134 § 17,016,846

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities $ (27,384,483) $ (29,999,388) $ (34,890,505) $ (32,316,830)

Business-type activities 328,911 22,956 351,631 3,119,117

Total Net Expense $ (27,055,572) § (29,976,432) $ (34,538,874) $ (29,197,713)
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Fiscal Year
2012 2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 11,708,476 $ 11,004,030 $ 6875093 $ 7.431,081 $ 7,716,429 § 8,221,386

9,077,372 8,749,188 11,085,867 11,607,606 12,732,761 13,054,883
6,053,467 5,763,687 7,167,383 7,826,672 8,328,808 8,112,235
2,436,909 2,289,706 879,371 712,949 371,619 351,435
6,483,611 6,348,454 8,093,613 8,799,109 9,942,091 9,973,129
1,642,422 1,120,112 1,042,305 1,143,350 1,183,483 1,020,878
37,402,257 35,275,177 35,143,632 37,520,767 40,275,191 40,733,946
7,490,715 7,879,276 8,403,676 8,787,474 9,240,162 10,006,970
- 105,578 72,824 488,127 647,044 112,159
7,490,715 7,984,854 8,476,500 9,275,601 9,887,206 10,119,129

$ 44892972 § 43,260,031 $§ 43,620,132 § 46,796,368 $ 50,162,397 $ 50,853,075

$ 82,593 $ 473,000 $ 369,003 $ 416554 $ 372307 $ 290,859
2,535,052 2,777,714 2,595,857 2,546,299 3,061,713 3,304,936
535,228 585,090 1,086,752 1,283,358 1,305,293 1,329,797
1,645,362 1,821,617 787,249 922,879 112,973 71,678
1,567,354 391,143 473,884 483,288 1,418,284 1,485,021 -
279,697 160,389 62,772 68,991 144,965 2,349,238
1,460,218 3,053,828 874,867 447,810 658,600 986,324
8,105,504 9,262,781 6,250,384 6,169,179 7,074,135 9,817,853
9,873,528 9,538,392 9,341,087 9,628,146 10,300,618 10,810,651
- 278,577 275,336 275,453 278,250 301,983
9,873,528 9,816,969 9,616,423 9,903,599 10,578,368 11,112,634

$ 17,979,032 § 19,079,750 $ 15,866,807 § 16,072,778 $ 17,653,003 § 20,930,487

$ (29.296,753) $ (26,012,396) $ (28,893,248) § (31,351,588) $ (33,201,056) $ (30,916,093)
2,382,813 1,832,115 1,139,923 627,998 691,662 993,505
§ (26,913,940) $ (24,180,281) $ (27,753,325) $ (30,723,590) § (32,509,394) § (29,022,588)
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities
Taxes:
Property
Industrial district
Franchise
Sales and use
Hotel occupancy
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Gain on sales of assets
Transfers
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type activities
Investment earnings
Transfers in (out)
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total Change in Net Position

Notes:

* During the year ended September 30, 2013, the City restated the financial statements to recognize a fund as part
of an enterprise fund (previously recognized as a capital projects fund). The City also restated the financial
statements to recognize certain capital assets and bonds within an enterprise fund (previously recognized under

governmental activities).

Last Ten Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011
11,292,933  § 11,807,444 § 12,000,370 $ 12,234,105
16,185,476 17,988,792 12,986,530 12,346,943

1,839,383 1,748,053 2,063,774 1,932,237

4,109,314 4,564,184 4,069,523 4,221,452

334,112 404,561 403,983 455,166
906,857 225,077 65,499 41,978
439,524 479,596 222,660 83,875

- 233,525 66,794 60,948

73,914 - (2,550,000) 218,520
35,181,513 37,451,232 29,329,133 31,595,224
92,554 18,164 4,301 2,586
(73,914) - 2,550,000 (218,520)
18,640 18,164 2,554,301 (215,934)
35,200,153  $ 37,469,396 § 31,883,434 § 31,379,290
7,197,030 § 7.451,844 $§ (5,561,372) $ (721,606)
347,551 41,120 2,905,932 2,903,183
8,144,581 $§ 7492964 $ (2,655440) § 2,181,577
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 13,099,300 § 13,002,159 $ 14,219,581 § 15,143,994 § 16,338414 $ 17,845,389

12,894,626 14,106,107 14,250,173 13,649,200 13,058,596 11,255,235
2,209,371 2,315,334 2,338,146 2,321,036 2,129,053 2,095,518
4,746,096 5,037,072 5,201,364 6,246,868 6,553,553 6,425,345

526,387 607,709 679,646 711,406 663,147 622,146
47,460 40,416 23,014 30,502 202,351 601,325
11,714 210,969 53,644 86,050 276,011 306,592

- - 214,571 44,411 102,690 42,405
(2,735,002) 96,988 84,509 91,340 94,480 98,200
30,799,952 35416,754 37,064,648 38,324,807 39,418,295 39,292,155
2,304 12,647 4,702 10,855 69,166 150,971
2,735,002 (96,988) (84,509) (91,340) (94,480) (98,200)
2,737,306 (84,341) (79,807) (80,485) (25,314) 52,771

$ 33,537,258 § 35332413 § 36,984,841 § 38244322 § 39392981 § 39,344,926

$ 1,503,199 $ 9404358 $ 8,171,400 $ 6973219 § 6,217,239 § 8,376,062
5,120,119 1,747,774 1,060,116 547,513 666,348 1,046,276

$ 6623318 $§ 11,152,132 $§ 9,231,516 $ 7,520,732 $§ 6,883,587 § 9422338
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Ten Years

General Fund

Reserved
Unreserved
Nonspendable
Assigned
Committed
Unassigned
Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds

Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds

Capital projects funds

Debt service funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned

Total All Other Governmental Funds

Notes:

* The City implemented GASB Statement No. 54 in 2011, which changed the fund balance classifications
reported in governmental funds. Descriptive information on the new fund balance classifications is
included in the notes to the financial statements.

** During the year ended September 30, 2013, the City restated the financial statements to recognize a fund
as part of an enterprise fund (previously recognized as a capital projects fund). The City also restated
the financial statements to recognize certain capital assets and bonds within an enterprise fund (previously

recognized under governmental activities).

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011*
271,282 236,031 $ 207,006 -
11,715,534 16,188,960 15,247,265 ;
) ] - 196,355
- - - 3,526,731
- - - 10,825,327
11,086,816 16,424,991 $ 15454271 14,548 413
1,339,195 2,563,441 $ 2,402,716 -
12,099,991 10,392,992 14,657,635 -
2,053,462 2,081,520 2,088,508 -
i . . 17,947,247
- - - 2,118,012
15,492,648 15,037,953 § 19,148,859 20,065,259
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013%* 2014 2015 2016 2017
- - -8 - - -
197,244 151,122 144,805 119,159 121,649 111,479
257,974 320,216 1,304,600 5,491,532 5,491,532 2,341,465
- ; 2,500,000 2,500,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
17,011,377 24,158,718 26,052,496 26,433,452 29,891,673 31,067,855
17,466,505 24,630,056 30,001,001 $ 34,544,143 38,504,354 36,520,799
- - -3 - - -
2,914 - - - - ;
19,349,008 16,118,927 14,754,786 20,899,783 29,066,724 26,850,130
2,995,306 1,818,845 2,877,003 3,307,213 4,728,864 8,114,128
22,347,728 17,937,772 17,631,789 § 24,206,096 33,795,588 34,064,258
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Notes:

CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, GO VERNMENTAL FUNDS

* During the year ended September 30, 2013, the City restated the financial statements to recognize a fund as

part of an enterprise fund (previously recognized as a capital projects fund). The City also restated the financial

statements to recognize certain capital assets and bonds within an enterprise fund (previously recognized under
governmental activities).
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Last Ten Years
Fiscal Year
2008 2009 2010 2011
Revenues
Taxes $ 33,749,045 $ 36,553,195 31,905,813 $ 31,189,903
Licenses and permits 470,155 307,496 314,313 436,015
Fines and fees 997,669 821,479 877,761 1,092,230
Charges for services 3,048,303 3,852,637 3,379,201 3,709,536
Intergovernmental 862,631 2,872,735 148,847 389,558
Donations - - - -
Investment earnings 906,857 225,077 65,499 41,978
Other revenues 439,524 492,997 525,932 401,843
Total Revenues 40,474,184 45,125,616 37,217,366 37,261,063
Expenditures
General government 9,318,538 10,596,083 11,430,086 11,016,985
Community development 5,884,062 6,385,331 6,183,270 6,038,050
Public works 4,064,345 4,161,980 4,534,506 4,172,122
Parks and recreation 1,954,878 2,095,437 1,846,217 1,940,202
Public safety 7,413,815 9,112,933 8,845,527 8,216,278
Debt service:
Principal 2,441,398 2,496,678 2,366,966 2,894,789
Payments to escrow account - - - -
Interest 1,640,406 1,409,628 1,527,530 1,694,234
Capital outlay 7,794,339 5,152,641 6,126,024 1,807,005
Total Expenditures 40,511,781 41,410,711 42,860,126 37,779,665
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (37,597) 3,714,905 (5,642,760) (518,602)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from issuance of debt 14,305,000 - 7,805,000 -
Proceeds from capital leases 947,434 - 1,005,441 249,676
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 84,469 60,948
Refunding bonds issued - - 6,295,000 -
Premium on issuance of bonds 261,555 - 650,160 -
Payments to escrow account (4,557,262) - (4,007,637) -
Proceeds from insurance recovery - 268,575 3,812 -
Transfers in 2,921,623 1,728,615 2,092,866 3,822,395
Transfers out (2,847,709) (1,728,615) (4,642,866) (3,603,875)
Total Other Financing Sources 11,030,641 268,575 9,286,245 529,144
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 10,993,044 $ 3,983,480 3,643,485 $ 10,542
Debt service as a percentage
of noncapital expenditures 12.48% 10.77% 10.60% 12.76%



Fiscal Year

2012 ' 2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017

33,551,435 $ 35,060,741 § 36,666,969 $ 38,051,387 $ 38,637,863 $ 38,321,196

510,790 565,191 513,697 531,262 569,766 451,948
1,481,641 1,694,146 1,540,650 1,416,195 1,869,286 1,900,229
4,087,613 3,695,964 3,212,842 3,643,881 3,864,460 4,110,702
1,681,588 3,184,982 937,639 106,319 243,093 3,301,475

100,000 150,202 - - - -
47,460 40,416 23,013 30,502 202,351 601,325
330,965 82,107 54,333 86,050 195,711 271,353

41,791,492 44,473,749 42,049,143 43,865,596 45,582,530 48,958,228

10,935,746 10,576,393 6,253,704 6,940,527 7,179,021 7,787,658
5,940,733 5,826,669 7,500,975 8,226,493 8,463,417 8,511,067
4,298,938 3,951,743 5,648,506 6,083,080 6,039,369 6,336,588
1,965,054 1,528,443 87,990 98,108 386,318 55,861
7,965,646 7,999,354 10,275,560 10,626,031 10,972,864 11,273,797
6,727,393 3,014,913 3,006,105 3,160,253 3,327,539 5,552,620

- - - 781,027 - -
1,862,015 1,294,928 1,077,422 1,208,254 1,270,664 1,110,542
4,968,526 5,477,993 4,448,943 5,430,507 4,390,702 12,492,735

44,664,051 39,670,436 38,299,205 42,554,280 42,029,894 53,120,868

(2,872,559) 4,803,313 4,649,938 1,311,316 3,552,636 (4,162,640)
3,390,000 - - 8,315,000 9,450,000 2,700,000

- 213,295 - 103,455 178,500 471,411

91,082 126,362 331,415 93,629 102,690 42,405
3,490,000 4,510,000 - 732,901 6,260,000 -
353,878 316,894 - 469,809 540,737 -

- (4,715,674) - - (6,710,040) -

23,252 2,500 - - 80,300 35,239
3,326,889 344,856 1,443,425 2,333,636 4,424,273 9,141,408

(2,601,891) (129,851) (1,358,916) (2,242,296) (4,329,793) (9,043,208)
8,073,210 668,382 415,924 9,806,134 9,996,667 3,347,255

5,200,651  $ 5,471,695 $ 5,065,862 § 11,117,450 $ 13,549,303 § (815,385)

21.64% 12.58% 12.29% 11.81% 12.53% 16.60%
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year

2008 ‘ 2009 2010 2011
Residential Property $ 1,244,699,984 $§ 1,319,584,117 $ 1,315,124,845 $ 1,306,933,609
Commercial Property 705,981,148 732,397,906 858,463,574 857,667,514
Industrial Property 88,869,368 150,255,998 156,543,513 152,160,115
Less: Tax Exempt Property (491,174,863) (529,066,640) (581,449,244) (585,462,472)

Total Taxable Assessed Value $ 1,548375,637 $ 1,673,171,381 $ 1,748,682,688 $ 1,731,298,766

Total Direct Tax Rate $ 0.720000 § 0.705000 § 0.705000 § 0.705000

Source: Harris County Appraisal District and City of Deer Park Tax Office
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Fiscal Year
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 1318375083 $ 1,313,329,562 $ 1,340,643,775 $ 1,433,044,472 $ 1,565,085,837 $ 1,700,369,650

905,226,326 934,825,965 1,000,810,663 1,089,149,570 1,180,302,082 1,255,053,340
189,306,565 192,957,836 249,479,757 234,654,586 246,351,857 254,575,118
(605,716,400) (626,932,382) (630,145,444) (653,703,145) (683,610,501) (716,019,833)

$ 1,807,191,574 $ 1,814,180,981 § 1,960,788,751 § 2,103,145483 $ 2,308,129275 $ 2,493,978275

$ 0.720000 § 0.720000 § 0.720000 3 0.720000 $ 0.714352  § 0.720000
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT VALUATION, BILLING, COLLECTIONS,
AND PERCENTAGE COLLECTED

Last Ten Years
Fiscal Year
2008 2009 2010 2011
Approximate Taxable Value* $ 3,569,008,272 $ 4,050,195,673 $ 2,923,906,219 2,779,913,092
Industrial District % Taxable Per Contract 63% 63% 63% 63%
Approximate Adjusted Taxable Value * $ 2248475211 $§ 2,551,623,274 $ 1,842,060,918 1,751,345,248
Tax Rate $ 0.720000 § 0.705000 § 0.705000 0.705000
Amount Billed $ 16,189,022 §$ 17,988,944 § 12,986,529 12,346,984
Amount Collected $ 16,185,295 $ 17,988,792 § 12,986,529 12,346,943
% Collected 99.977% 99.999% 100.000% 100.000%

* The “Approximate Taxable Value” and “Approximate Adjusted Taxable Value” are based on an average rate
that does not take into account new construction in the Industrial District.
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2,842,731,040

&

3,109,962,743 § 3,141,572,531 § 3,009,235,229 $ 3,033,027,646 $ 2,486,112,079
63% 63% 63% 63% 63% 63%
1,790,920,555 $ 1,959,276,528 § 1,979,190,695 $ 1,895,818,194 $ 1,910,807,417 $ 1,566,250,610
0.720000 $ 0.720000 $ 0.720000 $ 0.720000 § 0.714532  § 0.720000
12,894,628  $ 14,106,791 § 14,250,173 $ 13,649,891 § 13,058,614 § 11,277,005
12,894,625 $ 14,106,107 $ 14,250,173  $ 13,628,122 § 13,058,596 $ 11,276,238

100.000% 99.995% 100.000% 99.841% 100.000% 99.993%
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011

City of Deer Park by fund:
General $§ 0.511000 $ 0.511000 $ 0.511000 $ 0.498100
Debt service 0.209000 0.194000 0.194000 0.206900
Total Direct Rates $§ 0.720000 $  0.705000 $ 0.705000 $ 0.705000
Deer Park Independent School District $ 1336700 $  1.317650 § 1.366700 $ 1.396700
Harris County 0.392390 0.389230 0.392240 0.388050
Harris County Department of Education 0.005850 0.005840 0.006050 0.006581
Harris County Flood Control District 0.031060 . 0.030860 0.029220 0.029230
Harris County Hospital District 0.192160 0.192160 0.192160 0.192160
Harris County Port of Houston Authority 0.014370 0.017730 0.016360 0.020540
San Jacinto Community College District 0.145370 0.163410 0.170800 0.176277

TotalDirectandOverlappingRatés $ 2.837900 $ 2.821880 $ 2.878530 $ 2914538

Source: Harris County Appraisal District

Note:

Tax rates are per $100 of assessed valuation.
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

0.498100 0.498100 0.498100 $ 0.518000 0.515711 0.519943
0.221900 0.221900 0.221900 0.202000 0.198641 0.200057
0.720000 0.720000 0.720000 $ 0.720000 0.714352 0.720000
1.396700 1.526700 1.556700 $ 1.556700 1.556700 1.556700
0.391170 0.400210 0.414550 0.417310 0.419230 0.416560
0.006581 0.006617 0.006358 0.005999 0.005422 0.005200
0.028090 0.028090 0.028270 0.027360 0.027330 0.028290
0.192160 0.182160 0.170000 0.170000 0.170000 0.171790
0.018560 0.019520 0.017160 0.015310 0.013420 0.013340
0.185602 0.185602 0.185602 0.185602 0.175783 0.182379
2.938863 3.068899 3.098640 $ 3.098281 3.082237 3.094259
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017 2008
% of % of
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Property Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Lanxess Corporation - FCC $ 23,677,175 1 095% $ - N/A -

Quarter Turn Resources, Inc. 21,649,326 2 0.87% - N/A -

Deer Park Apts. LLC 21,600,000 3 0.87% - N/A -
CenterPoint Energy, Inc. 21,338,201 4 0.86% 16,564,012 2 1.07%

Siemens Energy Inc. 20,269,600 5 0.81% - N/A -

BFT Parktown LLC Et Al 18,919,411 6 0.76% - N/A -
Wal-Mart 18,453,043 7 0.74% 15,644,558 3 1.01%
GSL Constructors, Ltd. 17,851,763 8 0.72% 11,594,223 6 0.75%

Genox Transportation Inc. 15,851,933 9 0.64% - N/A -

Dresser Inc. 15,729,655 10 0.63% - N/A -
Hydrochem Industrial Services, Inc. - N/A - 17,235,195 1 1.11%
The Musgrave-Grohman Group - N/A - 14,824,085 4 0.96%
ITCR Deer Park Ltd Partnership - N/A - 12,806,376 5 0.83%
Clay Development & Construction, Inc. - N/A - 11,366,429 7 0.73%
The Dow Chemical Company - N/A - 10,928,760 8 0.71%
Schwan's Global Supply Chain, Inc. - N/A - 10,774,990 9 0.70%
Hertz Equipment Rental - N/A - 8,979,083 10 0.58%
Subtotal 195,340,107 7.85% 130,717,711 8.45%

Other Taxpayers 2,298,638,168 92.15% 1,417,657,926 91.55%
Total $ 2,493,978275 100.00% $ 1,548,375,637 100.00%

Source: Harris County Appraisal District and City of Deer Park Tax Office
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Years
Fiscal Year
2008 2009 2010 2011

Tax levy $ 11,172,300  $ 11,897,387 $§ 12,366,491 § 12,228,677
Current tax collected $ | 10,973,053  $ 11,579,783 $ 12,159,307 $ 12,036,460
Percentage of current tax collections 98.22% 97.33% 98.32% 98.43%
Delinquent tax collections 178,608 287,723 174,384 158,828
Total tax collections $ 11,151,661 8§ 11,867,506 $ 12,333,691 § 12,195,288
Total collections as a ‘

percentage of current levy 99.82% 99.75% 99.73% 99.73%

Source: Harris County Appraisal District and City of Deer Park Tax Office
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013 2014 2015 - 2016 ' 2017

$ 13,043,054 $ 13,019,648 § 14,063,714 $ 14,991,306 $ 16,363,090 $ 17,598,722
$ 12,841,027 $§ 12,836,742 $§ 13,863,961 $ 14858925 § 16,035281 § 17,443,588
98.45% 98.60% 98.58% 99.12% 98.00% 99.12%

169,882 148,778 146,026 59,469 208,201 -

$ 13,010,909 $ 12,985,520 § 14,009987 $§ 14918394 § 16243482 $§ 17,443,588

99.75% 99.74% 99.62% 99.51% 99.27% 99.12%
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Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds
Certificates of obligation
Capital leases

Business-Type Activities:
General obligation bonds
Certificates of obligation
Water revenue bonds
Capital leases

Total Primary Government

Debt as a Percentage
of Personal Income

Debt Per Capita

CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011
$ 30,590,000 $ 28,725,000 $ 29,200,000 $ 26,785,000
2,300,000 2,230,000 9,965,000 9,890,000
1,695,189 1,130,649 1,834,124 1,679,561
13,610,000 12,400,000 8,645,000 7,745,000
- - 216,834

$ 48,195,189

$ 44,485,649

$ 49,644,124

$ 46,316,395

N/A

$ 1,578

N/A

$ 1,428

N/A

$ 1,551

N/A

$ 1,447

N/A -This information is currently not available.

Notes:

Additional information about the City's outstanding debt is included in the notes to the financial statements.

* During the year ended September 30,2013, the City restated the financial statements to recognize a fund as
part of an enterprise fund (previously recognized as a capital projects fund). The City also restated the financial

statements to recognize certain capital assets and bonds within an enterprise fund (previously recognized under

governmental activities).

Schedule presents debt net of related premiums, discounts, and adjustments beginning in fiscal year 2013.
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017
$ 27,750,000 § 20,334,132 $ 17,979,969 $ 16,587,180 $ 16,239,210 14,053,513
12,960,000 9,683,246 9,283,100 16,483,264 23,243,219 22,769,126
1,257,169 1,082,960 741,227 489,772 743,670 868,776
- 5,207,260 4,557,742 5,194,671 4,560,455 3,938,036
- 8,408,633 15,297,035 21,912,475 28,464,920 34,891,757
3,395,000 2,820,000 2,250,000 750,000 500,000 250,000
168,743 119,506 69,093 266,014 534,382 361,489
$ 45,530,912 $ 47,655737 $§ 50,178,166 $§ 61,683,376 $ 74,285,856 77,132,697
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
$ 1,408 § 1,436  $ 1,493  § 1,801 8§ 2,147 2,214

137



CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Last Ten Years
Fiscal Year
2008 2009 2010 2011
General Obligation Bonds (1) $ 30,590,000 $ 28,725,000 $ 29,200,000 $ 26,785,000
Less: Amounts Restricted to
Repaying Principal (2,053,462) (2,278,722) (2,088,508) (1,734,892)

Total $ 28,536,538 $ 26,446,278 $§ 27,111,492 $ 25,050,108

Percentage of Actual Taxable

Value of Property : 1.84% 1.58% 1.55% 1.45%
Net Bonded Debt Per Capita $ 934 § 866 § 847 % 783
Notes:

Additional information about the City's outstanding debt is included in the notes to the financial statements.
(1) These are the amounts of general obligation bonds of both governmental and business-type activities.

* During the year ended September 30, 2013, the City restated the financial statements to recognize a fund as
part of an enterprise fund (previously recognized as a capital projects fund). The City also restated the financial
statements to recognize certain capital assets and bonds within an enterprise fund (previously recognized under
governmental activities).
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 27,750,000 $ 25,541,392 $ 22,537,711 $ 21,781,851 $ 20,799,665 $ 17,991,549
(1,988,204) (2,321,730) (2,932,183) (3,351,483) (3,736,160) (4,634,050)

$  25761,796 $ 23219662 $ 19,605528 $ 18,430,368 $ 17,063,505 $ 13,357,499
1.43% 1.28% 1.00% 0.88% 0.74% 0.54%

$ 797 8§ 699 $ 583§ 538§ 493§ 383
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

September 30,2017
Estimated
Estimated Share of Direct
Debt Percentage and Overlapping
Outstanding Applicable Debt

Debt Repaid with Property Taxes:
Deer Park Independent School District $ 207,845,000 21.45% $ 44,582,753
Harris County 2,295,044,505 0.59% 13,540,763
Harris County Department of Education 6,780,000 0.59% 40,002
Harris County Flood Control District 83,075,000 0.59% ' 490,143
Harris County Hospital District 61,595,000 0.59% 363,411
La Porte Independent School District 350,980,000 11.58% 40,643,484
Port of Houston Authority of Harris County 657,994,397 0.59% 3,882,167
San Jacinto Community College District 394,444,977 4.69% 18,499,469
Subtotal, overlapping debt $ 4,057,758,879 122,042,192
City Direct Debt $ 37,691,415 100.00% 37,691,415

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt § 159,733,607

Source: Texas Municipal Reports and Governmental Units

Notes:

Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply within the City of Deer Park. This schedule
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the property taxpayers
of the City of Deer Park. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay
long-term debt, the entire burden borne by the property taxpayers should be taken into account. However, this does not
imply that every taxpayer is a resident and, therefore, responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

City direct debt is comprised of debt obligations supported by a pledge of ad valorem taxes.

Excludes general obligation bonds pledged by utility revenues.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

Debt limit
Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

Total net debt applicable to the limit

as a percentage of debt limit

Last Ten Years
Fiscal Year
2008 2009 2010 2011
$ 154,837,564 $§ 168,338,508 § 174,868,269 $ 173,129,877
28,536,538 26,446,278 27,111,492 25,050,108
$ 126,301,026 $ 141,892,230 $ 147,756,777 $ 148,079,769
18.43% 15.71% 15.50% 14.47%

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2017

Assessed value
Debt limit (10% of assessed value)
Debt applicable to limit:
General obligation bonds
Less: amount set aside for
repayment of general
obligation debt
Total net debt applicable to limit
Legal debt margin

$ 2,493,978,275
249,397,828

17,991,549
(4,634,050)

13,357,499
$ 236,040,329
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Fiscal Year
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 180,719,157 § 181,418,098 $ 196,078,875 $ 210,314,548 $ 230,812,928 $ 249,397,828

25,761,796 23,219,662 19,605,528 18,430,368 17,063,505 13,357,499

$ 154957361 $ v158,198,436 $ 176473347 § 191,884,180 $ 213,749,423 $§ 236,040,329

14.26% 12.80% 10.00% 8.76% 7.39% 5.36%
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011
Utility Service Charges $ 7,497,682 8,084,177 8,041,795 10,942,116
Less: Operating Expenses (1) 5,327,121 6,197,174 5,951,271 6,119,717
Net Available Revenue $ 2,170,561 1,887,003 2,090,524 4,822,399
Debt Service Requirements (2)
Principal $ 1,215,000 1,210,000 1,205,000 900,000
Interest 645,008 532,804 426,798 327,057
Total §$ 1,860,008 1,742,804 1,631,798 1,227,057
Coverage 1.17 1.08 1.28 3.93
Notes:

Additional information about the City's outstanding debt is included in the notes to the financial statements.

(1) Operating expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization.

(2) Includes revenue bonds only.
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
9,873,258 9,529,392 9,341,087 § 9,628,146 10,300,618 10,810,651
5,890,927 5,758,791 6,030,193 6,162,029 6,421,511 6,931,288
3,982,331 3,770,601 3,310,894 § 3,466,117 3,879,107 3,879,363
890,000 575,000 570,000 8§ 250,000 250,000 250,000
296,649 106,449 87,653 28,563 20,750 12,625
1,186,649 681,449 657,653 8§ 278,563 270,750 262,625
3.36 5.53 5.03 12.44 14.33 14.77
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Years

Calendar Per Capita Personal Unemployment School
Year Population Income Income Rate Enrollment
2008 30,544 N/A N/A 5.6% 12,206
2009 31,154 N/A N/A 8.2% 12,352
2010% 32,010 N/A N/A 8.5% 12,500
2011 32,010 N/A N/A 8.5% 12,593
2012 32,332 N/A N/A 6.4% 12,841
2013 33,196 N/A N/A 5.7% 12,626
2014 33,600 N/A N/A 4.5% 13,015
2015 34,249 N/A N/A 5.2% 13,140
2016 34,604 N/A N/A 5.0% 13,278
2017 34,845 N/A N/A 4.8% 13,190

Sources: City of Deer Park Economic Development Administrator and Deer Park Independent

School District

N/A - This information is currently not available.

*2010 is the census population; all other years represent estimates.
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017 2008
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

Shell Deer Park 3,100 14.80% 1,750 10.57%
Deer Park ISD 1,868 8.92% - -
Universal Plant Services 1,342 6.40% - -
Lubrizol Specialty Chemicals ‘ 1,360 6.49% 445 2.69%
Dow Chemical Co. 1,330 6.35% - -
Mistras Group 700 3.34% - -
‘Wal-Mart 430 2.05% - -
City of Deer Park 414 1.98% - -
Minh Foods, Inc. 400 1.91% 235 1.42%
Siemens Energy 350 1.67% - -
Rohm and Hass - - 748 4.52%
Clean Harbors - - 258 1.56%
Oxy Vinyl - - 226 1.37%
Intercontinental Terminals - - 211 1.27%
Vopak ' - - 183 1.11%
Hexion - - 159 0.96%
Delta Chemicals - - 150 0.91%

Total 11,294 53.91% 4,365 26.38%
Estimated total jobs in the City 20,953 16,550

Source: City of Deer Park Economic Development Administrator
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General Government
Management services
Finance
Planning
Other

Police
Officers
Civilians

Fire
Firefighters and officers
Civilians

Sanitation

Other public works
Engineering
Other

Golf operations

Parks and recreation

Library

Water

Wastewater

Total

Source: Adopted City Budget

CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
6.0 6.0 8.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0

13.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 13.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 13.0 12.0
23.5 29.5 33.5 30.5 30.5 30.5 32.0 355 35.5 35.0
58.0 61.0 61.0 59.0 60.0 60.0 60.0 61.0 61.0 61.0
25.0 26.0 25.0 24.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 26.0 26.0 26.0
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
5.5 9.5 13.5 13.5 13.0 13.0 15.5 14.5 13.0 15.0
23.0 23.0 23.0 23.0 23.0 23.0 22.0 22.0 22.0 22.0
4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
26.0 25.0 27.0 27.0 27.0 27.0 28.0 28.0 29.0 29.0
26.0 26.0 26.0 25.0 26.0 24.0 - - - -
60.5 61.5 73.5 73.5 74.0 69.5 70.5 73.0 77.0 77.0
11.0 12.0 12.5 13.0 13.0 13.5 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0
14.0 15.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0
13.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 13.0 12.0 12.0 12.0
311.5 328.5 353.0 344.5 345.5 341.5 324.0 330.0 332.5 333.0
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Years

Fiscal Year

2008 2009 2010 2011

Function/Program
General government

Annual permits 1,306 1,152 1,290 1,583

Annual inspections 3,699 3,611 4,410 3,324
Police

Physical arrests 2,637 2,596 1,975 2,690

Parking violations 18 13 6 192

Traffic violations 10,167 7,990 9,122 15,505
Fire

Emergency responses 1,992 1,843 1,950 1,887

Fires extinguished 418 352 387 580

Inspections N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sanitation

Refuse collected (tons per day)* 111 101 818 75

Recyclables collected (tons per day) 1 1 1 1
Streets

Street resurfacing (miles)** - - - 1

Potholes repaired 45 50 150 49
Parks and recreation

Community center admissions 500 510 520 521

Program enrollments N/A N/A 10,722 17,877
Library

Volumes in collection 82,386 82,159 82,200 80,593

Total volumes borrowed 169,395 174,058 174,100 173,409
Water

New connections 114 125 31 27

Water main breaks 41 14 60 261

Average daily consumption (thousands of gallons) 3,900,000 3,900,000 4,199,000 4,646,400

Peak daily consumption (thousands of gallons) 6,086,000 6,961,000 6,566,000 7,722,000
Wastewater

Average daily sewage treatment (thousands of gallons) 3,500 3,650 3,058 2,572

Source: Various City departments
N/A - This is information is currently not available.
* 2010 is atypical due to collections associated with Hurricane Ike.

** Majority of streets are concrete.
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Fiscal Year

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
1,616 1,777 2,414 2,610 2,644 2,420
3,671 1,017 1,204 1,494 4,932 3,855
2,843 3,296 3,258 3,068 3,445 4,050

143 114 81 101 92 71
13,338 14,601 13,205 14,049 14,322 16,826
2,032 2,100 2,193 2,401 2,467 2,761
588 648 655 862 775 790

1,353 1,392 1,288 1,523 1,676 1,862

71 81 83 81 82 &3

2 3 4 4 4 4

- 2 - - - 1

62 50 50 55 65 60

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
18,081 17,527 15,300 16,309 21,034 21,262
79,897 83,346 84,296 87,171 90,408 101,960
165,620 164,962 168,852 167,012 157,955 157,902
34 78 39 77 137 100

73 76 62 46 32 39
4,501,100 4,661,000 4,507,000 4,286,000 3,893,750 3,995,225
6,350,000 6,438,000 5,826,000 6,700,000 5,281,000 5,541,000
3,129 2,960 2,595 4,299 4,575 3,082
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CITY OF DEER PARK, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Years

Function/Program
Police

Stations

Patrol units
Fire

Stations
Sanitation

Collection trucks
Streets

Streets (miles)

Streetlights

Traffic signals

Parks and recreation

Acreage

Parks with play structures

Baseball / softball diamonds

Soccer/football fields

Golf course

Community centers

Water

Water lines (miles)

Fire hydrants '

Storage capacity (millions of gallons)
three ground wells @ 3,560 gpm total
three elevated tanks @ .5 M gallons each
two ground storage tanks @ 1 M gallons each

Wastewater

Sanitary sewers (miles)

Storm sewers (miles)

Treatment capacity (millions of gallons)

Source: Various City departments

Fiscal Year
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2008 2000 2010 2011
1 1 1 1
39 40 40 40
3 3 3 3
6 6 6 6
105 105 105 106
2,557 2,557 2,557 2,583
43 43 43 43
270 270 270 270
17 17 17 17
16 16 16 16
9 9 9 9
1 1 1 ]
7 7 7 7
103 103 132 133
889 889 890 895
3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
15 15 15 15
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
114 114 123 124
62 62 66 67
6 6 6 6



Fiscal Year

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
1 1 1 1 1 1
41 41 42 41 44 44
3 3 3 3 3 3
5 5 6 6 6 6
106 107 107 109 111 111
2,583 2,622 2,623 2,661 2,694 2,709
43 43 43 44 44 44
270 270 270 270 270 279
19 19 19 19 19 20
24 24 19 19 20 21
6 6 7 7 7 7
1 1 1 1 1 1
7 7 7 7 7 7
133 134 135 137 138 139
895 906 914 934 950 958
3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
124 125 125 127 130 130
67 68 68 69 70 70
6 6 6 6 6 6
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Management Letter

March 12, 2018

To the Honorable Mayor and
City Council Members of the
City of Deer Park, Texas:

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement on Auditing Standards No. 115,
Communicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit (SAS 115), provides guidance to auditors

on communicating internal control matters to management and the governing body, board of directors, or
equivalent body.

It is important to note when reviewing findings reported within this letter that classification of the findings is
based on the definitions required by SAS 115 as further discussed below. Please note that these classifications are
based on the potential impact to the financial statements, not necessarily the likelihood of actual loss to the
City. Accordingly, the City’s assessment of the “significance” or ranking of severity will likely be substantially

different based on a number of factors including, but not limited to, its assessment of risk and the cost benefit of
making the change.

Our report is as follows:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Deer Park, Texas (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

However, as discussed below, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be an other
matter.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
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City of Deer Park, Texas
Management Letter
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our findings and additional comments are as follows:
MATTERS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED

Other Matter:

2017.001. ESCHEATING CHECKS

Background

Under Texas State Property Code Chapter 72, Subchapter B. § 72.101, property is presumed abandoned if the
owner of the property does not claim the property within three years. Under Texas State Property Code Chapter
74, Subchapter D. § 74.301, each holder who on March 1 holds property that is presumed abandoned under
Chapter 72 shall deliver the property to the comptroller on or before the following July 1 accompanied by the
report required to be filed under Section 74.101. Under Texas State Property Code Chapter 74, Subchapter B. §
74.101, each holder who on March 1 holds property that is presumed abandoned under Chapter 72 of this code
shall file a report of that property on or before the following July 1.

Findings

It was noted during the audit that the City has outstanding checks dating back to 2001 that have not been
escheated. This is a repeat of prior year finding 2016.001.

Recommendation

The City should remit and report applicable unclaimed property to the State by the July 1, 2018 reporting
deadline.

Management’s Response

Previous management elected not to escheat unclaimed property to the State of Texas and outstanding checks
dating back to 2001 have not been turned over to the State. The Financial Management Policy was updated in
2014 to include a policy for filing the necessary reports on an annual basis to turn over any checks outstanding
more than three years to the State Comptroller. The Finance Department continues to work to identify and report
all unclaimed property not previously filed with the State. However, because of the volume of outstanding checks
under review, the City was unable to file a report in 2017 but is working toward the July 1, 2018 deadline.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, and others
within the City, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to thank the City Council and the City’s management for their cooperation during the course of our

audit. Please feel free to contact us at your convenience to discuss this report or any other concerns that you may
have. ' '

@ELT %RRIS @;CHACEK, LLLP
=

Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas



Required Auditor Disclosure Letter

March 12, 2018

To the Honorable Mayor and
City Council Members of the
City of Deer Park, Texas:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Deer
Park, Texas (the “City”™) for the year ended September 30, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide
the City Council (the “governing body”) with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted
auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.

I. Qur Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated March 15, 2017, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with the
governing body’s oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally

accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve the governing body or
management of its responsibilities. :

II. Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to management in
our engagement letter dated March 15, 2017.

III. Significant Audit Findings

1. Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

A. Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in the notes to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year.
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in

the proper period.
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City of Deer Park, Texas Page 2 of 3
Required Auditor Disclosure Letter

B. Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the useful lives of capital assets is based on industry standards
relating to capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the useful lives of capital assets in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Estimates are used in the calculation of the pension liability and the required annual
contribution. The Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and the Texas
Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS) hire licensed actuaries to make key
assumptions and to perform calculations, as well as independent auditors to review those
assumptions and calculations. We evaluated the reasonableness of the employee data
provided by the City to TMRS and TESRS.

Estimates are used in the calculation of the health care liability for other postemployment
benefits. The City hires a licensed actuary to perform the calculation. We evaluated the

key factors and assumptions used to develop the liability in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

C. The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. The most
sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure of long-term debt in the financial statements is significant to financial
staternent users because it discloses the City’s long-term financial obligations.

2. Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

3. Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has
corrected all such misstatements. The attached schedule summarizes both material and immaterial misstatements
detected as a result of our audit procedures.

4. Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

5. Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated March 12, 2018.



City of Deer Park, Texas ' Page 3 of 3
Required Auditor Disclosure Letter

6. Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

7. Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions

occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

IV. Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information (RSI), as identified on the
table of contents, which supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the RSL

We were engaged to report on supplementary information, as identified on the table of contents, which
accompanies the financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary

information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical sections, which accompanies the financial
statements but is not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

V. Restrictions on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Mayor, City Council, and management and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

@E‘LT @Rﬁls @;S,CHACEK, Lae

Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP
Certified Public Accountants
Houston, Texas



3/14/2018

. 1:04 PM
Client: City of Deer Park, Texas
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Workpaper: 2.6.06 - Adjusting Journal Entries Report
Account Description Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1
To correct fund balance in general fund and HOT fund.

10 000-2630 UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 1,629.92

11 000-1000 CLAIM ON POOLED CASH 1,629.92

10000-1000  CLAIM ON POOLED CASH 1,629.92

11 000-2630 FUND BALANCE 1,629.92
Total 3,259.84 3,259.84

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
To adjust property tax receivable, allowance, and deferred revenue
to tie annual property tax report.

10 000-1121 ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLL DELINQ 52,613.51

10000-1126  ALLOWANCE FOR P&l RECEIVABLE 12,148.68

10 000-2500 DEFERRED REVENUES-PROPERTY 35,203.58

10 000-2505 DEFERRED REVENUE-P&I 4,049.56

20 000-1121 ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLL DELINQ 20,341.58

20000-1126 ~ ALLOWANCE FOR P&l RECEIVABLE 7,387.58

20 000-2500 ~ DEFERRED REVENUES-PROPERTY 14,845.24

20 000-2505  DEFERRED REVENUE-P&I 2,462.52

10000-1120 ~ TAXES RECEIVABLE DELINQUENT 87,817.09

10000-1125  PENALTIES/INTEREST RECEIVABLE 16,198.24

20000-1120  TAXES RECEIVABLE DELINQUENT 35,186.82

20000-11256  PENALTIES/INTEREST RECEIVABLE 9,850.10
Total 149,052.25 149,052.25

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3
To adjust outstanding fines AR, allowance, and deferred revenues

as of 9/30/17.
10 000-1651 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-FINES 152,907.59
10 000-1650 ALLOWANCE-FINES & FORFEITURES 114,680.69
10 000-2560 DEFERRED REVENUE-FINES 38,226.90
Total 152,907.59 152,907.59

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
To adjust industrial taxes allowance and deferred revenue as of

9/30/17.
10 000-2510 DEFERRED REVENUE-INDUSTRIAL 21,688.57
10 000-3102 INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT REVENUE 689.11
10 000-1140 INDUSTRIAL TAXES DELINQUENT 2.30
10 000-1141 ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLL DELINQ 21,688.57
10 000-2510 DEFERRED REVENUE-INDUSTRIAL 686.81
Total 22,377.68 22,377.68

Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 5
GASB 68 JE#1: To reverse prior year deferred outflows -
contributions after the measurement date.

25 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 7,424.77

40 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE . 226,160.97

82750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 22,347.16

83 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 24,316.06

25000-1811 DEF OUT - CONTRIBUTIONS 7,424.77

40 000-1811 DEF OUT - CONTRIBUTIONS 226,160.97

82 000-1811 DEF OUT - CONTRIBUTIONS 22,347.16

83 000-1811 DEF OUT - CONTRIBUTIONS 24,316.06
Total 280,248.96 280,248.96
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3/14/2018
1:04 PM

Client: City of Deer Park, Texas
Engagement: City of Deer Park 09/30/17
Period Ending: 9/30/2017
Trial Balance: - 2.2.01-TB
Workpaper: 2.6.06 - Adjusting Journal Entries Report
Account Description Debit Credit
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6
GASB 68 JE#2: Current year amortization of prior year deferred
items.
25 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 529.20
25750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 7,051.70
40 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 15,836.51
40 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 211,024.95
82 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 1,342.82
82 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 17,893.42
83 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 2,411.62
83 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 32,133.97
25 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 6,698.95
25 000-1812 DEF OUT-EXP AND ACT EXPERIENCE 80.60
25 000-1813 DEF OUT-CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS 801.35
40 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 200,468.93
40 000-1812 DEF OUT-EXP AND ACT EXPERIENCE 2,411.89
40 000-1813 DEF OUT-CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS 23,980.64
82 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 16,998.34
82 000-1812 DEF OUT-EXP AND ACT EXPERIENCE 204.51
. 82 000-1813 DEF OUT-CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS 2,033.39 -
83 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 30,526.55
83 000-1812 DEF OUT-EXP AND ACT EXPERIENCE 367.27
83 000-1813 DEF OUT-CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS 3,651.67
Total 288,224.09 288,224.09
Adjusting Journal Entries JE#7
GASB 68 JE#3: Recognize new deferred items for FY17.
25 000-2325 NET PENSION OBLIGATION 102.36
40 000-2325 NET PENSION OBLIGATION 3,063.06
82 000-2325 NET PENSION OBLIGATION 259.73
83 000-2325 NET PENSION OBLIGATION 466.43
25000-1810  DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 30.12
250002810  DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 72.24
40 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 201.22
40 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 2,161.84
82 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 76.42
82 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 183.31
83 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 137.23
83 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 329.20
Total 3,891.58 3,891.58
Adjusting Journal Entries JE# 8
GASB 68 JE#4: To recognize pension expense and current year
amortizations.
25 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 6.02
25 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 13.53
25 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 1,266.84
40 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 180.24
40 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 404.84
40 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 37,910.83
82 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 15.28
82 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 34.33
82 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 3,214.57
83 000-1810 DEF OUT-INVESTMENT EXPERIENCE 27.45
83 000-2810 DEF IN-ACT EXP VS ASSUMPTION 61.65
83 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 5,772.89
25 000-2325 NET PENSION OBLIGATION 1,286.39
40 000-2325 NET PENSION OBLIGATION 38,495.91
82 000-2325 NET PENSION OBLIGATION 3,264.18
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Client: City of Deer Park, Texas
Engagement: City of Deer Park 09/30/17
Period Ending: 9/30/2017
Trial Balance: 2.201-7TB
Workpaper: 2.6.06 - Adjusting Journal Entries Report
Account Description Debit Credit
83 000-2325 NET PENSION OBLIGATION 5,861.99
Total 48,908.47 48,908.47
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 9
GASB 68 JE#5: To recognize deferred outflows - contributions after
the measurement date for FY17.
25 000-1811 DEF OUT - CONTRIBUTIONS 7,983.69
40 000-1811 DEF OUT - CONTRIBUTIONS 238,915.58
82 000-1811 DEF OUT - CONTRIBUTIONS 20,258.34
83 000-1811 DEF OUT - CONTRIBUTIONS 36,381.04
25 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 7.983.69
40 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 238,915.58
82 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 20,258.34
83 750-4197 PENSION EXPENSE 36,381.04
Total 303,538.65 303,538.65
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 10
To adjust ambulance AR, allowance, and def. rev. to match reports
as of 9/30/17. i
10 000-1330 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-AMBULANCE 54,389.09
10 000-2530 DEFERRED REVENUE-AMBULANCE 18,814.73
10 000-1331 ALLOWANCE-AMBULANCE 73,203.82
Total 73,203.82 73,203.82
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 11
To reclass attorney related property tax collections to net against
related payments.
10000-3119  ATTORNEY FEES 52,119.73
10 106-4293 SPECIAL SERVICES CITY ATTORNEY 52,119.73
Total 52,119.73 52,119.73
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 12
To reclass transfer from fiduciary fund to net against related
expenditures the fund is reimbursing for.
10 000-3642 TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL REVENUE 25,000.00
10 900-4999 PR YR EXPENDITURE 25,000.00
Total 25,000.00 25,000.00

3/14/2018
1:04 PM
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City of Deer Park DEER PARK, T 77536

o Legislation Details (With Text)
File #: DIS 18-032 Version: 1 Name:
Type: Discussion Status: Agenda Ready
File created: 3/12/2018 In control: City Council Workshop
On agenda: 3/20/2018 Final action:
Title: Discussion of issues relating to City Wide Christmas Decorations Program.
Sponsors:
Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: christmas_council

Date Ver. Action By Action Result

3/20/2018 1 City Council Workshop

Discussion of issues relating to City Wide Christmas Decorations Program.

Discussion of the current purchase of Christmas Decorations for fiscal year 2017-18 and present the
proposal for a 3-year Christmas Decoration purchase plan. Items discussed will be proposed future
purchases and logistics. Iltems listed have been prioritized for the current year and the following three
years. This plan is our attempt to meet the citizens’ demands in providing a traditional Christmas
decorated atmosphere.

FY 2017-18 $35,500 (Hotel/Motel)

1. City Hall Permanent Lighting (Lights & Labor) $17,000
2. (3) Street Banners $18,500
Total $35,500

FY 2018-19 $68,000 (Hotel/Motel)

1. 27’ Christmas tree for Theatre $23,000
(Current tree will be relocated to City Hall)

2. Star for Police Department $2,000

3. (6) 6’ Deer for the Library $15,000

4. 23 Santa $28,000

Total $68,000

FY 2019-20 $31,500 (Hotel/Motel)

1. (3) Snow Flakes $6,500
2. (6) 6 Deer for Theatre $15,000
City of Deer Park Page 1 of 2 Printed on 3/16/2018
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File #: DIS 18-032, Version: 1

3. Lights & Bulbs $5,000
4. Lights to back of City Hall $5,000
Total $31,500

FY 2020-21 $40,000 (Hotel/Motel)

1. Community Center Permanent Lighting (Lights & Labor)  $20,000

2. (6) 6’ Deer (Replacements-various locations) $20,000
Total $40,000

The additional purchases will increase Department labor approximately one week to decorate the
Christmas Tree and add several days to Public Works/Electrical Department to put up street banners.
The other items are replacements of existing decorations which will not add any abundant additional
time.

Historically and for reference from 2016, the Department began to wrap Christmas trees on
September 26" and it took 26 days using approximately five employees to complete wrapping all the
Christmas trees. Additionally it took another 12 - 15 days to put out all the City Wide Christmas
decorations. Lastly it took 18 days to take down all lights and Christmas decorations. Therefore
accumulative it took 59 days to totally complete the project. The total hours worked were estimated at
approximately 600 hours. This number has increased to a larger amount working days and hours. We
are currently calculating the total hours for 2017. This is inclusive of trouble shooting, inspecting,
putting up, taking down, replacing, maintenance, storing, separating lights and bulbs plus several
other variables.

None at this time

Discussion only
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FY 2017-18 $35,000 (HOT)

Permanent Lighting examples




Deer Street Banner example

FY 2018-19 $68,000 (HOT)

Star for PD example




Deer for the Library

23’ Santa on Reindeer




FY2019-20 #31,500 (HOT)

Snow Flakes
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sn Legislation Details (With Text)

File #: DIS 18-033 Version: 1 Name:

Type: Discussion Status: Agenda Ready

File created: 3/13/2018 In control: City Council Workshop

On agenda: 3/20/2018 Final action:

Title: Discussion of issues relating to purchase of playground equipment for Brookhollow, Brownwind, Park
Green and Parkside Place parks from Kompan Inc through cooperative agreement with U.S.
Communities Contract #2017001135.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Playground renovations 2018
SP56809 Kompan Sales Proposal Park Green
SP56830 Kompan Sales Proposal Brownwind (002)
SP56878 Kompan Sales Proposal Parkside Place
SP56879 Kompan Sales Proposal Brookhollow

Date Ver. Action By Action Result
3/20/2018 1 City Council Workshop

Discussion of issues relating to purchase of playground equipment for Brookhollow, Brownwind, Park
Green and Parkside Place parks from Kompan Inc through cooperative agreement with U.S.
Communities Contract #2017001135.

The Parks & Recreation Open Space Master Plan identifies upgrades and deficiencies in the park
system that needs to be addressed over a five year period. The proposed parks identified in this fiscal
year 2017-18 are Brookhollow, Brownwind, Park Green and Parkside Place. Council approved capital
expenditures in the fiscal year 2017-18 budget to add and replace equipment in these parks.

The presentation today identifies the proposed new and replacement pieces of equipment and how
they were vetted in the process.

Budgeted Amounts:
« Park Green $75,000
« Brownwind $50,000
« Parkside Place $65,000
«  Brookhollow $40,000
Total $230,000

Proposed Amounts:
« Park Green $90,222.64
« Brownwind $49,807.38

City of Deer Park Page 1 of 2 Printed on 3/16/2018

powered by Legistar™


http://cityofdeerpark.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=5879095&GUID=A0D2A8BE-A7D4-4DA0-92B2-6C298174E52A
http://cityofdeerpark.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=5882344&GUID=133C448D-A8D3-44E2-A6D0-46098AACFEA6
http://cityofdeerpark.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=5882457&GUID=F9DAAD51-364E-45F5-9DD8-C5625E0C54F3
http://cityofdeerpark.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=5882458&GUID=20E1BF64-F72F-444D-AFFE-1BCD212BB70D
http://cityofdeerpark.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=5882459&GUID=6BD31E8C-4D1D-4685-9384-2A189728BD6D

File #: DIS 18-033, Version: 1

* Parkside Place $55,136.74
«  Brookhollow $28,469.14
Total $223,635.90

Discussion only in workshop.
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PLAYGROUND
RENOVATIONS 2018




PARK GREEN, BROWNWIND, PARKSIDE PLACE,
BROOKHOLLOW

BUDGETED AMOUNTS PROPOSED AMOUNTS
* PARK GREEN: $75,000 *  PARK GREEN: $90,222.64
«  BROWNWIND: $50,000 - BROWNWIND: $49,807.38
* PARKSIDE PLACE: $65,000 * PARKSIDE PLACE: $55,136.74
« BROOKHOLLOW: $40,000 * BROOKHOLLOW: $28,469.14

« TOTAL: $230,000 « TOTAL: $223,635.90
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PARK GREEN
CURRENT

* PLAY STRUCTURE

* SWING SET

* BASKETBALL COURT

* PICNIC TABLE WITH SLAB
* ] BENCH

* 3 TRASHCANS




HOMPARN Product Info SUPERNOVA - GXY960
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BROWNWIND
CURRENT

e 2 PLAY STRUCTURES

- 1 DUE FOR RENOVATION
* 2 SWING SETS
e BASKETBALL COURT
* 3 BENCHES
e 3 TRASHCANS
*  WALKING TRAIL
e BUTTERFLY GARDEN




BROWNWIND
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NEW MEGA DECK TOWER

KOMPAN Product Info

MEGA TOWER W/ UPPER DECK, PHY
- PCMIT1804
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PARKSIDE PLACE
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PARKSIDE PLACE
CURRENT

* PLAY STRUCTURE

e SWING SET

e BASKETBALL COURT
* 1 PICNIC TABLE

* 2 BENCHES

* 2 TRASHCANS

°*  WALKING TRAIL

GRS




PARKSIDE PLACE
MNOILONED)

* DOUBLE TOWER WITH
WACKLE BRIDGE

KOMPAN Product Info

DOUBLE TOWER W/ WACKLE BRIDGE, PHY
- PCM310604
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BROOKHOLLOW




BROOKHOLLOW
CURRENT

*  SMALL PLAY STRUCTURE

2 SWING SETS

1 PICNIC TABLE

3 BENCHES

1 TRASHCAN
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KOMPAN% SALES PROPOSAL

Y COROCORD

KOMPAN, INC. * 821 Grand Ave Pkwy, Ste 410, Pflugerville, TX 78660 * Tel 1-888-579-8223 * Fax 1-888-579-8224 * www.kompan.com

Date 03/02/18
Expiration Date
Proposal No. SP56809
Project Park Green Playground
Ship to State/Zip TX 77536
Customer Service Representative JesVan
Sales Representative Shannon Barcelo
Payment Terms DEPS50%&N30

US.COMMUNITIES

GOVERNMENT PURCHASING ALLIANCE

G =Ne Near NLCE 9

Site Location: C0013610
Park Green Playground
Wynfield Drive
Deer Park, 77536
United States
Invoice-to: C0013610 Ship-to:
City of Deer Park Park Green Playground
610 E. San Augustine Wynfield Drive
P.O. Box 700 Deer Park, TX 77536
Deer Park, TX 77536 United States
United States
Qty. Item No. Description Unit Price Retail Price Disc. % Net Price
U.S. Communities Contract #2017001135
Park Green Playground Equipment:
1 CORS863002-0402 EXPLORER DOME US, Blue IG 59,240.00 59,240.00 10.00 53,316.00
1  GXY960010-3417 SUPERNOVA, Night Sky Blue IG 8,170.00 8,170.00 10.00 7,353.00
1 KSW924-CUSTOM KSW924 Custom Swing Variant: 20028772 3,700.00 3,700.00 10.00 3,330.00
2 Bay Swing w/ 4 Belt Seats, 8' IG
1 CUSTOMINSTALL Installation of KOMPAN Equipment 23,386.71 23,386.71 5.00 22,217.37
1  APS-ADA RAMP ADA Full Ramp System 808.00 808.00 10.00 727.20
1 CUSTOMINSTALL Installation of ADA Full Ramp System 76.92 76.92 5.00 73.07
1 FRT-PA Equip. Freight Middletown PA 3,206.00 3,206.00 3,206.00
Extension from Area 1 Explorer Dome to
Area 2 Swings is to be covered by the client.
Client is responsible for all land prep and
site work, including pulling back existing
ContiNUEd ON PAGE 2.....coiuiiiiie et 90,222.64
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Continued from Page L.......cooiieiiieie e
EWF to allow for Equipment Installation.

Total

Comments:

This quote assumes direct delivery.

Charges for permits are not included. An appropriate amount will be added if applicable.

A deposit will be required before order can be processed.

Please provide us with a copy of your tax-exempt certificate if applicable.

Customer is responsible for resilient surfacing appropriate to the height of the equipment.

Customer is responsible to do all site work prior to installation.

Please do not install any surfacing materials prior to the equipment dig and installation process.

The site should be as level as possible, and MUST have no more than a 1" (inch) in 10' (feet) slope

or change in elevation over the full length and width of the playground area.

Price assumes NO overhead (13'6" or lower) or underground (within 3'6" of surface) obstacles.

Additional charges will apply if hard rock/ledge is discovered at time of installation.

Your order includes installation of playground equipment and/or surfacing and amenities. If a delay in the installation
occurs, which is not caused by KOMPAN, the order will be divided and equipment will be invoiced at the time of delivery to
the site or authorized agent, and installation site amenities and related services will be invoiced when completed.
This proposal assumes that there is no Prevailing Wage requirement for this job.

Please allow 8-10 weeks for product delivery upon order placement.

Summary:
Retail Price Discount
Subtotal - KOMPAN Products 71,110.00 7,111.00
Subtotal - Other Products 808.00 80.80
Subtotal - Surfacing 0.00 0.00
Subtotal - Installation & Other Services 23,463.63 1,173.19
Subtotal - Freight 3,206.00 0.00
Subtotal 98,587.63 8,364.99
(Applicable sales tax will be added unless a valid tax exemption certificate is
Estimated Tax Rate provided. This amount is only an estimate of your tax liability.)
Total
Your acceptance of this proposal constitutes a valid order request and KOMPAN Authorized Signature:
includes acceptance of terms and conditions contained within the Master
Argeement, which is hereby acknowledged. Acceptance of this proposal by Accepted By (signature):
KOMPAN is acknowledged by issuance of an order confirmation by an
authorized KOMPAN representative. Prices in this quotation are good for 60 Accepted By (please print):
days.
This proposal may be withdrawn if not accepted by 04/24/18. Date:

KOMPAN Products are "Buy American" qualified, and compliant with the Buy
American Act of 1933 and the "Buy American"provision of the ARRA of 2009.

90,222.64

90,222.64

Net Price
63,999.00
727.20
0.00
22,290.44
3,206.00
90,222.64

0.00
90,222.64



KOMPAIGF SALES PROPOSAL
*®*COROCORD

KOMPAN, INC. * 821 Grand Ave Pkwy, Ste 410, Pflugerville, TX 78660 * Tel 1-888-579-8223 * Fax 1-888-579-8224 * www.kompan.com

Date 03/02/18
Expiration Date

I_T.S. COMMUNITIESﬂ Proposal No. SP56830

GOVERNMENT PURCHASING ALLIANCE Project Brownwind Playground
i Ship to State/Zip TX 77536
1 NG NGATs e _ :
--j‘-ﬁ'-—- =~ NG NLC: @ Customer Service Representative JesVan
Sales Representative Shannon Barcelo
Payment Terms DEPS50%&N30

Site Location: C0013610

Brownwind Playground
3901 Brownwind Trail
Deer Park, 77536
United States

Invoice-to: C0013610 Ship-to:
City of Deer Park Brownwind Playground
610 E. San Augustine 3901 Brownwind Trall
P.O. Box 700 Deer Park, TX 77536
Deer Park, TX 77536 United States

United States

Qty. Item No. Description Unit Price Retail Price Disc. % Net Price

U.S. Communities Contract #2017001135

Brownwind Playground Equipment:

1 PCM111804-0902 MEGA DECK TOWER W/TWO LEVELS 40,880.00 40,880.00 10.00 36,792.00
Plastic Slide, Steel Posts IG

1 CUSTOMINSTALL Installation of KOMPAN Equipment 10,691.69 10,691.69 5.00 10,157.11

1  APS-ADA RAMP ADA Full Ramp System 808.00 808.00 10.00 727.20

1 CUSTOMINSTALL Installation of ADA Full Ramp System 76.92 76.92 5.00 73.07

1 FRT-PA Equip. Freight Middletown PA 2,058.00 2,058.00 2,058.00
Total 49,807.38
Comments:

This quote assumes direct delivery.

Charges for permits are not included. An appropriate amount will be added if applicable.

A deposit will be required before order can be processed.

Please provide us with a copy of your tax-exempt certificate if applicable.

Customer is responsible for resilient surfacing appropriate to the height of the equipment.
Customer is responsible to do all site work prior to installation and address existing drainage issue.
Please do not install any surfacing materials prior to the equipment dig and installation process.


https://cityofdeerpark.legistar.com/www.kompan.com

The site should be as level as possible, and MUST have no more than a 1" (inch) in 10' (feet) slope

or change in elevation over the full length and width of the playground area.

Price assumes NO overhead (13'6" or lower) or underground (within 3'6" of surface) obstacles.

Your order includes installation of playground equipment and/or surfacing and amenities. If a delay in the installation
occurs, which is not caused by KOMPAN, the order will be divided and equipment will be invoiced at the time of delivery to
the site or authorized agent, and installation site amenities and related services will be invoiced when completed.

This proposal assumes that there is no Prevailing Wage requirement for this job.

Please allow 6-8 weeks for product delivery upon order placement.

Summary:
Retail Price Discount Net Price
Subtotal - KOMPAN Products 40,880.00 4,088.00 36,792.00
Subtotal - Other Products 808.00 80.80 727.20
Subtotal - Surfacing 0.00 0.00 0.00
Subtotal - Installation & Other Services 10,768.61 538.43 10,230.18
Subtotal - Freight 2,058.00 0.00 2,058.00
Subtotal 54,514.61 4,707.23 49,807.38
(Applicable sales tax will be added unless a valid tax exemption certificate is

Estimated Tax Rate provided. This amount is only an estimate of your tax liability.) 0.00
Total 49,807.38

Your acceptance of this proposal constitutes a valid order request and KOMPAN Authorized Signature:

includes acceptance of terms and conditions contained within the Master

Argeement, which is hereby acknowledged. Acceptance of this proposal by Accepted By (signature):

KOMPAN is acknowledged by issuance of an order confirmation by an

authorized KOMPAN representative. Prices in this quotation are good for 60 Accepted By (please print):

days.

This proposal may be withdrawn if not accepted by 04/28/18. Date:

KOMPAN Products are "Buy American" qualified, and compliant with the Buy
American Act of 1933 and the "Buy American"provision of the ARRA of 2009.



KOMPAN% SALES PROPOSAL

Y COROCORD

KOMPAN, INC. * 821 Grand Ave Pkwy, Ste 410, Pflugerville, TX 78660 * Tel 1-888-579-8223 * Fax 1-888-579-8224 * www.kompan.com

Date 03/02/18
Expiration Date

I_T.S. COMMUNITIESﬂ Proposal No. SP56878

GOVERNMENT PURCHASING ALLIANCE Project Parkside Place Playground
i Ship to State/Zip TX 77536
£ NG NGAS e _ :
--j‘-ﬁ'-—- =~ NG NLC: @ Customer Service Representative JesVan
Sales Representative Shannon Barcelo
Payment Terms DEPS50%&N30

Site Location: C0013610

Parkside Place Playground
3400 Surrey Lane

Deer Park, 77536

United States

Invoice-to: C0013610 Ship-to:
City of Deer Park Parkside Place Playground
610 E. San Augustine 3400 Surrey Lane
P.O. Box 700 Deer Park, TX 77536
Deer Park, TX 77536 United States

United States

Qty. Item No. Description Unit Price Retail Price Disc. % Net Price

U.S. Communities Contract #2017001135

Parkside Place Playground Equipment:

1 PCM310604-0902 TRIPLE TOWER W/WACKLE BRIDGE 45,990.00 45,990.00 10.00 41,391.00
Plastic Slide, IG
1 CUSTOMINSTALL Installation of KOMPAN Equipment 12,028.15 12,028.15 5.00 11,426.74
1 FRT-PA Equip. Freight Middletown PA 2,319.00 2,319.00 2,319.00
Total 55,136.74
Comments:

This quote assumes direct delivery.

Charges for permits are not included. An appropriate amount will be added if applicable.

A deposit will be required before order can be processed.

Please provide us with a copy of your tax-exempt certificate if applicable.

Customer is responsible for resilient surfacing appropriate to the height of the equipment.
Customer is responsible to do all site work prior to installation.

Please do not install any surfacing materials prior to the equipment dig and installation process.
The site should be as level as possible, and MUST have no more than a 1" (inch) in 10' (feet) slope
or change in elevation over the full length and width of the playground area.


https://cityofdeerpark.legistar.com/www.kompan.com

Price assumes NO overhead (13'6" or lower) or underground (within 3'6" of surface) obstacles.

Additional charges will apply if hard rock/ledge is discovered at time of installation.

Your order includes installation of playground equipment and/or surfacing and amenities. If a delay in the installation
occurs, which is not caused by KOMPAN, the order will be divided and equipment will be invoiced at the time of delivery to
the site or authorized agent, and installation site amenities and related services will be invoiced when completed.

This proposal assumes that there is no Prevailing Wage requirement for this job.

Please allow 6-8 weeks for product delivery upon order placement.

Summary:
Retail Price Discount Net Price
Subtotal - KOMPAN Products 45,990.00 4,599.00 41,391.00
Subtotal - Other Products 0.00 0.00 0.00
Subtotal - Surfacing 0.00 0.00 0.00
Subtotal - Installation & Other Services 12,028.15 601.41 11,426.74
Subtotal - Freight 2,319.00 0.00 2,319.00
Subtotal 60,337.15 5,200.41 55,136.74
(Applicable sales tax will be added unless a valid tax exemption certificate is

Estimated Tax Rate provided. This amount is only an estimate of your tax liability.) 0.00
Total 55,136.74

Your acceptance of this proposal constitutes a valid order request and KOMPAN Authorized Signature:

includes acceptance of terms and conditions contained within the Master

Argeement, which is hereby acknowledged. Acceptance of this proposal by Accepted By (signature):

KOMPAN is acknowledged by issuance of an order confirmation by an

authorized KOMPAN representative. Prices in this quotation are good for 60 Accepted By (please print):

days.

This proposal may be withdrawn if not accepted by 04/29/18. Date:

KOMPAN Products are "Buy American" qualified, and compliant with the Buy
American Act of 1933 and the "Buy American"provision of the ARRA of 2009.



KOMPAN% SALES PROPOSAL

Y COROCORD

KOMPAN, INC. * 821 Grand Ave Pkwy, Ste 410, Pflugerville, TX 78660 * Tel 1-888-579-8223 * Fax 1-888-579-8224 * www.kompan.com

Date 03/02/18
Expiration Date

I_T.S. COMMUNITIESﬂ Proposal No. SP56879

GOVERNMENT PURCHASING ALLIANCE Project Brookhollow Park

Ship to State/Zip TX 77536
Customer Service Representative JesVan

G =Ne Near NLCE 9

Sales Representative Shannon Barcelo
Payment Terms DEPS50%&N30

Site Location: C0013610
Brookhollow Park
3117 Brookhollow Dr.
Deer Park, 77536

United States

Invoice-to: C0013610 Ship-to:
City of Deer Park Brookhollow Park
610 E. San Augustine 3117 Brookhollow Dr.
P.O. Box 700 Deer Park, TX 77536
Deer Park, TX 77536 United States

United States

Qty. Item No. Description Unit Price Retail Price Disc. %

U.S. Communities Contract #2017001135

Brookhollow Park Equipment:

1  BLX410401-3717 BLOQX 4, Orange/Blue IG 23,630.00 23,630.00 10.00
1 CUSTOMINSTALL Installation of KOMPAN Equipment 6,180.15 6,180.15 5.00
1 FRT-PA Equip. Freight Middletown PA 1,331.00 1,331.00

Total

Comments:

This quote assumes direct delivery.

Charges for permits are not included. An appropriate amount will be added if applicable.

A deposit will be required before order can be processed.

Please provide us with a copy of your tax-exempt certificate if applicable.

Customer is responsible for resilient surfacing appropriate to the height of the equipment.
Customer is responsible to do all site work prior to installation.

Please do not install any surfacing materials prior to the equipment dig and installation process.
The site should be as level as possible, and MUST have no more than a 1" (inch) in 10' (feet) slope
or change in elevation over the full length and width of the playground area.

Price assumes NO overhead (13'6" or lower) or underground (within 3'6" of surface) obstacles.

Net Price

21,267.00
5,871.14
1,331.00

28,469.14


https://cityofdeerpark.legistar.com/www.kompan.com

Additional charges will apply if hard rock/ledge is discovered at time of installation.

Your order includes installation of playground equipment and/or surfacing and amenities. If a delay in the installation
occurs, which is not caused by KOMPAN, the order will be divided and equipment will be invoiced at the time of delivery to
the site or authorized agent, and installation site amenities and related services will be invoiced when completed.

This proposal assumes that there is no Prevailing Wage requirement for this job.

Please allow 6-8 weeks for product delivery upon order placement.

Summary:
Retail Price Discount Net Price
Subtotal - KOMPAN Products 23,630.00 2,363.00 21,267.00
Subtotal - Other Products 0.00 0.00 0.00
Subtotal - Surfacing 0.00 0.00 0.00
Subtotal - Installation & Other Services 6,180.15 309.01 5,871.14
Subtotal - Freight 1,331.00 0.00 1,331.00
Subtotal 31,141.15 2,672.01 28,469.14
(Applicable sales tax will be added unless a valid tax exemption certificate is

Estimated Tax Rate provided. This amount is only an estimate of your tax liability.) 0.00
Total 28,469.14

Your acceptance of this proposal constitutes a valid order request and KOMPAN Authorized Signature:

includes acceptance of terms and conditions contained within the Master

Argeement, which is hereby acknowledged. Acceptance of this proposal by Accepted By (signature):

KOMPAN is acknowledged by issuance of an order confirmation by an

authorized KOMPAN representative. Prices in this quotation are good for 60 Accepted By (please print):

days.

This proposal may be withdrawn if not accepted by 04/29/18. Date:

KOMPAN Products are "Buy American" qualified, and compliant with the Buy

American Act of 1933 and the "Buy American"provision of the ARRA of 2009.
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o Legislation Details (With Text)
File #: DIS 18-030 Version: 1 Name:
Type: Discussion Status: Agenda Ready
File created: 3/5/2018 In control: City Council Workshop
On agenda: 3/20/2018 Final action:
Title: Discussion of issues relating to the update of the City’s Classification Scales.
Sponsors:
Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: city engineer job desc
Reference Assistant--Job Desc
Reference Librarian--Part Time 2018
PT PR-Marketing Assistant - Job Description
2017 _18 Classification Scales rev March 2018 cty engr_pt ref librarian_PR mktg asst
Ordinance

Date Ver. Action By Action Result

3/20/2018 1 City Council Workshop
Discussion of issues relating to the update of the City’s Classification Scales.

Summary:

Discussion of issues relating to an ordinance to add a City Engineer and a Part-Time Reference
Assistant to the City’s Classification Scales and to change the classifications of the Digital Media
Specialist and the Part-Time Reference Librarian.

Justification for the Library roles: With the changes made in the renovation, the Reference Desk has to be
covered during open hours. Since we our open more than 40 hours a week, we have to have multiple people
working at that desk. Without these part-time positions we have to cover the desk using existing staff. This
means that other staff, some not formally trained in reference work, have to take time away from their other
duties to cover the desk.

Justification for the change from Digital Media Specialist to PR/Marketing Assistant: Need for this part
-time role to be expanded from digital media responsibilities to also assist with public relations and
outreach efforts including advertisement design and presence at live events.

Justification for the City Engineer role: This role will take on several duties of the Stormwater
Specialist, which will be eliminated. The city engineer will be a Registered Professional Engineer
Licensed to practice in Texas and will be responsible for “in-house” engineering design for projects
including but not limited to water, sewer, streets, and drainage infrastructure, including certifying city
plans with his PE license; responsible for developing bid documents, detailed construction estimates,
and oversight of the bidding process; supervising and monitoring construction inspectors overseeing
projects and holding progress meetings with contractors; assisting developers with the prompt

City of Deer Park Page 1 of 2 Printed on 3/16/2018
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File #: DIS 18-030, Version: 1

resolution of issues and streamlining the development approval process; assist in long range
planning support for city capital improvements projects, and responding to and resolving difficult and
sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

Fiscal/Budgetary Impact:

Estimated less than $18,000.00 for partial year and offset of existing Stormwater role. No additional
funds estimated to be needed for the PR/Marketing role.

Discussion only in workshop. An item to consider an ordinance to amend the classification scales is
on the March 20, 2018 regular meeting agenda.
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CITY OF DEER PARK

JOB DESCRIPTION

CLASS TITLE: City Engineer i’ - i }OB CODE NUMBER:
DEPARTMENT: january 8, 2018 / LOCATION: City Hall

Job description statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed
by employees assigned to this job title. They are not intended to be construed as an exhaustive list of
responsibilities, duties and skills required.

Job Summary:;

Performs complex supervisory, administrative and professional work in planning, design, organizing and
directing the Engineering Department. Oversee engineering design work including water, wastewater,
paving and drainage. Coordinates assigned activities with other City departments, divisions, and other
outside agencies. Provides highly responsible and complex administrative support to the Director of
Public Works. Responsible for maintaining the City in compliance with the Phase Il Municipal Separate
Storm Sewer Systermn (MS4) TPDES General Permit and administers required activities of the City of Deer
Park Storm Water Management Program.

Attendance is an essential function of this position. The City reserves the right to require an
employee in this position to work more than 40 hours a week. This position provides services or
performs duties for the benefit of the general public during emergency situations. These may
include services or duties different from those performed in the usual course and scope of your
job. In the event of an evacuation, the incumbent in this position may be required to remain to

perform needed services.

SUPERVISION
Supervises Engineering Department under the direction of the Director of Public Works

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBLITIES

1. Responsible for the CAD design and production of in-house projects, including but not limited to
water, sewer, streets, and drainage infrastructure using traditional and trenchless technology
methods.

2. Responsible for developing hid documents, detailed construction estimates, and oversight of the
bidding process. Conducts pre-bid conferences, tabulate bids, prepare agenda items, drafts
recommendation of award To City Council, holds preconstruction meeting and issues Notice to
Proceed.



10.

11,
12.
13.

14.

15.
16.

17.
i8.
19.

20.
21.
22.
23.

Provides project oversight during construction to ensure project is constructed in accordance
with the plans and specifications and within time and budget. Supervises and monitors
construction inspectors overseeing projects and holds monthly progress meetings with
contractors.

Meets with and negotiates with contractors regarding change orders and pay estimates.
Assigns work activities, projects and programs; monitor work flow; review and evaluate work
products, methods and procedures as needed. Determines work procedures, prepares work
schedules and expedites work flow.

Assist all developers with the prompt resolution of issues and to streamline the development

approval process.

Develop, plan and implement goals and objectives for the Engineering Department, recommend
and administer policies and procedures.

Evaiuates department needs and formulates short and long range plans to meet needs in all
areas of responsibility

Studies and standardizes department policies and procedures to improve efficiency and
effectiveness of operations.

Evaluation, select and administrator outside consulting contracts for construction projects and
prepare recommendations regarding the hiring of consultants and contractors.

Provide assistance in long range planning support for City capital improvements projects.
Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints.

Responsible for implementing/enforcing components of Deer Park’s Storm Water Management
Program.

Prepares, updates, and maintains reports proving compliance with the Clean Water Act/Storm
Water Management Program.

Performs pre-construction, construction and post-construction Storm Water inspections.
Investigates illicit connections to the City of Deer Park storm sewer system and illicit discharges
to watercourses within the City of Deer Park.

Perform Dry/Wet Weather Screening activities including interpretation and reporting of results.
Responds to and investigates storm water complaints.

Maintain records and files of inspections; prepares documentation; issues citations; and
represents the City in court cases and hearings, when necessary.

Develop storm water educational materials and conduct training events.

Investigates, documents, and reports flood plain violations.

A working knowledge of ARC-GIS software, SDE databases, and AutoCAD is a plus.

Assists in review of civil engineering plans as they pertain to 404 issues and storm water BMP’s,
as well as review of CIP and other Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans.

EDUCATION, CERTIFICATION, & EXPERIENCE

Required:
1. Bachelor of Science degree in Civil or Environmental Engineering from an accredited college
OF university.
2. Registered Professional Engineer Licensed to practice in Texas.
3. A minimum ten years of extensive experience designing water, wastewater, paving and drainage

improvement projects for municipalities.



4. Valid Texas driver’s license with acceptable driving record.

5. Proficiency in using computer equipment and computer experience with Microsoft Office
Suite Products.

6. Have developed, designed and implemented & Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4}
program.

7. Working knowledge of AutoCAD.

8. Experience rehabilitating public infrastructure using traditional and Trenchless Technology methods.

Preferred:

1. Storm Water Inspector Certification, Erosion and Sediment Control Certifications, or able to
acquire within one year of employment.

2. Two years regulatory or environmental enforcement related experience.

3. Advanced knowledge in Microsoft Office Suite Products, and other computer programs.

4, Ability to utilize GIS ArcView or ArcMap, Looking Glass, and other GIS based programs to locate
property, property owners, verify zoning, and develop and verify impervious cover of properties.

5. Bilingual/Spanish.

The job description does not constitute and employment agreement between the employer and
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of

the job change.

Approval: Approval:

Supervisor Appointing Authority



POSITION DESCRIPTION

Class Title:  Reference Assistant —Part Time Job Code Number:
Department: Library Grade Number:
Division: Union:

Date: March 1, 2018 Location:

GENERAL PURPOSE
Performs a variety of instructional tasks; assists patrons by answering reference questions
and in use of library technology.
SUPERVISION RECEIVED
Works under the general guidance and direction of the Head of Adult Services and
Library Director.
SUPERVISON EXERCISED
Occasionally exercises administrative direction over the circulation personnel, including
shelvers.
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
e Assist patrons with basic computer needs
e Assist patrons with library catalog and in the use of library technology and
resources
e May teach computer classes in a formal classroom setting, on a variety of subjects
including computer skills, Microsoft Office, and electronic resources.
e Provide readers’ advisory and reference services
e Prepare reports and maintain records when assigned
e Assist at circulation desk when needed

o Performs other work as needed

PERIPHERAL DUTIES
Attend workshops as needed or as available.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS
Education and Experience:
e Graduation from a college or university with a Bachelor’s Degree in liberal arts,

library science or other related field.

Part time Reference Assistant 1 3/13/2018



e Experience with computer software and technology
¢ Proficient in Windows and Microsoft Office
¢ Internet search skills

o Experience in accomplishing objectives within team setting

Other experience:

e Prior public library or equivalent experience, a plus

e Prior experience using an online catalog and other library databases or electronic
resources, a plus

e Presentation/Instruction experience and skills, a plus

o Bilingual (Spanish and English), a plus

Necessary Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:
e Ability to work well with public
e Prior research experience
e Strong automation/computer background
e Good written and oral communication skills
o Flexibility and ability to exercise sound judgment
e Ability to work independently as well as in groups

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

Valid State Driver’s License or ability to obtain one.

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED

Library Automation System; Desktop Computer and/or Laptop; Online databases; and
other standard office equipment (i.e. copy and fax machine).

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

Part time Reference Assistant 2 3/13/2018



While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to walk, sit,
stand, listen and talk, or hear. The employee is occasionally required to use hands to
finger, handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms.
The employee is occasionally required to climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch or crawil.

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 25 pounds. Specific vision
abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral
vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

The noise level in the work environment depends on the number of patrons visiting the
Library at any given time.

SELECTION GUIDELINES

Formal application, rating of education and experience; oral interview and reference
check; job related tests may be required.

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that
may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them
from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer
and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change.

Approval: Approval:
Supervisor Appointing Authority

Effective Date: Revision History:

Part time Reference Assistant 3 3/13/2018



POSITION DESCRIPTION

Class Title: Reference Librarian —Part Time Job Code Number:

Department: Library Grade Number:
Division: Union:
Date: January 26, 2018 Location:

GENERAL PURPOSE
Performs a variety of instructional tasks, assisting patrons and developing reference
collection.
SUPERVISION RECEIVED
Works under the general guidance and direction of the Head of Adult Services and
Library Director.
SUPERVISON EXERCISED
Occasionally exercises administrative direction over the circulation personnel, including
shelvers.
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
e Provide readers’ advisory and reference services
e Assist patrons in use of automation system and the Public Internet computers
e Provide bibliographic instruction, in both one on one and formal classroom
setting, on a variety of subjects including computer skills, Microsoft Office, and
electronic resources.
e Prepare reports and maintain records when assigned
e Assist at circulation desk when needed
o Select reference and adult nonfiction materials with supervision from Head of
Adult Services

e Performs other work as needed

PERIPHERAL DUTIES
Attend workshops as needed or as available.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

Education and Experience:

Part time Reference Librarian 1 3/13/2018



e Graduation from a college or university with an ALA-accredited MLS or MLIS
degree or completion of degree within 6 months of hire-in date.

o Experience with computer software and technology, including use of online
catalog and electronic resources

e Working knowledge of Windows and Microsoft Office

e Internet search skills

o Knowledge of trends in reference and instruction services

e Presentation/Instruction experience and skills

e Experience in accomplishing objectives within team setting

Preferred
e Desire one to three (1-3) years public library experience

o Experience working as a reference librarian in a public library
e Supervisory experience, a plus

e Bilingual (Spanish and English), a plus

Necessary Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:
e Ability to work well with public
e Knowledge of reference work
e Strong automation/computer background
e Strong skills in the use of electronic resources and library technology
e Good written and oral communication skills
o Flexibility and ability to exercise sound judgment

e Ability to work independently as well as in groups

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

Valid State Driver’s License or ability to obtain one.

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED

Library Automation System; Desktop Computer and/or Laptop; Online databases; and
other standard office equipment (i.e. copy and fax machine).

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

Part time Reference Librarian 2 3/13/2018



The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to walk, sit,
stand, listen and talk, or hear. The employee is occasionally required to use hands to
finger, handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms.
The employee is occasionally required to climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch or crawil.

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 25 pounds. Specific vision
abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral
vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

The noise level in the work environment depends on the number of patrons visiting the
Library at any given time.

SELECTION GUIDELINES

Formal application, rating of education and experience; oral interview and reference
check; job related tests may be required.

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that
may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them
from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer
and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change.

Approval: Approval:
Supervisor Appointing Authority

Effective Date: Revision History:

Part time Reference Librarian 3 3/13/2018



PART-TIME PR/MARKETING ASSISTANT — JOB DESCRIPTION

General purpose:

Reports directly to the PR/Marketing Specialist in order to assist with public relations and outreach
efforts for the City of Deer Park, Texas including advertisement design, generation of digital media
content and presence at live events.

Supervision received:

Works under the immediate supervision of the PR/Marketing Specialist.

Supervision exercised:

None.

Essential duties and responsibilities:

Regular and timely attendance

Assist with the branding/marketing of the City through integrated marketing communications
including social media outreach.

Assist in maintaining and updating the City’s website and social media networks, including but
not limited to Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and YouTube.

Assist in monitoring social media networks of surrounding cities and entities.

Posts updates, news and announcements in a timely manner using appropriate content.
Assist with writing and distributing press releases and with media relations.

Assist with conceptualizing and designing advertisements in a variety of mediums with clean,
professional and attractive final designs.

Assist with live events including trade shows and holiday events.

Communicate courteously and effectively with the public, officials and other city employees.
Perform other duties as assigned.

Education and Experience

Graduation from high school or GED equivalent

Two (2) years of professional experience designing digital and/or print advertising

Two (2) years of professional experience managing social media networks with an emphasis in
youth markets, promotions and/or events

Some college with emphasis in Marketing, Public Relations, English and/or Communications
preferred

Necessary Knowledge, Skills and Abilities

Strong understanding and knowledge of Microsoft Office and Adobe programs (InDesign,
Illustrator, Photoshop)

Ability to read, analyze and interpret City reports, journals, procedures, etc. as applied to the
determination of key details for use in advertisements



- Ability to operate a Mac and/or PC, scanner, copier, digital camera and other standard office
equipment.

- Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with co-workers, supervisors
and the general public

- Ability to follow oral and written directions

- Ability to effectively plan, monitor and complete tasks and assignments; ability to work under
tight deadlines

- Strong personal and communication skills are essential

- Ability to work independently and participate effectively in a team environment

Applicants will be required to pass a writing test and should be ready to present samples of previous
advertising campaigns.



City of Deer Park
Classification Scale

March 20, 2018 - September 30, 2018

LEADERSHIP SCALE (Non-Classified Staff)

D61/C51-P C52P/D62 D64 D65
Asst. Dir - Pub Wrks - Devel. Police Lieutenant Police Captain
Asst. Dir - Parks n Rec. City Engineer
Fire Marshal
Operations Supervisor
E81 E82 E83 E91
City Secretary Emerg. Services Director Finance Director Asst. City Manager

Library Director

Human Resources Director
Asst. Police Chief
Parks & Rec. Director

IT Director
Public Works Director

Police Chief

F10

City Manager




City of Deer Park
Classification Scale
March 20, 2018 - September 30, 2018

PART TIME SCALE (Non-Classified Staff)

PAY RANGE NO. 1

PAY RANGE NO. 2

PAY RANGE NO. 3

PAY RANGE NO. 4

PAY RANGE NO. 5

Clerk

Youth Activites Aide

PAY RANGE NO. 6

PAY RANGE NO. 7

PAY RANGE NO. 8

PAY RANGE NO. 9

PAY RANGE NO. 10

Administrative Aide

Library Page

Program Aide

Program Aide w/CDL (Stp C)

Library Clerk

Program Leader
School Crossing Guards
Shelter Attendant

After School Asst. Coord.

Reference Assistant

P&R Laborer PR/Mktg Assistant PAY RANGE NO. 11
Recreation Intern (College) Reference Librarian
Receptionist Fire Inspector
Paramedic
TEMPORARY SCALE (Non-Classified Staff)

PAY RANGE NO. 1

PAY RANGE NO. 2

PAY RANGE NO. 3

PAY RANGE NO. 4

PAY RANGE NO. 5

Police House Checker

Swim Aide/Cashier
Swim Aide/Cash w/Cert-Stp D
Summer Laborer

PAY RANGE NO. 6

PAY RANGE NO. 7

PAY RANGE NO. 8

PAY RANGE NO. 9

PAY RANGE NO. 10

Athletic Leader
Lifeguard (A entry)
Lifeguard-WSI (C entry)
HR Intern

Meter Reader

Receptionist
Sanitation Laborer

NASCO Instructor (D entry)

Pool Manager
Scorekeeper




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF DEER PARK’S
CLASSIFICATION SCALE BY ADDING A POSITION UNDER PAYRANGE NO. 18 -
CITY ENGINEER, ADDING A POSITION UNDER PART-TIME PAYRANGE NO. 11 -
PART-TIME REFERENCE LIBRARIAN, UPDATING A POSITION UNDER PART-
TIME PAYRANGE NO. 10 - PART-TIME REFERENCE ASSISTANT, AND
UPDATING A POSITION UNDER PART-TIME PAYRANGE NO. 8 FOR THE
PR/MKTG. ASSISTANT ROLE FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DEER PARK;
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DEER PARK:

l.

The City Council of the City of Deer Park hereby amends the current City’s
Classification Scale by adding a position under payrange No. 18 — City Engineer, adding a
position under part-time payrange No. 11 - part-time reference librarian, updating a position
under part-time payrange No. 10 — part-time reference assistant, and updating a position under
part-time payrange No. 8 for the pr/mktg. assistant.

1.

This Ordinance shall be effective April 1, 2018.

1.

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with any of the provisions of this

Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as the same are in conflict with the provisions thereof.
V.

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was

adopted was open to the public and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said
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meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of
Texas.
V.

The City Council finds that this Ordinance relates to the immediate preservation of the
public peace, health, safety and welfare, in that it is necessary for the protection of the citizens of
this City and the property located therein, that provisions be made for the payment of the City
employees listed herein at the rates listed so that they be retained in service to protect the citizens
and their property, thereby creating an emergency, for which the Charter requirement providing
for the reading of ordinances on three (3) several days should be dispensed with, and this
Ordinance be passed finally on its introduction; and, accordingly, such requirement is dispensed
with, and this Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and approval by the Mayor.

In accordance with Article VIII, Section 1 of the City Charter, this Ordinance was

introduced before the City Council of the City of Deer Park, Texas, passed, approved and adopted on

this the __ day of , 2018 by a vote of “Aves” and

“Noes”.

MAYOR, City of Deer Park, Texas

ATTEST:

City Secretary
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APPROVED:

City Attorney
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Date Ver. Action By Action Result

3/20/2018 1 City Council Workshop

Discussion of issues relating to an update regarding the Pratt Truss Bridge structure at the
Battleground Golf Course.

Summary:

The Pratt Truss Bridge located at the Battleground Golf Course was originally constructed in 1891 in
Coryell County, Texas. The bridge is a 90-foot-long metal pin-connected Pratt through truss. It was
built by the Clinton Bridge and Iron Company of Clinton, lowa, and is the only known bridge built by
this company remaining in Texas. The bridge was relocated in the mid-1990’s from Coryell County to
the Battleground Golf Course as part of an Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA)
transportation enhancement project. The ISTEA grant application for the project included $100,000 in
federal funds and a $25,000 local match from the City.

A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) signed by the Federal Highway Administration, the Texas State
Historic Preservation Officer (SHPQO) and TxDOT in late 1994, indicates that these three parties
agreed to the relocation of the bridge to the Battleground Golf Course. According to the MOA, at the
time of the bridge relocation, the City of Deer Park was to sign a separate “preservation and
maintenance agreement” subject to review and comment by the State Historic Preservation Officer
(SHPO). The City of Deer Park and the Texas Historic Commission (THC) have been unable to locate
a copy of this agreement. However, subsequent to the February 20, 2018 Council Workshop, and as
a result of receipt of an open records request, the City’s Public Works staff have found the
“Agreement for the Acquisition of the Historical Bridge” that was executed between the City of Deer
Park and Coryell County in 1995. This agreement contains a clause that states that the recipient (City
of Deer Park) agrees to preserve and maintain the bridge and the features that give it its historic
significance.
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Since being relocated to the Battleground Golf Course, the bridge has been used for golf cart traffic
on the Course; however, the decking and support structure of the bridge have been replaced and the
iron truss elements have deteriorated over time. In 2012, a contract in the amount of $229,635 was
approved by the City which transferred the loads from the existing truss members to the new
structural support system and provided a safe path across the new deck and curb system and a new
stainless steel pedestrian rail. However, the Pratt Truss structure has continued to deteriorate. Due to
its condition, the City engaged RPS (formerly Klotz Associates) to perform an evaluation of the
historic significance of the Pratt Truss Bridge located at the Battleground Golf Course. Additionally
RPS was asked to explore options for the truss bridge which included 1) repairing the historic truss
structure, 2) replacing the truss structure with a similar type structure to maintain the historic
appearance of the bridge, or 3) removing the truss structure. RPS responded by providing the
following estimates for the Truss bridge:

1) $241,785 for repairing the historic truss structure

2) $159,300 for replacing the truss structure with a similar type structure to maintain the historic
appearance of the bridge

3) $40,500 for removing the truss structure.

As previously stated, a “preservation and maintenance agreement” document for the bridge has not
been located. However, the “acquisition agreement” containing a clause stating that the City of Deer
Park agrees to preserve and maintain the bridge and the features that give it its historic significance
has been located. The “acquisition agreement” document also has a couple of other interesting
components. First, it contains a termination section, which includes an option for either party (City or
Coryell County) to terminate upon 30 days written notice to the other party. Second, it contains a
“right of first refusal” clause stating that should the City decide to sell, donate or otherwise transfer the
title to the Bridge, the City shall notify the Mother Neff State Park Association of Moody, Texas at
least 30 days in advance. Based on the “acquisition agreement” verbiage and after a discussion
between the city attorney, city staff, and RPS, it was determined that the best course of action was to:

A. Request the Texas Historical Commission’s comments and input on the options being
considered; and

B. Request the Texas Historical Commission’s input on the status of the historical marker if the
replace or remove option is selected.

The following information is attached:

a. Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) signed by the Federal Highway Administration, the Texas
State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO)

b. Agreement for the Acquisition of the Historical Bridge
c. Cost estimates submitted by RPS

d. Marker file for the Pratt Truss Bridge Historical marker number 11958 Atlas number
5201011958

e. Letter to THC - March 2018.
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Fiscal/Budgetary Impact:
Options:
1) $241,785 for repairing the historic truss structure

2) $159,300 for replacing the truss structure with a similar type structure to maintain the historic
appearance of the bridge

3) $40,500 for removing the truss structure.

Discussion only.
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¢csJF: 0909-39-010

Memorandum of Agreement

Bridge Replacement at County Road
322 at Leon River

Coryell County

Dianna f. Noble, P.E.

Director of Environmental Affairs
Texas Department of Transportation
Austin, TX 78701-2488

Dear Ms. Noble:

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION
826 FEDERAL OFFICE BUILDING
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701-3276

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION @»ﬂ/l-(a |

December 15, 1994

I REPLY REFER TO

HN-TX

Enclosed are two copies of the signed Memorandum of Agreement for
the above referenced project. Please provide a copy to the Texas

State Historic Preservation officers.

Sincerely yours,

& Jrtick

John R. Mack
Acting District Engineer

VS
AT
L.
g7

o

) G
E'.‘r‘ 1!
.
X



Advisory
Council On
Historic
Preservation

The Old Post Office Building Reply to:

1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, #809
Washington, DC 20004

730 Simms Street, #401
Golden, Colorado 80401

November 21, 1994

Jesse I. Gray

Environmental Coordinator
Federal Highway Administration
826 Federal Office Building
Austin, TX 78701-3276

RE: Memorandum of Agreement regarding the removal and relocation
Coryell

of the County Road 322 Bridge at the Leon River,

County, Texas

Dear Mr. Gray:

The enclosed Memorandum of Agreement regarding the above referenced
project has been accepted by the Council. This action constitutes
the comments of the Council required by Section 106 of the National

Historic Preservation Act and the Council's regulations.

send copies of the signed Agreement to the Texas State Historic

Preservation Officer and your Federal Preservation Officer.

The Council appreciates your cooperation in reaching a satisfactory

resolution of this matter.

Sincerely,

(i

Claudia- Nissley
Director, Western Office
of Review

Enclosure



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
REGARDING THE REMOVAL AND RELOCATION OF THE
COUNTY ROAD 322 BRIDGE AT THE LEON RIVER
CORYELL COUNTY, TEXAS

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration {FHWA) has determined that the removal and
relocation of the bridge on County Road 322 at the Leon River, Coryell County, Texas, will have an
effect upon the bridge, a property eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places, and
has consulted with the Texas State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) and the Advisory Council on
Historic Preservation (Council} pursuant to 36 CFR Part 800, regulations implementing Section 106 of
the National Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C., Part 470f); and

WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) has participated in the consultation and
has been invited to concur in this Memorandum of Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, the FHWA and the Texas SHPO agree that the undertaking shall be implemented
in accordance with the following stipulations in order to take into account the effect of the undertaking
on historic properties.

STIPULATIONS

The City of Deer Park, Texas, will relocate the County Road 322 bridge to The Battleground at Deer
Park Golf Course as part of a transportation enhancement project funded in accordance with the
Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 19381 {ISTEAI.

The FHWA will ensure that the following measures are carried out in consultation with the SHPO prior
1o the removal and relocation of the County Road 322 bridge at the Leon River.

1. The SHPO shall be afforded 30 days to review and comment on the City of Deer Park's
relocation plan.

2. The City of Deer Park shall be required to sign a preservation and maintenance agreement
prior to relocating the subject bridge. The SHPO shall be afforded 30 days to review and
comment on this agreement.

3. TxDOT shall prepare a bridge documentation package consisting of the following items:

a. large format (4" x 5%} and/or medium format {120 film) photographs of the
bridge in its current setting;

b. dimensioned sketch plans; and
c. written data to include physical description, statement of significance, and brief
history. '

4. Three (3) documentation packages shall be provided to the SHPO. The SHPO shall be
afforded 30 days to review and comment on the documentation package.

5. Should the SHPO object within 30 days to any documents provided for review and approval
pursuant to this Memorandum of Agreement, the FHWA shall consult with the objecting party
to resolve the objection. If the FHWA determines that the objection cannot be resolved, the
FHWA shall forward all documentation relevant to the dispute to the Council. Within 30 days
after receipt of all pertinent documentation, the Council will either: *
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MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
REGARDING THE REMOVAL AND RELOCATION OF THE
COUNTY ROAD 322 BRIDGE AT THE LEON RIVER
CORYELL COUNTY, TEXAS

a. Provide the FHWA with recommendations, which the FHWA will take into account
in reaching a final decision regarding the dispute; or

b. Notify the FHWA that it will comment pursuant 10 36 CFR, Part 800.6(b], and
proceed to comment. Any Council comment provided in response 10 such a request
will be taken into account by the FHWA in accordance with 36 CFR, Part 800.61{c) (2}
with reference to the subject of the dispute. -,
Any recommendation of comment provided by the Council will be understood to pertain only
to the subject of the dispute; the FHWA's responsibility to carry out all actions under this
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA} that are not the subjects of the dispute will remain
unchanged.

6. At any time during implementation of the measures stipulated in this agreement, should an
objection to any such measure.be raised by a member of the public, the FHWA shall take the
objection into account and consult as needed with the objecting party, the SHPO, or the
Council to resolve the objection.

Execution of this Memorandum of Agreement by the FHWA and the Texas SHPQ, its
subsequent acceptance’ by the Council, and implementation of its terms, evidence that the
FHWA has afforded the Council an opportunity to comment on the bridge replacement on
County Road 322 at the Leon River in Coryell County, Texas, and its effects upon historic
properties, and that the FHWA has taken into account the effects of the undertaking on
historic properties.
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MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
REGARDING THE REMOVAL AND RELOCATION OF THE
COUNTY ROAD 322 BRIDGE AT THE LEON RIVER
CORYELL COUNTY, TEXAS

SIGNATORIES

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION

d M, DATE: 4 /3 /9‘/

Frank M. Mayer
Division Administrator

TEXAS STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER

BY: %’//%/7%% . oatedd (2%,/??{4(

Curtls Tunné/ il
State Historic Preservation Officer

CONCUR:

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OFf TRANSPORTATION

BY: /ﬂﬂm} J m pate: L0267

Dianna F/ﬁ(gble, P.E.
Director of Environmental Affairs

ACCEPTED BY:

ADVISORY COUNCIL ON HISTORIC PRESERVATION

BY:




RECEIVE:
1 APR 17199
CEN' winesN

l Texas Department of Transportatiom:co.

P.O. BOX 1386 » HOUSTON, TEXAS 77251-1386 » (713) 869-4571
April 11, 1995

Contact: GYJ-CCA
Harris County
CSJ 0912-71-438

VA: Battleground at Deer Park
Enhancement Project

Mr. Dan Spain, P.E.

Centurion Consulting Group
9000 Gulf Freeway, Suite 250
Houston, Texas 77017

Dear Mr. Spain:

Refer to the Agreement for the Acquisition of the Historical Bridge document enclosed.
This letter is to give written authorization to the City of Deer Park and Centurion Ctl?nsulting
Group for the removal of the historical bridge from the existing location. Pleaée make
reference to Page 3, Section 1-C, which states that you will have 30 days in which to
accomplish this. It will be up to the interested parties to coordinate with the Waco District
as to the storage of the bridge until it will be transported and relocated to the City of Deer
Park.

Should you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact Mr. Javier M.
Zamora at (713) 802-5793. S
Sincerely, ‘
é""\mﬁ r\s OQ\AB\- \?-t—‘"
- Gus Nowak, P.E.
Consultant Contract Engineer
Houston District
JMZ:Ib
Attachment

be: Mr. Gabriel Y. Johnson, P.E.
Ms. Eliza Polansky, Waco District

An Equial Opportunity Employer



STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF CORYELL

AGREEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION
0OF A HISTORIC 8RIDGE STRUCTURE
(COUNTY-OWNED FACILITY)

THIS AGHEEMENT is mage by and between the S1ate of Texas, acting by aad through the Texas

Oepartment of Transportation, hereinafier identified as the “State”, the County of Corysll,

acting by ang through its duly authocazed oHicers. hereinafter identified as the “County”™ ang

The City of Deer Park, Texzs. hereinafter identified as the “Recipiear™.

WITNESSETH
!

WHEREAS, the County owns and operates a system of roadwzys for ;Eublic use and benefit includng

County Road No. 322, ang |

WHEREAS, the Caunty roadway includes a bridge structure 3t the Leon River, hgreinatter identifiad ag

the “Bridge~, that has bean determined efigible for listing in 1ke Nationa! Register of Historic Places:

304

W‘HEHEAS_ 23 USC 144 esteblished the Historie Bridge Program to provide for the rchcbillt:tion-. roved

3nd preservation ol historic bridges; and

WHEREAS, the Historic Bridge Program providas that any State which oroposes to demolish a historic

beidge for 3 replacement poreject ungder a federateid progeam shail make the bridge svailable for

donation 10 publc ec privara entities: and

Fage 1 ol 7



WHEREAS. on the 4th day of Uclober. 1993, the Recpient submitted 3 prepocal to the State
cvidéncing its desire to acquire the Bridge under the prowiions of (e Historic Bridage vrogram; and
WHEREAS. the State has accepted the Recipient's propoesal 1 acquite the Beage and preserve the
Bridge in accordance with the provisions of the Historlc Bndge Program and this agreement;

AGREEMELT

NOw, THEREFORE, in cons«deration of the premises and o the mutudl cuvenants and agraements of

the parties hérate 10 be by them respectively kep_t and perfarmed as hereinafier swr torth; it is agreed

as follows:

1. USE AND ACQUISITION OF THE BRIOGE

A. The Recipient agress that the Bridge will not bh yyed o= 2 public road 85 a velicular traffic faciity.
The Recipient shall submit plans ta the State and the Cov=ty indicating the prepcsed tocetion where
the Bridge will be relocsted. how the Bridge will be removaed frem the existing location and
rezssembled 3t the new locztion. and how the Redpian: wili yse the Bridge. The plans shall be

approved by the State and the County prior to the Reckesan: Faving the opporunity 1o acquire the

Bridoe.

é. The Recoipient agrees 10 preserve and maintain the Broge and the features that give it 11s histoeic
significence. sdhearing 1o the provisions of tha U.Si. Secrersry =f Interinc s Stancards for Reh zbilization
(NBrional Park Service, 1992t hereov incorparared by re'seance 300 macs 3 cart of this agreemem as
thouyh fully set forth herein The Stale shall inspect the 2-age solely lor the purpose of verifyiag that

1t has been re-erected according ro 1ne epproved plans. W--riena 2pproval must ba granted by the State

Drior 10 authenization of reimtursement of the 3MouUnt d=s.ncd nerain
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€. The Recipient shall have the Bridge completely removeg from the exisung 0caton within 10 days
|

{corh date of the State’s wrirten suthorization to remove the facility. The State and the County wiif te

afforded the oppOrTunity to inspect and monitor the actual remaval of the Briage 1n tha event the
Racipient has not removed the Boidge to the satisfaction of the State. the State may remove the Brigge

and this sgreement will be terminated. The State will not be responsibie 0 the Recipient for any

teimbuyrsement of COSt5 in the event this agreement is vefminated. and tille of Bridge remains with the

County.

0. The Recipient must have the Brigge re-¢rectsd 2t the new 10CEGON within 3O Jays from the gate ot

final removal from the current location.

2. BEIMBURSEMENT QF T
i .

The State wifl reimburse the Recipient an amount not 10 excead tan-thousand dediars (510.000) tor
t

costs the Recip'mntﬁn'curs In retocating the Bridge, provided the Recipient sgries to and compligs with

3h terms and conditions established in thiz 2greament. Paymant will be mada within thirty (3C) days

frorn the date of the State’s fing! approval of the reassembled Bridge.

3. ASSUMPTION OF TETLE AND RESEONSIBILITY

Uriess otherwise provided herein. the Recipient shal immediately assume title and ail futuce lepasl 2nd
tinancial responsibility for the Bridgge upon the Recipient's receiot cf the State”s written authorzation
1o remove tha Bridge from the exisung location.

|
4. TRAFFIC CONTRQL
The County shatl be cesponsible far devs oping the teaffic control plins and ececting the waflic sontrai
devices required during the Recipients cemovat of the Bridge 1he Kecipent stall notty the Ceenty * 5

d3y9 Onosro veginning the removal of the Bridge and shat! e responsible for otiamning 3Ny Necessary

perrmuls for the remaoval, ransportator and resssambly of the Lridge
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S INDEMNIFICATION

The:Recipient shall indemnily and hold harmlagrs the Stete. the Couaty, itz oHicers ond employees frgan

all clazims and tabilities due to the activities of the Recipient. its agants. contractors. officers mpg
emptovyees performed under this agreement and whiCh resull f(am an error. omission or fregliger acy
of the Recipient ar anvy person emploved ot contractéd by the Recipinnt. The Recipient chall algg
tndemnily and hold harmiess the State, the County, its officars and emplayess Irom 20y and )
expenses, including attorneys fees which might be incurred by the State, the County. its officerg ang

amptoyaes in fitigation or otherwise resisting said claim or liabifities vhich might be imposed on e

State and/or the County as the result of such activities by the Recipient, its #gents or employees,

6. INSURANCE

The Recipisnt and/or 1ts contractors must secure iNSurance prior to being atiowed to remove tha Bridge.

The-Recipient must cantact the County 1o determine the required intursnce coverage.

7. TERMINATION

tn addition to the provisions estatiished in Article 2, ttis agreewment may be termiagated by aoy of the

toiloving conditions
(1) By uwitual syreemenr 3nd conseni of both parties

{2i By the State giving written notice to the Fecioient as a consenusnce or failure by the Recipiant 1o

satssfacrordy perform the responsibilities gng obligations sat focth in this agreement, with propgr

atlowance beng made for circumstances bevend the contro: of the Recipisnt, as oetermined by the

State. The Recipient vili ba afforded ten {10) days 1o remedy the breach as outhined oy the State

{3} By aithe: party. voon thirty (301 dave writtan nonce 1¢c the gther paruy.
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Termination of this agreemant shatl extinguisn 3l rights, duties. obtgations and habitities of the Siage
and the Recipient under this agreament. la the event this agrecment s rerminated, the
State will not be fiable to the Recipient for any funds established ur.der this agreement. Additionalry,

the Recipient will not be allowed o assume any actions to fermove the Bridge from the existing

location.

8. RIQHT OF FIRST REFUSAL

Should the Aeciplent propose 10 swll, donxte. or olherwise (ransfer tite 10 the Budge at any lime gfter
its relocation. the Recipient shall netify the Mother Nefl State Fark Association of Moody. Texas, at
least 30 days in advance of said wransference. The Mother Neff State Park Association shall have 20

days from the receipt of such notice ta exereise its fight of ficst refusal and acquire the Bridge In

accordance with the terms established by the Reclplent,

8. GIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE

In order to receive funds undar this agreoment, the Recipient agrees 1o comply with the Civil Rights
requirements es1ablished in 49 CFR 21 and 23 CFR 710.405(b)_ hereby incorporated by reference angd

made a part of thig agreament

10. DISPUTES
Shovld disputes arise a5 o the parties’ oblgationt or ragpongibifivies cstablished in this agreement, the

State’s decision shall be final and binding

Fi. AMENOMENTS

Anv changes in the costs, character. responsibikties or ebligai-ars esizblghed hete.n ghal! be enacred

by written gmendment execuled by all parties hereto
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1 7_:'(‘\RATLHT1ES

Texas Transponation Commis3ion poficy mangates that employeas of 1ne State shalt not accem Frm
benelit. ifts. favors or grawizies from any perion or business daing business with the Stale unae: (g
agreemant. The only axcaplions aliowed are ordinary business tunches and items that have receive ]
the advance approvyl of the State's Exgcutive Director. Any person or organization doing business witn
the Stale may not make sny offer of benefits, gifts, favors or grawities 10 State employees, except

. 8s rhentioned hereabove, Failure on the par of the Recipient 10 adhere ta this policy may rescig in

termination of this agreament.

13 LEGAL CONSTRUCTION

In case one or more provisions contained in this agresment shall {or any reason be heid to be invslid,
- {llegai or unenforceabls in g0y reapect, such invalidity, dlagality oc unentorceability shall nut affecs any

other provision thereofl and this shall be construed o3 if such wnvalid, flegal or unenforceable provision

had never been contained heretn

4. PRIOA AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED

This agreemsnt supersedes any prior undarstandings or written or oral agreements betweaen the csriss

respecung the within subiect marter.
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2 klotz associates

Historic Bridge at Battleqround Golf Course in Deer Park

ITEM NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST AMOUNT
STRUCTURAL REPAIR OF STEEL TRUSS MEMBERS
Base Bid
A Construction Costs
1 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
2 Steel Repairs to Truss Members with section loss 15-40% LBS 3,500 $15.00 $52,500.00
3 Replacement of Truss Members with section loss >40% LBS 1,200 $18.00 $21,600.00
4 Clean and Paint Steel Truss Members SF 1,500 $30.00 $45,000.00
5 Environmental and Worker protection LS 1 $40,000.00 $40,000.00
TOTAL $179,100.00
CONTINGENCIES (15% OF ALL ITEMS) LS $26,865.00
ENGINEERING LS $35,820.00
TOTAL PLUS CONTINGENCY $241,785.00




2 klotz associates

Historic Bridge at Battleqround Golf Course in Deer Park

ITEM NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST AMOUNT
REMOVE AND REPLACE TRUSS BRIDGE
Base Bid
A Construction Costs
1 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
2 Remove and Salvage Existing Steel Structure LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
3 Prepare Archival Photographs for Historic Inventory LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
4 Structural Steel for Replacement Truss LBS 12,000 $4.00 $48,000.00
5 Erection of Replacement Truss LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
6 Environmental and Worker protection LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
TOTAL $118,000.00
CONTINGENCIES (15% OF ALL ITEMS) LS $17,700.00
ENGINEERING LS $23,600.00

TOTAL PLUS CONTINGENCY

$159.300.00




2 klotz associates

Historic Bridge at Battleqround Golf Course in Deer Park

ITEM NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST AMOUNT
REMOVE TRUSS BRIDGE
Base Bid
A Construction Costs
1 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
2 Remove and Salvage Existing Steel Structure LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
3 Prepare Archival Photographs for Historic Inventory LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
4 Environmental and Worker protection LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
TOTAL $30,000.00
CONTINGENCIES (15% OF ALL ITEMS) LS $4,500.00
ENGINEERING LS $6,000.00

TOTAL PLUS CONTINGENCY

$40.500.00




Texas Historical Commission (ECB) 12/05/97
18" x 28" Official Texas Historical Marker with post
Harris County (Job #20497)
Location: 1600 Georgia, Deer Park, in the Battleground at Deer Park Golf Course
PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE*

A PIN CONNECTED TRUSS BRIDGE CHARAC-
TERISTIC OF THE POPULAR STYLE THAT
ONCE DOTTED RURAL TEXAS, THIS BRIDGE
IS THE LAST ONE IN TEXAS BUILT BY THE
CLINTON BRIDGE AND IRON COMPANY OF
IOWA. ORIGINALLY OPENED IN 1891 ON THE
LEON RIVER IN CORYELL COUNTY IN WHAT
LATER BECAME MOTHER NEFF STATE
PARK, THE BRIDGE WAS MOVED 6 MILES IN
THE LATE 1940s OR EARLY 1950s TO
COUNTY ROAD 322. BY 1993 THE BRIDGE
COULD NO LONGER SUPPORT MODERN
ROAD TRAFFIC. TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS, IN A HISTORIC
PRESERVATION AGREEMENT WITH THE
TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION, PAINS-
TAKINGLY TRANSPORTED IT MORE THAN
150 MILES TO THIS SITE.**

(1998)***
* % inch lettering

** Y2 inch lettering
*** Y4 inch lettering
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HISTORIC AMERICAN ENGINEERING RECORD

CORYELL COUNTY HISTORIC BRIDGE

Location:

Date of Constructh

Designer:

Contractor:

Present Owner:
Present Use:

Significance:

+ Historian:

Project Information:

HAER No. TX-55

Spanning Leon Creek on County Road 322
south of Pecan Grove; Coryell County,
Texas

UTM: 14/636070/3472530

USGS: Ogelsby, Texas quadrangle

(7.5 minute series, 1994)

Company,

Clinton, Iowa

Clinton Bridge and Iron Company,
Clinton, Iowa

City of Deexr Park, Harris County, Texas
Golf Cart and pedestrian bridge

This twice-moved bridge is a 90'-gn"
wrought-iron pin-connected Pratt through
truss that was most recently
transplanted from a county road in
Coryell County to a golf course in Deer
Park, a Houston suburb. While this type
of bridge was common for short spans
over Texas rivers by the 1890s, this
particular structure is the only
remaining bridge in Texas built by the
Clinton Bridge and Iron Company of
Clinton, Iowa. Up until its relocation,
it was the oldest documented bridge in
Coryell County.

J. Philip Gruen, August 1996

This document was prepared as part of

.the Texas Historic Bridges Recording
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Project performed during the summer of
1996 by the Historic American
Engineering Record (HAER). The project
was co-sponsored by the Texas Department
of Transportation.
Gazing out over a vast expanse beyond Buffalo Bayou in East
Texas, Simon Henry West envisioned a city. To meet this end, he
bought up tracts of land, graded an avenue to the bayou, laid out

a townsite, and built a hotel, wharf, and a post office for a

town that would become the city of Deer Park. The year was 1892.

At around the same time, a pin-connected iron truss bridge was
put into service more than 150 miles away over the Leon River in
Coryell County. One hundred and four years later, in 1996, these
two seemingly unrelated events of the late nineteenth century
were linked together when the bridge -- in its new location over
a golf course lake in Deer Park, approximately twenty miles away
from downtown Houston -- re-opened to the public. It is ﬁhe only
surviving example of a bridge built in Texas by the Clinton
Bridge and Iron Company of Clinton, Iowa, and up until 1995, it
was the oldest span to cross the rivers of Coryell County. It is

also among the fourteen earliest of the eighty-two surviving pin-
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connected Pratt truss bridges in Texas.®! Slated for demolition
as recently as 1995, the bridge has now been relocated,
rehabilitated, and repainted, and is prepared to face the next

century as a centennial monument for the city of Deer Park.

The bridge, however, is far removed in purpose, time, and space.
Once a farm to market crossing carrying horse and buggy traffic
in a rural part of Central Texas with a 5,000-pound limith the
bridge is now a structurally reinforced, 42,000-pound limit
structure serving golf carts, maintenance vehicles, and
pedestrians on a public golf course amidst Greater Houston'’s
industrial empire. Nevertheless, the preservation of this bridge
keeps a part of rural Texas history alive and, of the six bridges
targeted for replacement in Coryell County from 1985 to 1995, it

is the only one to have survived.

HISTORIC CONTEXT

The relocation to Deer Park represents the beginning of only the

'Texas Department of Transportation records indicate that
fifty-one other pin-connected Pratt truss bridges in Texas have
undetermined construction dates.
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latest chapter in the bridge’s history. The Coryell County
Historic Bridge was extracted from its location on County Road
322 over the Leon River in May of 1995 after about thirty years
of service at that site. For its first sixty or so years, the
bridge spanned the Leon River approximately six miles to the
southeast in what later became part of Mother Neff Memorial State

Park.

Coryell County records indicate that the bridge opened in March
of 1891, during a period of extensive economic growth in Coryell
County;z The county was established in 1854 when the United
States set up Fort Gates on the southern edge of what became the
city of Gatesville in an effort to protect early Anglo-American
settlers from the Comanche and Kiowa tribes. The county grew
slowly after the establishment of the fort, for the Civil War
left the area in dire economic straits. It was only after the
war that the county began to expand at all, but only at a

moderate pace. Without a major county railroad terminal, goods -

- such as cattle, cotton, corn, and oats -- had to be hauled out
’Coryell County, Commissioners’ Court Minutes, Coryell

County Courthouse (Gatesville, Texas), March 1891, D: 418.
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of the county first by ox-cars, then later by wagon trains to the

shipping points in Bremond, Waco, and other larger cities.

In 1882, however, the St. Louis and Southwestern Railroad
(popularly known as the “Cotton Belt”) extended a narrow-gauge
track from Waco to Gatesville, with full stops included at
stations in Oglesby, Lime City, Leon Junction, and Mound, and
whistle stops at Cavitt and Fort Gates. Despite the narrow gauge
track, the train’s arrival marked a major turning point for the
local economy. One historian described the arrival of the
railroad as a “blood transfusion” for Gatesville and its

surrounding region.?

A short time following construction of the Gatesville spur, the
Gulf, Colorado, and Santa Fe railroad extended its line through
the southwestern portion of the county, and the founding of
Copperas Grove followed shortly thereafter. The coming of the
railroad, the invention and widespread use of barbed wire to

establish land holdings and to prevent stock from theivery, and

‘Mildred W. Mears, Coryell County Scrapbook (Waco: Texian

Press, 1963, 7.
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the introduction of well drills to shorten the time necessary to
retrieve water all contributed to overall county growth.* With
the railroads in place, the county population, approximately

11,000 in 1880, nearly doubled by 1890.5

Every town in Coryell County benefitted from the arrival of the
railroad, but adequate roads and bridges still did not exist to
facilitate the transport of goods to the new stations and stops.
Recognizing this need, the county commissioners spent
considerable time in the 1880s and early 1890s issuing bonds to
improve county infrastructure. In fact, a history of the county,
published in 1894, indicated that the county’s “chief work” at
this time was road and bridge construction, and by providing
funding to assist in this regard, the county incurred its only

debt. The same source points out that the county commissioners

‘For a first-hand description of how these factors aided in
economic growth, see letter from B. L. Montgomery to J. P.
Kendrick, in Frank E. Simmons, History of Coryell County
(Gatesville: Coryell County News, 1936; repr., Waco: Texian
Press, 1965), 79-82.

The 1890 population was 21,308. Figures from Zelma May
Scott, History of Coryell County, Texas (Austin: Texas State
Historical Association, 1965), 146.
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focused upon the building of “permanent iron bridges.” A number
of bond issues for an average of $4,000.00 to $6,000.00 passed at

around this time to construct “eight iron self-supporting

bridges” to span the Leon, Cowhouse, and Coryell Rivers in order
to provide the county with “excellent and permanent communication

with all its parts.®

On June 11, 1890, the Coryell County Court voted to erect a
bridge at or near Halbert’'s Crossing on the Leon River. The
court selected the Clinton Bridge and Iron Company of Clinton,
Iowa to manufacture and build the $3,500.00 bridgg, to be paid
with bonds earning an interest rate of 6 percent per year.” The

county specified that the Clinton Bridge and Iron Company build

‘Lewis Publication Company, A Memorial and Biographical

History of McLellan Falls, Bell, and Coryell Counties, Texas
(Chicago: The Lewis Publishing Company, 1893; repr., St. Louis:
Ingmire Publications, 1984.

‘Coryell County, Commissioners’ Court Minutes, June 1890, D:
355. On May 12, 1890, the minutes show that $4,000.00 was paid

for a bridge at “Hobdy Crossing” in eight different installments
of $500.00 each. The county obligated itself to “create a
sinking fund... and to levy all taxes necessary for the payment
of said bonds.” Coryell County, Commissioners’ Court Minutes, May
1891, D: 418. Because the Clinton Bridge and Iron Company also
built this bridge, it is probable that “Hobdy Crossing” is a
misprint.
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“"one wrought iron high truss bridge” 90'-0" long, 12'-0" wide,
and with eastern and western approaches of 200'-0" and 90'-0",
respectively.® On August 18, 1891, the Coryell County
commissioners ordered the company to drive pilings into a “solid
foundation” and to raise cylinders 5'-0" on each side of the
bridge to meet contract specifications and to allow for high

water.?

By the 1890s, construction of wrought-iron pin-connected Pratt
through trusses had become relatively commonplace both in Texas
and the United States. The King Wrought Iron Bridge Manufactury
and Iron Works of Iola, Kansas, built the first metal truss

bridge in Texas over the Trinity River in Dallas in 1892, and

'on September 4, 1992, an environmental assessment report
regarding the bridge at its County Road 322 site noted an 11'-0"
roadway, two timber span approaches, and one I-beam span
approach, for a total bridge length of 135'-7". A similar report
mentioned a wooden deck and a substructure of timber pilings.
Because original specifications for the bridge have not been
found, it is unclear whether the bridge included these features
and dimensions at its original location.

’Coryell County, Commissioners’ Court Minutes, August 1891.
It is unclear from the minutes whether the bridge was already
open for service at this time or whether it would open shortly
thereafter. No additional information about bridge construction
has been found in the surviving county newspapers.
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Denton County was the recipient of the first pin-connected Pratt
truss.!® With the growth of mass-producible steel and the
establishment of major bridge-building companies, metal truss
bridges became a more economical option than the bulkier and more

expensive masonry structures.

Due largely to the growth of the railroad industry, many new
bridges were needed in Texas and throughout the nation. The
TEEE:Produced, pin-connected Pratt spans were particularly PﬁfEUl
because the companies could fill orders quickly, ship the parts
out in small pieces, and have the structure assembled on site.l
Many large, out-of-state bridge companies had perfected this
industry by the last decades of the nineteenth century, and

without any bridge fabricating companies in Texas at that time,

the county commissioners had little choice but to look beyond

Barbara Stocklin, “Statement of Historic Contexts:

Historic Bridges of Texas, 1866-1945,” National Register of
Historic Places Multiple Property Documentation Form, (April

1995), E: 3-4.

"Tbid., E: 14.
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Texas for a company to fill a steel truss bridge order.?

By the time the Coryell County commissioners accepted the
construction bid, the Clinton Bridge and Iron Company was already
a major bridge manufacturer. Only four years after its founding
as the Clinton Bridge Company in 1875, the company by 1879 had
erected 267 structures nationwide. It merged with the Union Iron
Works around 1882, becoming the Clinton Bridge -and Iron Works,
and by 1891 it employed 300 to 350 people.!® Given the size of
the company and its specialty in Pratt truss bridges, it is
likely that the company was prepared to ship parts anytime, and

anywhere.

MOTHER NEFF STATE PARK
The 90'-0" pin-connected Pratt through truss the company designed
for Coryell County initially spanned a section of the Leon River

T - e

-- the largest stream of the county -- on what later became State

“There were no bridge companies in Texas making pre-
fabricated parts at this time.

YRobert W. Jackson, “Bridgeport Bridge,” HAER No. IA-61,
Iowa Historic Bridges Recording Project, (Summer 1995): S5-7.
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Highway 236. It was situated in one of Central Texas’'s most
picturesque locations, where “beautiful level ground” meets
“magnificent old native trees.” The crossing is about
equidistant from the town of Whitson and that of The Grove, both

predominantly agricultural communities.

When the area was first settled, it served as a community
gathering place -- a site for picnics, camp meetings, and
political rallies. Prior to that, the area contained a road
created by scouts advancing ahead of United States troops sent to
establish Fort Gates in 1849. 1In later years, that road is
believed to have been traversed by Robert E. Lee and General Ben
McCulloch as they led troops across the frontier to set up forts
for the pu}poses of protecting settlers from the Comanches and
other tribes. A section of the famous Chisolm Trail, by which
cattle herders transported their stock to northern markets, cut a

swath of land just to the east of the site.!s

“Frank E. Simmons, History of Mother Neff Memorial State
Park (Gatesville: Freeman Printing Plant, 1949), 17.

PSimmons, History of Mother Neff, 12, 13; Simmons, History
of Coryell County, 96.
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One of the earliest settlers in the area was Isabella Neff, who,
along with her husband, operated a farm on scenic land near Eagle
Springs. She stipulated in her will that six acres of the land
be donated to the public after her death, and in 1921, Texas
Governor Pat Morris Neff, the youngest of Isabella’s eight
children, turned that piece of land into Texas’s first state

park. In 1934, Pat Neff donated an additional 250 acres of land

" to increase the park’s size, and obtained authorization for the

use of a Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC) to develop the area.
During its four-year employment, the CCC landscaped the park,
carved hiking.trails, and built a number of structures out of
local stone and heavy timbers including a clubhouse, a
tabernacle, a caretaker’s house, a picnic shelter, and a water
tower. The CCC built the tabernacle with its back nearly

abutting the bridge.

A redevelopment of the park in the early 1950s created a formal
entryway with a strong visual axis. This involved the
realignment of State Highway 236, which meant the bridge was no
longer a vital crossing in the area. Today, two rock abutments -

- probably those “cylinders” mentioned in the 1891 county minutes
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-- sit just beyond the tabernacle for what would have supported
the bridge’s eastern approach. Once the road was realigned, the
bridge was moved northwest to span the Leon River at County Road

322, just south of Pecan Grove.!®

COUNTY ROAD 322

For over thirty years the bridge remained on County Road 322,
serving the vicinity’s rural communities. Wear and tear and
occasional flooding over the years, however, took their toll.Y?
An inspection report carried out by the Texas Department of
Transportation in April of 1992 found unstable deck planks,

bridge railing damage, rusted steel, and decayed timber

“The precise date when the bridge was lifted from Mother
Neff State Park remains unclear. A nomination form considering
Mother Neff State Park for national register status mentions that
the bridge was moved in the “early 1950s.” United States
Department of the Interior, National Park Service, “Mother Neff
State Park and F.A.S. 21-B(l) Historic District,” National
Register of Historic Places Registration Form, 24 August 1992, 8:
15. However, Charlotte Weiss, an official working with the Mother
Neff State Park Association, reports that area “old-timers”
recall that the bridge was moved in the 1940s. Charlotte Weiss,
interview by author, 5 August 1996.

"Bob Miller, “County Bridge Eligible for NRHP List,”
Gatesville Messengexr, 21 May 1992, A: 10.
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pilings.'® Because of its 12'-0" width and five-ton weight
capacity, the bridge also did not meet current county safety
specifications requiring a minimum 16'-0" length and a weight
capacity suitable enough to support heavy farm equipment, grain
trucks, tractors, livestock trailers, and school buses.
Transportation officals gave the bridge a “serious condition”
rating and began inspecting it every three months. Finally, they

closed it permanently in December of 1993.

Noting the bridge’s historic import, transportation officials
attempted to find a buyer for the bridge rather than dismantling
it. To meet this end, the Waco district office of the Texas
Department of Transportation issued a press release announcing
that a “historic” bridge was available for relocation and

preservation. The release was printed in late February, 1994, in

the Austin American-Statesman, Gatesville Messenger, Killeen
Daily Herald, Temple Daily Telegram, and the Waco Tribune-Herald,

most of which chose to organize the information in classified

advertisement format.

rexas Department of Transportation, Bridge Inspection
Report: Coryell County Route 322 Bridge, 27 April 1992.
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Around this time, transportation officials dismantled other
Coryell County bridges of similar vintage for safety reasons and
replaced the majority of them with 24'-0" wide concrete girder
bridges with unlimited weight restrictions -- built under the
same specifications as the Texas highway bridges.?®* In a ten-
year period from 1985 to 1995, eight decaying turn-of-the-century
bridges were replaced in Coryell County, four of them in 1995
alone. The county did choose to allocate funds for the
preservation of the West Leon Street Bridge in Gatesville,
however, because its original construction included a wider
roadway and the bridge no longer served as the principal

thoroughfare into the city.?°

There were, however, some responses for the bridge replacement

YSusan Sanders, “Troubled Waters: Another Bridge Vanishes

From Coryell County,” Gatesville Messenger, 1 June 1995. County
commissioners in 1995 stepped up the Coryell County bridge
replacements to take advantage of federal funding for rural
bridge replacement which, since 1985, had provided 80 percent of
the funding for removal and construction of new bridges. Sanders
reported that county commissioners envisioned a shutting down of
those funds, and acted quickly to secure them.

Ygee quotes from Hy Davidson, precinct three commissioner
for Coryell County, in ibid.
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advertisement. Landowner Emily Moreland offered to buy it and
move it to her ranch, and the board of directors at Mother Neff

State Park requested that the bridge be returned to the park.?

DEER PARK

Tom Knickerbocker of the Centurion Consulting Group -- a
planning, engineering, and construction management firm based in
Houston -- had a different idea: he suggested moving the bridge
to a new golf course he was designing for the city of Deer Park.
Noting that the bridge was finished around the time Deer Park was
founded, Knickerbocker was able to sell the idea to Deer Park

city officials.

The city of Deer Park, whose northern edge borders a section of
the Houston Ship Channel along Buffalo Bayou, might have remained
largely undeveloped had not oil been discovered at nearby Goose
Creek in 1916. This began the establishment of the area’s

industries; when the Shell 0il Company chose Deer Park as a site

2Isee Emily Moreland, letter to “whom it may concern,” 16
March 1994, Historic Bridge Inventory Files, Texas Department of
Transportation, Environmental Affairs Division, Austin, Texas.



CORYELL COUNTY HISTORIC BRIDGE
HAER No. TX-55
(Page 17)

for an oil refinery in 1928, the city was set for explosive
economic growth. Today, many of the nation’s refining and
petrochemical plants are located in Deer Park and the adjoining

cities of Pasadena and LaPorte.

Deer Park’s northeastern border abuts a different sort of
history: the San Jacinto battlefield. It was in that area on
April 21, 1836, that Sam Houston’s troops launched a surprise
attack on Santa Anna’s relaxing Mexican cavalry, killing 630,
wounding 208, and capturing 730 in.only eighteen minutes of
fighting, while suffering only two deaths and a small number of
wounded soldiers of their own.?? This was the decisive event in
Texas’s quest to gain independence from Mexico, and it launched

the Texas Republic.

While the 510'-0" San Jacinto Monument had stood just beyond Deer
Park’s municipal boundaries since 1939, the city had done little
to connect itself with the historic site. In November of 1993,

however, the city put an $8.25 million bond issue before its

Zpigures from David G. McComb, Texas: A Modern History
(Austin: University of Texas Press, 1989), 44.
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voters to authorize construction of “The Battleground at Deer
Park Golf Course” on city-owned vacant land. The construction of
the golf course was four-fold: to honor the Battle of San
Jacinto, to celebrate the city’s one-hundredth birthday, to boost
its economy through tourism, and to enhance its overall quality
of life. Voters approved the measure in a referendum at a nearly
three-to-one ratio, with over 2,000 votes cast in favor of the

- course and approximately 700 opposed.

The proposed bridge relocation was not part of the legislation,
however, so city officials applied for funding through the
Statewide Transportation Enhancement Program created by the
Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 1991.
The grant was approved in the amount of $108,084.58 to fund the
bridge relocation. The bulk of the funding, $80,000.00, was
allocated for the extraction, relocation, rehabilitation, and
reassembly of the bridge, including new approaches and
landscaping. The Centurion Group collected the remaining

$20,000.00 for consulting fees.?

PFigures from Dayton L. Spain, Jr., Project Nomination Form:
Statewide Transportation Enhancement Program, (1993), 5.
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There were additional costs, however: $35,000.00 for the new
concrete bridge abutments, $26,000.00 to provide new decking and
to place the bridge on the abutments, and an additional $4,000.00
for the Service Painting Company to sandblast and repaint the
bridge. Most of the money came from that which was left over
from the bond fund, although the Shell 0il Company provided some
funding to hire people to provide welding and to add a bridge
handrail.?* It is interesting to consider that it cost just as
much to paint the bridge in 1996 as it did to build it over 100

years before.

In late May of 1995, a 130-ton crane lifted the bridge from its
location on County Road 322, rolled it on its side, and placed it
on a flatbed truck. Supported by steel and cable bracing, the
bridge movers relocated the bridge across three counties and 350
miles in a day and a half, taking certain detours to remain on
roads that would permit its movement. Aside from structural
reinforcement, a new deck, paint job, and the removal of cross

bracing near the portal struts on either side, the bridge has

Mpigures from ibid., 5, and provided by Ron Crabtree,
interview by author, 11 June 1996.
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been left largely in the condition it was found. There are
still, for example, visible bends in the lower chords and in the
I-beam deck supports. A $300,000.00, 240'-0" prestressed
concrete bridge with two 12'-0" travel lanes built by S. F. W.
Construction Inc. of Harker Heights now spans the Leon River

along County Road 322.2%

The bridge and the golf course opened to the public together on
April 21, 1996 -- exactly 160 years after the battle of San
Jacinto. Because of its location near the battlefield, the
céurse features a historic theme, with each hole named in honor
of a particular individual or event involved with the struggle
for Texas independence. The main clubhouse and retaining walls
throughout the course resemble mission-style architecture and are
constructed out of native Texan and Mexican stone. Overall, the
course and some of its details are intended to provide a glimpse

and an understanding of the region’s past.

The bridge is plainly visible through the glass panels of the

®Douglas Doe, “Coryell County Historic Bridge To Be
Removed,” Waco Tribune-Herald, 22 May 1995, C: 3.




CORYELL COUNTY HISTORIC BRIDGE
HAER No. TX-55
(Page 21)

main clubhouse, the restaurant, and the pro shop. It spans a
lake between the green of the ninth hole and the tee of the
tenth, and is just west of the eighteenth and final hole. The
lake is a repository for purified wastewater effluent to be used
for course irrigation, but it also provides a water trap for the

ninth and eighteenth holes.

The structural reinforcements added to the bridge have increased
its weight capacity more than eight times, to 42,000 pounds. It
is now a multi-purpose bridge: serving pedestrians, golf carts,
and, on occasion, maintenance vehicles. 1Its location near the
clubhouse and adjacent to the final hole makes it the course’s
most prominent architectural feature.?® Because of its location
between two holes, should course participants play a full game,

they are compelled to cross the bridge at least twice.

Whether the bridge, in its new location, inspires participants

¥The bridge was envisioned as the “focal point” for the
course. See Spain, Project Nomination Form, or Crabtree, letter
to Barbara Stocklin, Historic Bridge Inventory Files, Texas
Department of Transportation, Environmental Affairs Division,
Austin, Texas, 4 October 1993, 2.
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and visitors alike to recall the founding of Deer Park, the
battle of San Jacinto, the establishment of the Texas Republic,
County Road 322, or Mother Neff State Park is perhaps
questionable, but it is also probably irrelevant. More
importantly, the relocation of the structure saved the last
surviving Texas bridge built by the Clinton Bridge Company of
lowa, and prevented it from joining a growing list of

- exterminated bridges in Coryell County.
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APPENDIX

SUGGESTIONS FOR FURTHER RESEARCH

Some questions concerning the Coryell County Historic Bridge

arose during the research and writing of this report. Some of

these questions, due to limitations in the scope of the Texas

Historic Bridges Recording Project, have remained unanswered. It
- is suggested that scholars interested in this bridge consider

pursuing the following:

y Why did the price of the bridge, at one time marked for
$3,500.00, increase to $4,000.00 a month later?

2. When was the bridge moved to its County Road 322 location?
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Pratt Truss Bridoe at its second Tlocation on CR322 in Coryell Co. (c.1950-1995)

Pratt Truss Bridge in its current location in Deer Park,
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EXHIBIT "A" 099-71-3026

COMMENCING at a concrete monument found at the northwest corner of
said 302.32 acre tract;

THEN N 89°14’18" E, along, the North line of said W.C.R.R. Co. Survey, at
805.12 feet past a 5/8" IR found in the East line of Jana Road (100" width),
being the NWC of a 51.6712 acre tract conveyed by the Port of Houston
Authority of Harris County, Texas, to Greenshadow Development, Inc.,
March 21, 1991, recorded by File #N069502, County Clerk’s Office of Harris
County (CCHC), in all 1950.90 feet to a 5/8" IR set for the NEC of said
51.6712 acre tract and the POINT OF BEGINNING;

THEN N 89°14'18" E (calculated N 89°05’30" E), continuing along said line

of W.CR.R. Co. Survey, 1266.40 feet to a 5/8" IR set for reentrant corner of
said 30232 acre tract;

THEN S 00°37°5T" E (calculated S 00°14°18" E), at 473.25 (called 465.00) feet
pass a concrete monument found for a comer of said 302.32 acre tract, also
being the Point of Beginning of a 2.9518 acre tract conveyed by The Port of
Houston Authonty to The City of Deer Park, November 8, 1973, recorded by

File #E023991, CCHC, in all 515.75 feet to a 5/8" IR set for the SWC of said
2.9518 acre tract;

THEN N 89°05°30" E, 1480.55 (calculated 1480.68) feet along the South line
of said 2.9518 acre tract to a 5/8" IR set for the Point of Beginning of a
2.7582 acre tract conveyed by The Port of Houston Authority to The City of
Deer Park, January 27, 1977, recorded by File #F058319, CCHC;

~ THEN with said 2.7582 acre tract, being the westerly night-of-way line of
Georgia Street (80 foot width) as follows:

— S 01°06°04" E, 566.65 feet (called S 01°06°49" E, 566.29 feet) to a Point of
Curvature;

~ — Counterclockwise along a curve defined by Delta (I)=11°34’5'7“, Radius

(R)=1833.26 and Arc (L)=370.60 (called I= 11°32"21", R=1840.00 L=370.57)

a chord bearing S 06°52'04" E, 369.96 feet to the Point of Tangency;

— $ 12°41°00" E (called S 12°39°'10" E), 100.00 feet to a Point of Curvature;



08 098~71-3007

— Clockwise along a curve defined by I=11°30"34", R=1751.52 and L=351.84
(calculated I=11°26"49" R +1760.00 L=351.63) a chord bearing S 06°53'28" E

351.25 feet to a 5/8" IR set in the North line of a 7.0869 acre tract conveyed

by Port of Houston Authority of Harris County to the City of Deer Park,
June 3, 1977, recorded by File #F166388, CCHC;

THEN S 89°04'25" W (calculated S 89°05'305" W), 2851.47 feet along said

North line of 7.0869 acre tract to a 5/8" IR found for the SEC of said 51.6712
acre Greenshadow Development tract;

THEN N 00°37°01" W, 1901.75 (called 1900.27) feet along the East line of
said 51.6712 acre tract, also being the West line of the City of Deer Park City
Limit described by Ordinance No. 1-197, December 31, 1960, recorded by File
#B278175,. CCHC, said TRACT OF LAND containing 103.2613 acres
(4,498.061 square feet) of land. There is contained within said TRACT OF
LAND a 30.00 acre tract conveyed by Deer Park Independent School District

to Port of Houston Authority of Harris Co., September 29, 1988, recorded by
File #X.904648, CCHC.
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City Of CITY COUNCIL

JIMMY BURKE, MAYOR

YD) DEER PARK

BRIAN BARRY

710 E. San Augustine « P.O. Box 700 « Deer Park, Texas 77536 « (713) 479-2394 « Fax (713) 478-7217 DENTON McDUGLE
October 18, 1996 SAM PIPKIN
DIANNA TAYLOR
. DEAN LAWTHER
Bobby Pennington
City of Deer Park
P.O. Box 700

Deer Park, TX 77536

Al Davis

Harris CHC

929 Waxmyrtle
Houston, TX 77079

Dear Mr. Davis:

The City of Deer Park is requesting a subject marker to accompany a unique suspension bridge
that had once spanned the Leon River. We understand that relocated structures may qualify for
subject markers if their history and architectural integrity warrant, and if there is proof that the
relocation was required. As you will find, the relocated bridge meets these qualifications. The
century old bridge was to be destroyed by the Texas Department of Transportation in 1994, but
TxDOT soon recognized the historic importance of the bridge. TxDOT attempted to find a buyer
that could relocate the bridge rather than ultimately destroy it. The City of Deer Park could utilize
the historic bridge in a respectable manner and it now spans one of our municipal golf course
lakes. The bridge symbolizes Deer Park’s centennial founding and is a functional instrument in a
golf course built to commemorate the Battle of San Jacinto.

The necessary information requested by the Texas Historical Commission is accompanied with
this letter. We would appreciate it if you would please take the time to look over this documented
material. It is important that we do as much as possible to preserve a piece of our past and
prevent structures, such as this historic bridge, from vanishing.

Bobby Pennington



T E X A S George W. Bush *  Governor
H John L. Nau, IIl *  Chairman
I S T O R I C A L P Curtis Tunnell Executive Director
C OMMISSION The State Agency for Historic Preservation

April 23, 1997

Al Davis, Chair
Harris CHC

929 Waxmyrtle
Houston, TX 77079

RE: PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE
18” X 28” marker w/post
Job # 20497, Received: 4/22/97

Dear Mr. Davis:

We have received the above-referenced marker application. The application will be reviewed and evaluated by
the Texas Historical Commission staff in the order in which it was received. Currently, there is about a 30-45
day wait between the time subject marker applications are received and evaluated. Should additional
information be needed for the review, we will contact you and any parties listed below at that time. After any
deficiencies have been corrected, we will send copies of the application to the members of the State Marker
Review Board, who will make the final determination of the topic's acceptability for marking.

We will notify all parties as soon as the Board makes its decision. If the topic is approved for marking,
payment will be requested at that time. If not approved, the application will be returned along with a letter of
explanation.

Because of the variables involved in the marker process, and because we must coordinate our orders with the
schedule of the contracting foundry, we suggest that the date of the marker dedication not be set until the
completed marker is received.

We appreciate the effort made to record this topic. Should there be any questions about the status of this
marker application, please contact me at 512/463-5853.

Sincerely,

/%42// (fzvn

Ronald C Kaase
Local History Programs

pc:  Ronald V Crabtree

P.O.Box 12276 + Austin, TX 78711-2276 512/463-6100 « Fax 512/475-4872 + TDD 1-800-735-2989
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App cation Form APR 2 2 1997

Official Texas Historical Marker
(Please complete both sides of form.) TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION

This marker is for (title or subject): Pratt Truss Bridge
(Title subject to change by THC staff and/or State Marker Review Board.)
County: Harris
Marker location (street address and city, or specific directions from nearest town on state highway map):
1600 Georgia, Deer Park, Texas

Distance and direction of marker topic from marker site (if applicable): __Approx. 5' to 10 feet

P00 0900009000000 0000000000000 00000000000000000

Approval of County Historical Commission
The application and narrative history must be approved by the county historical commission before forwarding to
the Texas Historical Commission.

Signature of CHC chair or Marker Committee chair: 6_\,@ %W
Date: 3/20/47
Address: 189 WAXmMyYR+le [HousTon Tx 77079
Phone: 713-%0§- 677/ FAX:

The CHC chair or Marker Committe chair automatically will receive all copies of correspondence regarding this
marker project.

Permission of owner for marker placement

Permission for placement of a marker must ‘be obtained from the property owner. Please provide the name of a
contact person if the owner is an institution, organization, or public entity. This section need not be completed if
the marker is to be placed on right-of-way maintained by the Texas Department of Transportation.

Name: The City of Deer Park

Contact person (if applicable): ___ City Manager Ronald V. Crabtree
Mailing address: __P.0. Box 700, Deer Park, Texas 77536
Phone: (713) 478-7245 FAX:(713) 478-7217 or 478-7218

Owner’s Signature: M \/ ,/Mm

Do you wish to receive copies of all correspondence concerning this marker application? X1 Yes d No

To whom should the request for payment be addressed?

Name: The City of Deer Park
Contact person (if applicable): _ Ronald V. Crabtree
Mailing address: _P.0. Box 700, Deer Park, Texas 77536
Phone: (713) 478-7245 FAX: (713) 478-7217

Does this person wish to receive copies of all other correspondence concerning this application? X3 Yes [ No

Is there anyone else to whom all correspondence concerning this marker application should be
addressed? (One additional name and address only, please.)

Name:

Mailing address:

Phone: FAX:

(over)



SHIPPING INSTRUCTIONS

In order to facilitate delivery of the marker, neither post office box numbers nor rural route numbers can be accepted.
If the marker is to be placed on the highway right-of-way, it will be shipped directly to the district highway engineer.
Name: _ The City of Deer Park — City Hall

Street address: _710 East San Augustine, Deer Park, Texas 77536

Phone: (713) 478-7245

TYPE AND SIZE OF MARKER DESIRED (Please check one only.)

Subject Markers

This type of marker is solely educational in nature and conveys no legal restrictions to the property. Subject markers
are appropriate for topics such as cemeteries, church congregations, businesses, persons, events, and institutions.
These markers should not be attached to buildings. If the marker is to be attached to a surface other than the
foundry-provided post, please provide the requested information in the space below.

d 16" x 12" grave marker {comes with mounting bar) $250
4 27" x 42" marker with post $850
0 27" x 42" marker without post (see below) $800
& 18" x 28" marker with post $550
L 18" x 28" marker without post (see below) $500

If not on post, to what (block of granite, gatepost, etc.) will the marker be attached?
Type of material? (wood, stone, etc.)

Recorded Texas Historic Landmark Markers

Markers conveying the Recorded Texas Historic Landmark (RTHL) designation are reserved solely for historic structures
deemed worthy of preservation for their architectural integrity and historical associations. The RTHL designation does
carry a measure of legal protection for the structure (see Marker Policies 13 through 18) and for that reason we must
have a legal description (lot and block numbers) for the property to be designated. The most commonly used marker
for conveying this designation is the medallion and plate (also referred to as a building marker); however, the 18" x 28"
or 27" x 42" size marker may be ordered for those who wish a greater amount of historical information to appear in the
marker text. Careful attention should be paid so as not to damage historic building material if the marker is to be
mounted directly onto the structure. The THC staff can provide alternate ideas for mounting upon request.

J Medallion and 16" x 12" plate with post $400
d Medallion and 16" x 12" plate without post (see below) $350
Q 27" x 42" marker with post $850
0 27" x 42" marker without post (see below) $800
d 18" x 28" marker with post $550
[Q 18" x 28" marker without post (see below) $500

If not on post, to what (building, gate, etc.) will the marker be attached?
Type of material? (wood, stone, etc.)

Legal description of property (lot and block number; metes and bounds):

See attached information.

Before forwarding your material to the Texas Historical Commission, please check to make sure you've included the fol-
lowing items. Incomplete applications cannot be considered and may be returned to the applicant.

completed application form signed by the county historical commission chair or marker committee chair
narrative history with reference notes and bibliography

photograph of the proposed marker location (do not use instant/Polaroid photos)

map indicating marker location and other sites related to the marker topic

historic photo of property and current photographs of all elevations (RTHL markers only)

legal description of property (RTHL markers only)

floor plans (RTHL markers only)

site plan (RTHL markers only)

AN N N S S

Mail completed applications to:
Local History Programs, Texas Historical Commission, P.O. Box 12276, Austin, Texas 78711-2276 512/463-5853

Additional items, including directional signs and replacement parts for 1936 markers, are available. Please contact the
Local History Programs office for a separate order form.
Rev. 1996



Clty Of Ronald V. Crabtree

@ D DEER PARK iy wANAGER

710 E. San Augustine - P.O. Box 700 - Deer Park, Texas 77536 - (713) 478-7245 - Fax: (713) 47%@@3

October 21, 1997

Ms. Cynthia J. Beeman, Administrator
Official Texas Historical Marker Program
Texas Historical Commission

P.O. Box 12276

Austin, Texas 78711-2276

Dear Ms. Beeman:

Enclosed is our check in the amount of $550 for the historical marker recently approved for Pratt
Truss Bridge located in Deer Park. We look forward to receiving a copy of the proposed text for
the marker when it has been completed.

Sincerely,

rlh | Lnhiz

Ronald V. Crabtree
City Manager

[ ua L'fy " jirat fjime, &/ery jme



T, E X A S George W. Busll *  Governor

Jolln L. Nay, IIT - Chairman

H I S T O R I C A L Curtis Tunnell ¢ Executive Director
CoOMMI SSION The State Agency for Historic Preservation

September 23, 1997

Ronald W. Crabtree
The City of Deer Park
P O Box 700

Deer Park, TX 77536

RE: PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE
18” x 28 marker w/ post
Job # 20497, Harris County

Dear Mr. Crabtree:

I am pleased to notify you that the State Marker Review Board has reviewed and approved the
above-referenced topic for an Official Texas Historical Marker.

Payment for the marker, in the amount of $550.00, is now due. Please complete and return the
enclosed payment form at your earliest convenience. Once payment for the marker is received,
the application will be placed in line to have the marker inscription written. The inscription
will not be written until after funds have been received. When the text is prepared, a copy will
be sent to you and any parties listed below for review and approval.

The Texas Historical Commission congratulates you on your efforts to record and preserve
Texas history.

Sincerely,
(oplin O [man

Cynthia J. Beeman, Administrator
Official Texas Historical Marker Program

pc: Al Davis, Harris CHC

P.O. Box 12276 Austin, TX 78711-2276 » 512/463-6100 + Fax 512/475-4872 + TDD 1-800-735-2989



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION
OFFICIAL TEXAS HISTORICAL MARKER
EVALUATION FORM

Title: Pratt Truss Bridge

Address: 1600 Georgia, in the Battleground at Deer Park Golf Course
City: Deer Patk

County: Harris

Size: S, with post

Code: BR

RTHL: no

Year: 1997

Job #: 20497

Historical Evaluation: Normally, I would be leety of approving a marker for a

topic that has no real connection to the county in which it would be placed; however,
this relocated bridge has several significant elements to its history and its preservation
which are worth documenting. By placing a marker for this 1891 bridge that once
spanned the Leon River in Cotyell County, readers can learn of its construction and
use in two sites in central Texas, that it is the only remaining bridge in Texas built by
the Clinton Bridge and Iron Company, and that it was preserved because of
mitigation efforts between the THC and TxDOT and restored because of ISTEA
funds. Preservation of this bridge keeps a part of rural Texas history alive on a
suburban golf course in the Houston suburb of Deer Park!

ff recommendation:  approval of subject marker

ff ion by: Frances Rickard «ﬂﬂ,g g9y

State Marker Review Board recommendation: /Q %PW
&
Signature: /(%{/( /Jé&/mﬂ ﬁ/3/7‘7

( :Qmmgnts:

Local History Programs
Texas Historical Commission
P.O. Box 12276
Austin, Texas 78711
512/463-5854



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION
OFFICIAL TEXAS HISTORICAL MARKER
EVALUATION FORM

Title: Pratt Truss Bridge

Address: 1600 Georgia, in the Battleground at Deer Patk Golf Course
City: Deer Patk

County: Harris

Size: S, with post
Code: BR

RTHL.: no

Year: 1997

Job #: 20497

Historical Evaluation: Normally, I would be leery of approving a marker for a
topic that has no real connection to the county in which it would be placed; however,
this relocated bridge has several significant elements to its histoty and its preservation
which are worth documenting. By placing a matker for this 1891 bridge that once
spanned the Leon River in Cotyell County, readers can learn of its construction and
use in two sites in central Texas, that it is the only remaining bridge in Texas built by
the Clinton Bridge and Iron Company, and that it was preserved because of
mitigation efforts between the THC and TxDOT and restored because of ISTEA
funds. Preservation of this bridge keeps a patt of rural Texas history alive on a
suburban golf course in the Houston suburb of Deet Park!

Staff recommendation:  approval of subject marker

ff evaluation by: Frances Rickard -ﬂﬂ/ G-§9
Marker Revi rd recommendafion: Oy e
1 re: ;\Q GZ(M
Comments: )
Local History Programs

Texas Historical Commission
P.O. Box 12276
Austin, Texas 78711
512/463-5854



TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION
OFFICIAL TEXAS HISTORICAL MARKER
EVALUATION FORM

Title: Pratt Truss Bridge

Address: 1600 Georgia, in the Battleground at Deer Park Golf Coutse
City: Deer Park

County: Hatris

Size: S, with post
Code: BR

RTHL.: no

Year: 1997

Job #: 20497

Historical Evaluation: Normally, I would be leery of approving a marker for a
topic that has no real connection to the county in which it would be placed; howevet,
this relocated bridge has several significant elements to its history and its preservation
which are worth documenting. By placing a marker for this 1891 bridge that once
spanned the Leon River in Cotyell County, teaders can learn of its construction and
use in two sites in central Texas, that it is the only remaining bridge in Texas built by
the Clinton Bridge and Iron Company, and that it was preserved because of
mitigation efforts between the THC and TxDOT and testored because of ISTEA
funds. Preservation of this bridge keeps a patt of rural Texas history alive on a
suburban golf course in the Houston subutb of Deer Park!

Staff recommendation:  approval of subject marker

Staff evaluation by: Frances Rickard
ra "&ﬂ/g _ gvaz j/
State Marker Review Board recommendation:
Signature:
Comments:

Local History Programs
Texas Historical Commission
P.O. Box 12276
Austin, Texas 78711
512/463-5854



George W. Busl'l e Governor
TEXAS ;

John L. Nau, [l - Chairman

H I S T O R I C A L Curtis Tunnell ¢  Executive Director
C OMMISSION The State Agency for Historic Preservation

December 9, 1997

Al Davis, Chair
Harris CHC

929 Waxmyrtle
Houston, TX 77079

RE: PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE
18” x 28’ marker w/ post
Job # 20497

Dear Mr. Davis:

Enclosed is the proposed inscription for the above-referenced marker. (Please note that this is a working copy,
including filing and foundry instructions. The right-hand margin, which is uneven in this copy, will be justified
on the finished marker.)

Please review and verify the information contained in the inscription. In particular, be sure to check all names
and dates, and make certain we have noted the correct marker location. Please contact other sponsors of this
application to discuss the wording of this marker. If you approve the inscription, sign where indicated and
return it to me. You also may want to make a copy of the inscription for your files.

If you have corrections to make or changes to suggest, please do so on the enclosed copy of the inscription and
return it to me with the marked corrections. To ensure that I catch all your suggested changes, I ask that you not
type a new version of the inscription. The revised wording will need to meet style and spacing requirements;
suggestions for new information not documented in your narrative history must be sent with appropriate
reference notes.

The marker will not be ordered for casting until the county historical commission and other persons or groups
listed below have approved the inscription. For that reason, we will expect to receive signed copies of the
inscription from each person; in order to avoid possible delays, you may want to consult with each other and
discuss approvals or possible revisions and coordinate the return of all of the copies.

Sincerely,

Q,t)@& b 01

Emily Cole Bell, Historian
Official Texas Historical Marker Program

pc: Ronald Crabtree

P.O.Box 12276 * Austin, TX 78711-2276 =+ 512/463-6100 <+ Fax512/475-4872 + TDD 1-800-735-2989



Texas Historical Commission (ECB) 12/05/97
18" x 28" Official Texas Historical Marker with post
Harris County (Job #20497)
Location: 1600 Georgia, Deer Park, in the Battleground at Deer Park Golf Course
PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE*
A PIN CONNECTED TRUSS BRIDGE CHARAC-
TERISTIC OF THE POPULAR STYLE THAT
ONCE DOTTED RURAL TEXAS, THIS BRIDGE
IS THE LAST ONE IN TEXAS BUILT BY THE
CLINTON BRIDGE AND IRON COMPANY OF
IOWA, ORIGINALLY OPENED IN 1891 ON THE
LEON RIVER IN CORYELL COUNTY IN WHAT
LATER BECAME MOTHER NEFF STATE
PARK, THE BRIDGE WAS MOVED 6 MILES IN
THE LATE 1940s OR EARLY 1950s TO
COUNTY ROAD 322, BY 1993 THE BRIDGE
COULD NO LONGER SUPPORT MODERN
ROAD TRAFFIC, TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS, IN A HISTORIC
PRESERVATION AGREEMENT WITH THE
TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION, PAINS-
TAKINGLY TRANSPORTED IT MORE THAN

150 MILES TO THIS SITE,**

(1998)*

ol ?;?erlr?r?g PLEASE CHECK ONE AND SIGN:
2

*** Y inch lettering O | approve this text as written.

O Please consider the revisions a8

noted on this copy.

e —



Texas Historical Commission (ECB) 12/05/97

18" x 28" Official Texas Historical Marker with post
Harris County (Job #20497)
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MAR 12 1993

TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION

Location: 1600 Georgia, Deer Park, in the Battleground at Deer Park Golf Course

PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE*

A PIN CONNECTED TRUSS BRIDGE CHARAC-
TERISTIC OF THE POPULAR STYLE THAT
ONCE DOTTED RURAL TEXAS, THIS BRIDGE
IS THE LAST ONE IN TEXAS BUILT BY THE
CLINTON BRIDGE AND IRON COMPANY OF
IOWA, ORIGINALLY OPENED IN 1891 ON THE
LEON RIVER IN CORYELL COUNTY IN WHAT
LATER BECAME MOTHER NEFF STATE
PARK, THE BRIDGE WAS MOVED 6 MILES IN
THE LATE 1940s OR EARLY 1950s TO
COUNTY ROAD 322, BY 1993 THE BRIDGE
COULD NO LONGER SUPPORT MODERN
ROAD TRAFFIC, TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS, IN A HISTORIC
PRESERVATION AGREEMENT WIiTH THE
TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION, PAINS-
TAKINGLY TRANSPORTED IT MORE THAN
150 MILES TO THIS SITE™

(1998)***
* % inch lettering

** % inch lettering
*** Y inch lettering

PLEASE CHECK ONE AND SIGN:

b/ | approve this text as writien.

e Vk\'l igns as
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City Of Ronald V. Crabtree

© @ DEER PARK CITY MANAGER

710 E. San Augustine - P.O. Box 700 - Deer Park, Texas 77536 - (713) 478-7245 - Fax: (713) 478-7217

February 23, 1998

RECEIVE])

FEB 251998
Ms. Emily Cole Bell
Historian TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION
Official Texas Historical Marker Program
Texas Historical Commission
P.O. Box 12276
Austin, Texas 78711-2276

Dear Ms. Bell:

Enclosed is an approval of the inscription for the marker for the PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE (Job
# 20497) to be placed in Deer Park. Please let me know if there are any other requirements for
this marker to be ordered for casting.

Sincerely,

Gt . Lrurz:

Ronald V. Crabtree
City Manager

“Qua/ity ’ jirdt jme, gl/ery jme



Texas Historical Commission (ECB) 12/05/97

18" x 28" Official Texas Historical Marker with post
Harris County (Job #20497)

Location: 1600 Georgia, Deer Park, in the Battleground at Deer Park Golf Course

PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE*

A PIN CONNECTED TRUSS BRIDGE CHARAC-
TERISTIC OF THE POPULAR STYLE THAT
ONCE DOTTED RURAL TEXAS, THIS BRIDGE
IS THE LAST ONE IN TEXAS BUILT BY THE
CLINTON BRIDGE AND IRON COMPANY OF
IOWA, ORIGINALLY OPENED IN 1891 ON THE
LEON RIVER IN CORYELL COUNTY IN WHAT
LATER BECAME MOTHER NEFF STATE
PARK, THE BRIDGE WAS MOVED 6 MILES IN
THE LATE 1940s OR EARLY 1950s TO
COUNTY ROAD 322, BY 1993 THE BRIDGE
COULD NO LONGER SUPPORT MODERN
ROAD TRAFFIC, TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS, IN A HISTORIC
PRESERVATION AGREEMENT WITH THE
TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION, PAINS-
TAKINGLY TRANSPORTED IT MORE THAN
150 MILES TO THIS SITES™

(1998)***
* % inch lettering

** % inch lettering
*** % inch lettering

PLEASE CHECK ONE AND SIGN:
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| approve this text as writien.

Please consider the revisions as
noted on this copy.
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the southwell co. 6USTOMER:

P. 0. box 299 san antonio, tx 78291
ph. (210) 223-1831  fax (210) 223-8517 ERIRLELICNGI R0 STV LT

F.0. BOX 12276
CAPITOL STATION
AUSTIN, TX 78711

B/approved {no corrections)
approved as noted

revise and resubmit

signed by: date: _ SHIP TO:
Ot a £ 32348

PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN ONE (1) COPY.
FAILURE YO SIGN THIS PROOF WILL RESULT

IN RESUBMITTAL FOR YOUB_ SIGNATURE.
S Thunk You
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PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE

A PIN. CONNECTED TRUSS BRIDGE
CHARACTERISTIC OF THE POPULAR
STYLE THAT ONCE DOTTED RURAL
TEXAS, THIS BRIDGE IS THE LAST ONE
8" IN TEXAS BUILT BY THE CLINTON
BRIDGE -AND [RON COMPANY OF IOWA.
ORIGINALLY OPENED IN 1891 ON THE

LEON RIVER IN CORYELL COUNTY IN
WHAT LATER BECAME MOTHER NEFF
STATE PARK, THE BRIDGE WAS MOVED &

MILES IN THE LATE 1940s OR EARLY
1950s TO COUNTY ROAD 322. BY 1993 QUOTE # _N/A

THE BRIDGE COULD NO. LONGER JOB # 20497
SUPPORT MODERN ROAD TRAFFIC. PO. % WA

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RE- PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE
OFFICIALS, IN A HISTORIC - BTN HAEEE
PRESERVATION AGREEMENT WITH THE
TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION, PAINS-

TAKINGLY TRANSPORTED IT MORE THAN

150 MILES TO THIS SITE. ' - FILE NAME: _20497
. — DATE

SUBMITTED; 2228

DRAWN BY: aAiexGeorcE

QUANTITY-_ONE(1)

MATERIAL:  CAST ALUMINUM

FINISH: BLACK BACKGROUND
: . SIZE: 18" WIDE X 28" HIGH
DESIGN A WITH POST BORDER: __SINGLE LiNE

LETTERS:___RIBBON (TEXT) & RUNIC (TNTLE)

18"WX28"H SCALE: 3M16" = 1"
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PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE
A PIN CONNECTED TRUSS BRIDGE

- CHARACTERISTIC OF THE POPULAR

STYLE THAT ONCE DOTTED RURAL
TEXAS, THIS BRIDGE IS THE LAST ONE
IN TEXAS BUILT BY THE CLINTON
BRIDGE AND IRON COMPANY OF IOWA.
ORIGINALLY OPENED [N 1891 ON THE
LEON RIVER IN CORYELL COUNTY IN
WHAT LATER BECAME MOTHER NEFF
STATE PARK, THE BRIDGE WAS MOVED 6
MILES IN THE LATE 1940s OR EARLY
1950s TO COUNTY ROAD 322. BY 1993
THE BRIDGE COULD NO LONGER
SUPPORT MODERN ROAD TRAFFIC.
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
OFFICIALS, IN A HISTORIC

PRESERVATION AGREEMENT WITH THE

TEXAS HISTORICAL COMMISSION, "PAINS-

TAKINGLY TRANSPORTED IT MORE THAN

150 MILES TO THIS SITE.

(1998)
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T E X A S George W. Bush * Govemor

John L. Nau, [l ¢ Chairman

H I S T O R I C A L Curtis Tunnell ¢ Executive Director
C OMMISSION The State Agency for Historic Preservation

March 18, 1998

Al Davis, Chair
Harris CHC

929 Waxmyrtle
Houston, TX 77079

RE: PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE
18" x 28" marker w/ post - Job # 20497
Shipment to: Ronald Crabtree, City of Deer Park, 710 E. San Augustine, Deer Park, 775386,
713/478-7245

Dear Al:

We have ordered the above-referenced marker for casting. It is currently taking 6 - 8 weeks for delivery
from the foundry. However, this is just an estimate; a final shipment date will depend on the foundry's
workload. A copy of the final inscription as it was sent to the foundry is enclosed for your files.
According to our records, the marker should be shipped to the address above. If these instructions have
changed during the marker process, please let me know as soon as possible so that | may notify the
foundry.

If you have not already done so, this would be a good time to begin planning the marker dedication
ceremony. However, please avoid setting the dedication date until the marker is received. The estimated
shipping date above does not take into account potential shipping problems or other unforeseen delays,
and the best laid dedication plans could be upset if planned around this time estimate. We will notify you
and all parties listed below once the marker has been shipped from the foundry. A guide to planning a
dedication ceremony is available from our office upon request. Since this is a state program, we suggest
that your state senator and/or representative be included in the program, as well as your county judge
and commissioners who have appointed your county historical commission.

Enclosed is a form for announcing the dedication in the THC's bi-monthly newsletter, The Medallion; in
the marker dedication calendar, which is distributed to agency commissioners and staff; and in the
monthly News for County Historical Commissions, once details have been finalized.

Again, please let me know if there has been a change in the shipping address, or if you would like a
marker dedication guide.

Sincerely,
EGrrn

Egina %

Office Manager

Local History Programs

pc: Ronald Crabtree

P.O.Box 12276 * Austin, TX 78711-2276 <+ 612/463-6100 <+ Fax512/475-4872 <« TDD 1-800-735-2989



Egina Reyes

To: Southwell
Subject: Marker Order

Date: 3/18/98

Job #: 20497

County: Harris

Title: PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE
Size: 18" x 28" marker w/ post
Rush: na

Incising: na

Shipping Address:
Ronald V. Crabtree

City of Deer Park

710 E. San Augustine
Deer Park, 77536
713/478-7245

Text as Follows:

PTBRIDGE.HARRIS.d
oc

Page 1
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Progress
Deer Park, Texas

JuL 191988

P

Bridge connects yesterday, today

By JEFF RIGGS
Editor [

A span of bridge which interest-
ingly stretehes across a lake rough-
ly in the middle of the
Batleground in Deer Park Golf

Course was dedicated July 7. Facts |

communicared  during

of the narrow measure and rela-
tively small weight capacity, the
bridge did not meet current county

+ Part.two ina

‘series of three

Noting the historical impor-
tance of the bridge, transportation
officials atempted to find buyer
for the bridge, rather than disman-
thing it. To meet this end, the Waco
district  office of the Texas
Department  of  Transportation
issued @ press release announcing

that a “historic” bridge was

the cvent showed the
bridge is an instrument
which aids to connect
yesterday with today.

Events leading to the
establishment  of  the
bridge in the central
Texas town of Gatesville
began June 11. 1890
when the Goryell Colnty
Court voled 1o ercel
bridge  at  or near
Halbert’s Crossing on the
Leon River.

This  date  roughly
coineides with the tound-
ing of Deer Park, which sy
is one of the reasons the Rises
bridge wus moved to our
city.

The Coryell County i
Court  selected  the J
Clinton Bridge and Iron
Company of Clinton,
lowa to manufacture and
build the $3,500 bridge,
o be paid with bonds
CAMINgG an interest rate of
SIX percent per yeur.

The county specified |
that the Clinton Bridge [
and Tron Company butld |/
“one wrought iron high B§5
truss bridge. 90 feet long, &

- THAT o i"E . ?n
A GE 15 THE
TANCTEXAS BUIT RS Yue
vBRIDGE _AND “[RON

YAST /DNE/
b CLINTON,
DGE AND - CQMPANY GF 'TOVAA !
AORIGINAVLY . OPENED IN* 185) 'OR\THE

* LEON~RIVER"IN- CORYELL “GOUNTY N’

£ BRIDGE.COYLD NB-
.gﬂfwom MODERN: ROAD
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
: G'FHC;\T%NS 'AG N
PREFERVALL . 1 GOMMISSOMN
FEXAS HI_S"IgElCAmFYED___ﬂ QR
M?LESWU e S

12 feet wide. with east-
ern und Westem
approaches of 200 reet
and 90 feet respectively.

Wear and tear and
occasional ficoding over
the years took their roll.  An
mspection report carried out by the
Toxas Department af
Transpolwaon in Apii, 1932,
found unstable deck planks, bridge
railing damage, rusted steel and
decayed timber pilings. Because

state,

saléty specifications.,

Transporition officials gave
the bridge a “serious condition®
fatng, and Uegan juspeecing o
every three months.  Finally, they
closed it permanently in
December, 1993

WHAT-{LATER . BECAME "MOTHER' NEFF:
\STATE ' PARK, THE BRIDGE cWaAS F.\U\_'Ei‘.: [
'MILES™IN "THE LATE* 193(;;{@;;:,:;;;‘
19505 TO COUNTY RDAD. 322, \DRGER

TRARFIC.

TRANSFORTATION

A ot
EEMENT wnmms_

(A,

‘.. v

-Stake murker alieses io ihe bridge’s historicai

importance, not only to Deer Park, but to the

available for relocation and
preservation. The release
was printed in February,
1994 in a number of Texas
ncwspapcrs.

Around this time, trans-
portation officials dismantled
other Coryell County bridges
of similur vintage for safery
reasons and replaced the
majority of them with 24 foot
wide concrele girder bridges
with  unlimited  weight
restrictions, built under the
same specifications as the
Texas inghway bridges. /

There were, however, some
responses o the newspaper
advertisements,

Landowner Emily Moreland
offered to buy it and move it
ta her ranch. The Board of
Directors of Mother Neff
Stute Park requested that the
bridge be returned to the
] ipark.
= That's . when  Tom

4 Knickerbocker, an architect,
& had adifferent idea, He sug-
gested moving the bridge 1oa
new  polf course he was
designing for the city of Deer
Park.

In November, 1993, the city
put an $8.25 million bond
ssuc befome its voters 1o
authonze construetion of e
Battleground at Peer Park
Golf' Course on' 2itv-owned
vacant fand,

In the final inseallment of the
sy of the bridge which was
moved to the Baulegroued al Deer
R IR E)
aude -.;mf L B, Jr.p..-.n...uu wilh
be offered about the eclection
results and the costs involved: in
maving the bridge.

g




JOB NO. 20497

MARKER TITLE _PRATT TRUSS BRIDGE COUNTY HARRIS
MARKER SIZE 18" x 28" marker w/post PRICE $550.00
PROCEDURE FOR MARKER APPLICATION CHC contact:
A1 Davis
! o 929 Waxmyrtle
rck 4-22-97 | 1. Application received Houston, 77079
713/468-6771
rck 4-23-97 2. Receipt of application acknowledged
LC:
3. Additional information sent for A11/Payment/Ship:
Received: The City of Deer Park
Ronald V Crabtree
g/g_,ﬁjy 4. Evaluated P 0 Box 700
(710 East San Augustine)
Deer Park, 77536
. _ 5. Sent to SMRB for approval )
§1597 Trewivio, A5l 713/478-7245

I Lz 2.9 7 "1 6. Letter of approval sent and folder labeled

5 7. Check received
v 25/'?7 THC #5000 ‘V‘/Amount: 5609

é-‘ 5{01 7 8. Inscription written PTB!\09€~ NARRNS

File name-.

/2 -9. 4 7 9. Inscription sent for approval

2 10. Reapproval sent (if necessary)
s 11. Highway permission secured (if necessary)
12. Order sent to Southwell, notice sent to CCs, and Q Incising
3- / 3. 72’ copy of final inscription placedin - O Paperweight(s)

Quarterly Exhibit file

(Z\(ggf) 57 A% | 13. Rubbing checked

% ) 7’ Y | 14. Notice of shipment/dedication materials sent

74 -
15. Survey card completed M ;}’7 W
Paperweights/ Type and #
Directional signs:  Date paid

Job #
Date ordered




GARY M. JACKSON
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER

710 E. San Augusting * P. 0. Box 700 « Deer Park, Texas 77536 » (281) 478-7260 o Fax: (281) 542-0879
E-Mail: gjackson@deerparktx.org

March 12, 2018

Ms. Elizabeth Brummett
Division of Architecture
Texas Historical Commission
P.0. Box 12276

Austin, Texas 78711-2276

Dear Ms. Brummett:

| am writing to you regarding the Pratt Truss bridge located on Battleground Golf Course in the City of
Deer Park. The bridge which dates from 1891, originally provided a crossing of the Leon River in Coryell
County, Texas. In the early 1990s, when the bridge was over 100 years old, a determination was made
by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) that the bridge could no longer support modern
road traffic. As documented in a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) signed by the Federal Highway
Administration, the Texas State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPQ) and TxDOT in late 1994, these three
parties agreed to the relocation of the bridge to the Battleground Golf Course as part of a transportation
enhancement project (see Attachment A).

The bridge is a 90-foot-long metal pin-connected Pratt through truss and at the time it was constructed,
was common for short to medium-length spans over Texas rivers and creeks. It was built by the Clinton
Bridge and Iron Company of Clinton, lowa, and is the only known bridge built by this company remaining
in Texas. At the time of its relocation, it was considered eligible for listing in the National Register of
Historic Places. The bridge has since been used for golf cart traffic on the Battleground Golf Course, The
bridge deck had been replaced at the time of relocation and in 2012, the bridge deck was replaced
again, an anti-rust coating and weatherproof paint was applied to the truss structure, and additional
structural support was added. The truss elements have, however, continued to deteriorate over time. A
historic marker is located adjacent to the bridge. Photos are included in Attachment B.

The City of Deer Park is exploring options to keep the bridge on the golf course while maintaining safe
conditions for golfers and other users of the golf course. According to the MOA, at the time of the
bridge relocation, the City of Deer Park was to sign a preservation and maintenance agreement subject
to review and comment by the SHPO (see MOA Stipulation 2 in Attachment A). The City of Deer Park
does not have a copy of such an agreement. Our engineering and environmental consultant, RPS, has
coordinated with Linda Henderson, History Programs Division, at the Texas Historic Commission (THC) to
locate a copy of this agreement, but there are no records of it at the THC either. In conversations with

“QUALITY FIRST TIME EVERY TIME?”



Linda, she has explained that typically these preservation and maintenance agreements expire after ten
years. Asthe bridge was relocated in the mid-90s, any agreement that may have been executed would
be expected to have expired years ago. In the absence of such an agreement, we can find no obligations
that the City of Deer Park is under with regard to the bridge. Linda has expressed that the THC would
prefer that this historic bridge be maintained.

Options available to the City of Deer Park include repairing the historic truss structure, replacing the
truss structure with a similar type structure to maintain the historic feel of the bridge, or removing the
truss structure altogether. Based on the RPS analysis of the truss structure, they estimate that over 50
percent of the truss members show substantial section loss which would require the members to be
replaced or repaired. It's estimated that at least 25 percent of the truss members would be replaced,
and another 25-50 percent would have new structural steel welded or bolted to the original truss
members leaving very little of the structure untouched. The cost of repairing the bridge is estimated to
be approximately $241,000 and would substantially alter the historic nature of the truss. The cost to
replace the existing truss structure with a similar style structure that maintains the historic feel of the
bridge is estimated to be $156,000. Removal of the truss structure is estimated to cost $40,000. If
either the replace or remove option is selected, the City proposes mitigation in the form of a bridge
documentation package consisting of large and/or medium format photography and a written summary
to document the history, current condition of the bridge and reasons for replacement/removal. This
information would supplement the photography, dimensioned sketch plans and write-up that TxDOT
prepared prior to the relocation of the bridge to the City of Deer Park (see MOA Stipulation 3 in
Attachment A).

The City of Deer Park is formally requesting your comments and input on the options presented above.
We would also appreciate your input on the status of the historic marker if the replace or remove option
is selected. While a final decision has not been made by City Council, a previous discussion in Council
Workshop favored the removal option.

Maintaining a safe crossing and protecting golf course patrons is our highest priority. To do so, we are
requesting your response within the next 30 days so that City Council can be fully informed of all
interests and issues surrounding the bridge prior to making a decision about the bridge’s future.

We appreciate the assistance your agency has already provided on this project. If you have any
questions, please contact me at 281.478.7260.

Sincerely,

!

Gary M. Jacks
Assistant City Manager
City of Deer Park



Attachment A

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION
826 FEDERAL OFFICE BUILDING
AUSTIN, TEXAS 767013276

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION W/ﬂ: |

December 15, 1994
CcsJ: 0909-39-010 npenyRERTO
Memorandum of Agreement HN-TX
Bridge Replacement at County Road
322 at Leon River
Coryell County

Dianna f. Nohle, P.E.

Director of Environmental Affairs
Texas Department of Transportation
Austin, TX 78701-2488

Dear Ms. Noble:
Enclosed are two copies of the signed Memorandum of Agreement for
the above referenced project. Please provide a copy to the Texas
State Historic Preservation officers.

Sincerely yours,

& Jrthck

John R. Mack
Acting District Engineer

VIR
s T
LRt




Advisory
Council On
Historic
Preservation

The Old Post Office Building Reply to:

1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, #6809
Washington, DC 20004

730 Simrms Slreel, #401
Colden, Colorado 80401

November 21, 19394

Jesge I. Gray

Environmental Coordinator
Federal Highway Administration
826 Federal Office Building
Augtin, TX 78701-3276

RE: Memorandum af Agreement regarding the removal and relocation
of the County Road 322 Bridge at the Leon River, Coryell

County, Texas

Dear Mr. Gray:

The enclosed Memorandum of Agreement regarding the above referenced
project has been accepted by the Council. This action constitutes
the comments of the Council required by Section 106 of the National

Historic Preservation Act and the Council's regulations.

send copies of the gigned Agreement to the Texas State Historic

Preservation Officer and your Federal Preservation Officer.

The Council appreciates your coocperation in reaching a satisfactory

resolution of this matter.

Sincerely,

(i

Claudia- Nigsley
Director, Western Office
of Review

Enclosure




MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
REGARDING THE REMOVAL AND RELOCATION OF THE
COUNTY ROAD 322 BRIDGE AT THE LEON RIVER
CORYELL COUNTY, TEXAS

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) has determined that the removal and
relocation of the bridge on County Road 322 at the Leon River, Coryell County, Texas, will have an
effect upon the bridge, a property eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places, and
has consulted with the Texas State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) and the Advisory Council on
Historic Preservation (Council) pursuant to 36 CFR Part 800, regulations implementing Section 106 of
the National Historic Preservation Act {16 U.S.C., Part 470f); and

WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) has participated in the consultation and
has been invited to concur in this Memorandum of Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, the FHWA and the Texas SHPO agree that the undertaking shall be implemented
in accordance with the following stipulations in order to take into account the effect of the undertaking
on historic properties.

STIPULATIONS

The City of Deer Park, Texas, will relocate the County Road 322 bridge to The Battleground at Deer

Park Golf Course as part of a transportation enhancement project funded in accordance with the
intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA).

The FHWA will ensure that the following measures are carried out in consultation with the SHPO prior
to the removal and relocation of the County Road 322 bridge at the Leon River.

1. The SH'PO shall be afforded 30 days to review and comment on the City of Deer Park's
relocation plan.

2. The City of Deer Park shall be required to sign a preservation and .maintenance agreement
prior to relocating the subject bridge. The SHPO shall be afforded 30 days to review and
comment on this agreement.

3. TxDOT shall prepare a bridge documentation package consisting of the following items:

a. ‘large format (4" x §") and/or medium format (120 film) photographs of the
bridge in its current setting;

b. dimensioned sketch plans; and

c. written data to include physical description, statement of significance, and brief
history. '

4. Three (3) documentation packages shall be provided to the SHPO. The SHPO shall be
afforded 30 days to review and comment on the documentation package.

5. Should the SHPO object within 30 days to any documents provided for review and approval
pursuant to this Memorandum of Agreement, the FHWA shall consult with the objecting party
to resolve the objection. If the FHWA determines that the objection cannat be resolved, the
EHWA shall forward all documentation relevant to the dispute to the Council. Within 30 days
after receipt of all pertinent documentation, the Council will either: *

Page 1 0of 3




MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
REGARDING THE REMOVAL AND RELOCATION OF THE
COUNTY ROAD 322 BRIDGE AT THE LEON RIVER
CORYELL COUNTY, TEXAS

a. Provide the FHWA with recommendations, which the FHWA will take into account
in reaching a final decision regarding the dispute; of

b. Notify the FHWA that it will comment pursuant to 36 CFR, part B0O.6{(b}, and
proceed to comment. Any Council comment provided in response 10 such a request
will be taken into account by the FHWA in accordance with 36 CFR, Part BOO.B(c) (2}
with reference to the subject of the dispute. .,
Any recommendation or comment provided by the Council will be understood to pertain only
to the subject of the dispute; the FHWA's responsibility to cary out all actions under this
Memorandum of Agreement {MOA] that are not the subjects of the dispute will remain
unchanged,

6. At any time during implementation of the measures stipulated in this agreement, should an
objection 1o any such measure.be raised by a member of the public, the FHWA shall take the
objection Into account and consult as needed with the objecting party, the SHPO, or the
Council to resolve the objection.

Execution of this Memorandum of Agreement by the FHWA and the Texas SHPQ, its
subsequent acceptance’ by the Council, and implementation of its terms, evidence that the
. EHWA has afforded the Council an opportunity to comment on the bridge replacement on
County Road 322 at the Leon River in Coryell County, Texas, and its effects upen historic
properties, and that the FHWA has taken into account the effects of the undertaking on
historic properties. 4

Paga 2 of 3




MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
REGARDING THE REMOVAL AND RELOCATION OF THE
COUNTY ROAD 322 BRIDGE AT THE LEON RIVER
CORYELL COUNTY, TEXAS

SIGNATORIES

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION

BY\‘j;/MW A g DATE: H /3 /9'1/

‘}?t;nk M. Mayer
Division Administrator

TEXAS STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER

BY: ////%/OWM . paredd 2 ,{/f@?f

Curtls Tunn{ |
State Historic Preservation Officer

CONCUR:

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

BY: /ﬂﬂf/lld) j M DATE: [O-26 -7

Dianna F.4{oble, P.E.
Director of Environmental Affairs

ACCEPTED BY:

ADVISORY COUNGIL ON HISTORIC PRESERVATION

%ﬁl@; KWL" oATE: /L //G/ﬂ[




Attachment B — Bridge Photographs

- v @ ﬁjf@"'r.aq" :
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“A pin connected truss bridge
characteristic of the popular style
that once dotted rural Texas, this
bridge is the last one in Texas built
by the Clinton Bridge and Iron
Company of lowa. Originally
opened in 1891 on the Leon River
in Coryell County in what later
became Mother Neff State Park,
the bridge was moved 6 miles in
the late 1940s or early 1950s to
County Road 322. By 1993 the
bridge could no longer support
modern road traffic. Texas
Department of Transportation
officials, in a historic preservation
agreement with the Texas
Historical Commission,
painstakingly transported it more
than 150 miles to this site.”
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